
 

 

 

Rules of Procedure 

Social Media Policy 

Code of Conduct 

 

For 
 

 

 

 

Adopted by the Iowa Colony City Council  

TBD

 

Cop
y



i 

 

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

To be updated 
 

 

PAGE 
 

 

I. POWERS, JURISDICTION, FUNCTIONS AND LIMITATIONS   1 
 

II. MEETINGS   2 
 

A. Regular City Council Meetings   2 

B. Special City Council Meetings   2 

C. Council Work Sessions   2 

D. Committee of the Whole   2 

E. Between Regularly Scheduled City Council Meetings   3 

F. Public Notification of Meetings   3 

G. Executive Session Meetings   3 

H. Pre-Meeting Information   4 

I. Recesses and Adjournments   4 

J. Presiding Officer   5 

K. City Secretary   5 

L. Quorum and Majority Votes   5 

1. Quorum   5 

2. Majorities   5 

M. Attendance, Absences and Removals   5 

N. Agendas   6 

1. Preparation    6 

2. Review   6 

3. Format   6 

O. Public Participation at Meetings   7 

P. Minutes   8 

Q. Councilmember Decorum   8 
 

III. LEGISLATION   9 
 

A. The Legislative Process   9 

B. Effective Date of Legislation   11 

C. Emergency Legislation    11 

D. Copies of Ordinances and Resolution   12 
 

IV. MOTIONS   12 
 

V. COUNCIL WORK SESSIONS/COMMITTEES   14 

Cop
y



ii 

 

 

A. Council Work Sessions   14 

B. Committee of the Whole   14 

C. Special Committees   14 

D. Outside Committees   15 
 

VI. COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES   15 
 

VII. IN-SERVICE TRAINING   16 
 

VIII. CITY ATTORNEY AND OTHER LEGAL COUNSEL  16 
 

IX. COUNCIL/ADMINISTRATION COMMUNICATIONS   17 
 

X. INVESTIGATIONS   18 
 

XI. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS   18 
 

XII. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ETHICS   18 

 
XIII. COMPLAINTS   18 

 

XIV. EVALUATION OF CITY OFFICIALS   19 
 

XV. SUSPENSION OR WAIVER OF THE RULES OF COUNCIL   19 
 

XVI. SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS FOR COUNCIL   19 

 

XVII.  CODE OF CONDUCT – CITY COUNCIL, BOARDS AND COMISSISION_____23

Cop
y



1 

 

 

I. POWERS, JURISDICTION, FUNCTIONS AND LIMITATIONS 
 

Except as otherwise provided under the City Charter, all legislation and other 

powers of the City are vested in the Council. The Council has the power to enact 

ordinances, resolutions, and other measures to carry out municipal functions 

involving the City’s departments, divisions, offices, boards, commissions, officers, 

and employees (Section 3.07, City Charter). 

 
Councilmembers have power and may exercise that power only when Council is 

in session. Councilmembers and the Council itself are not bound by any 

statement or action taken by individual members, City officials, or employees 

unless in accord with Council action. Individual Councilmembers shall not direct 

any City official or employee to perform services or take action related to City 

operations (Section 3.08 (C), City Charter). Only as a body does Council have 

power to direct City operations and that direction is executed through the City 

Manager. 

 
Some specific Council functions include: 

 
(a)  Remove from any office or position of employment in the city government, any officer or employee 

or member of any board or commission, unless that person reports to the city manager. 

(b)  Establish, consolidate or abolish administrative departments.  

(c)  Adopt the budget of the city.  

(d)  Authorize the issuance of bonds by a bond ordinance.  

(e)  Inquire into the conduct of any office, department or agency of the city and make investigations as 

to municipal affairs.  

(f)  Provide for any boards and commissions and appoint the members thereof. Such boards and 

commissions shall have all powers and duties now or hereafter conferred and created by this Charter, 

by city ordinance, or by law. 

(g)  Adopt and modify the zoning plan and the building code of the city.  

(h)  Adopt and modify the official map of the city.  

(i)  Adopt, modify and carry out plans for urban renewal and economic development. 

(j)  Adopt, modify and carry out plans proposed by the planning commission for the replanning, 

improvement and redevelopment of any area or district which may have been destroyed in whole or 

in part by disaster.  

(k)  Regulate, license and fix the charges or fares made by any person, firm or corporation owning, 

operating or controlling any vehicle of any character used for the carrying of passengers for hire or 

the transportation of freight for hire on the public streets and alleys of the city.  

(l)  Provide for the establishment and designation of fire limits and prescribe the kind and character of 

buildings or structures or improvements to be erected therein, and provide for the erection of fireproof 

buildings within said limits, and provide for the condemnation of dangerous structures or buildings or 

Cop
y



2 

 

 

dilapidated buildings, or buildings calculated to increase the fire hazard and prescribe the manner of 

their removal or destruction within said limits.  

(m)  Set the salaries and compensation of the city officers and employees, within the budget, and except 

to the extent that the Council delegates that authority to the City Manager.  

 (n)  May provide for sanitary garbage disposal and other public utilities, and set fees and charges 

therefor, and provide penalties for failure to pay such fees and charges.  

(o)  Exercise exclusive dominion, control and jurisdiction in, upon, over and under the public streets, 

avenues, sidewalks, alleys, highways, boulevards and public grounds of the city and provide for the 

improvement of same as provided in Texas Transportation Code Chapter 313, or any applicable law, 

as now or hereafter amended.  

(p  Compromise and settle any and all claims and lawsuits of every kind and character in favor of or 

against the City of Iowa Colony.  

         (Section 3.07, City Charter) 

    
The city council shall determine its own rules of procedure and may compel the attendance of its 

members. A majority of the qualified members of the city council shall constitute a quorum to do 

business and the affirmative vote of a majority of those qualified shall be necessary to adopt any 

ordinance or resolution. Minutes of the proceedings of all meetings of the city council shall be kept, to 

which any citizen may have access at all reasonable times, and which shall constitute one (1) of the 

archives of the city. The vote upon the passage of all ordinances and resolutions shall be taken by the 

"ayes" and "nays" and entered upon the minutes, and every ordinance or resolution, upon its final 

passage, shall be kept in the permanent records of the city, and shall be authenticated by the signature 

of the presiding officer and the person performing the duties of the city secretary.  

 (Section 3.10, City Charter). Cop
y



3 

 

 

II. MEETINGS 
 

A. Regular City Council Meetings: Regular Council City Meetings will be held 

on the third Monday of each month unless the day falls on a City holiday. If 

such a conflict occurs, the meeting schedule may be adjusted to address the 

holiday.  Meetings will begin at 7:00 P.M. (unless previously adjusted by 

Council action) and will be held in the Council Chambers at the City Hall 

Building (unless previously adjusted per Section 3.09, City Charter). 

 

B. Special City Council Meetings:  Special meetings shall be called by the City 

Secretary upon request of the mayor, City Manager, or any two members of the 

Council with at least twenty-four (24) hours’ notice to the Mayor and each 

Councilmember. Councilmembers and the Mayor may waive receipt of 

notice of a special meeting either prior or subsequent to the meeting. The 

member or members calling the meeting will, through the City Secretary, 

notify the media and other individuals that have requested notification of 

the time, place and purpose of any special meeting. (Section 3.09, City 

Charter) 

 
C. Council Work Sessions: Council Work Sessions are working committee 

meetings of Council and are not utilized for legislative action or other 

formal Council actions appropriate to Regular or Special City Council 

Meetings. Council Work Sessions generally will be held in the Council 

Chambers at the City Hall Building. Council Work Sessions may be 

called for any purpose at dates and times by the Mayor, City Manager or 

any two (2) Councilmembers upon at least twenty-four (24) hours’ notice 

to the Mayor and each Councilmember. Councilmembers and the Mayor 

may waive receipt of notice of a special meeting either prior or 

subsequent to the meeting. The member or members calling the meeting 

will, through the City Secretary, notify the media and other individuals that 

have requested notification of the time, place and purpose of any special 

meeting.  

 

Cop
y



4 

 

 

D. Between Regularly Scheduled City Council Meetings: Councilmembers are to 

be informed of incidents involving the City that, in the judgment of the City 

Manager or City Attorney may require immediate consideration by the 

Council. A Council meeting may be the means required for conveying 

information regarding these incidents. In addition, Councilmembers are to 

be informed at the onset of incidents which may eventually require 

budgetary or policy decisions by Council. 

 

E. Public Notification of Meetings: The City Secretary will make public 

notice of all Regular or Special City Council Meetings, Council Work 

Sessions, and other meetings of Council in accordance with state open 

meeting requirements of such meetings or sessions. This public notice will 

include the date, time, place, and purpose for the meeting or session. This 

public notice will be done in the following manner: 

 
1. Posting of the public notice at the City Hall building. 

2. Posting of the public notice on the City of Iowa Colony 

official website. 

3. Posting of the public notice on the City of Iowa Colony 

official Facebook and Twitter accounts (if any). 

4. Distribution of the public notice by email via the Internet 

through an electronic distribution list maintained by the 

City Secretary that includes media outlets and individual 

members of the public who have requested notification in 

advance (see below). 

 
The public may also obtain notice of the date, time, place, and purpose of 

all Regular or Special City Council Meetings, Council Work Sessions, and 

other meetings of Council by contacting the Office of the City Secretary. 

 
Any person may obtain advance notification of all Council meetings by 

email via the Internet through an electronic distribution list maintained by 

the City Secretary at no charge. This request should be made in writing to 

the City Secretary. Any such request shall be effective indefinitely from 

the date of filing with the City Secretary or until the City Secretary 

receives written notice from an individual canceling or modifying such 

request. Notification of any special meeting shall be sent to those who have 

requested such notification. A reasonable attempt at notification shall 

constitute notification in compliance with these Rules of Council. 

 
F. Executive Session Meetings: Meetings in Executive Session shall be closed, 

private, and confidential; and shall be held in accordance with 551, 

Subchapter D Texas Government Code. These meetings are to be noted on 

the agenda of regular meetings, when practicable. Any individual 

Councilmember 

Cop
y



5 

 

 

may motion that Council recess to Executive Session when circumstances 

are such that satisfactory answers or useful discussion may be provided only 

in Executive Session. A motion, to include the general purpose of the 

Executive Session as specified in Texas Revised Code 121.22 and passed by 

a majority or unanimous vote (depending on the purpose of the Executive 

Session), is required for Council to recess to Executive Session. 

 
All other Council meetings must also comply with the requirements of 

Texas Revised Code Section 121.22 as described above. 

 
Minutes of the Executive Session discussions shall not be kept. Neither shall 

any participant record the proceedings of the any Executive Session by any 

electrical or mechanical device. 

 
The minutes of the Regular City Council Meetings or Special City Council 

Meetings, as well as Council Work Sessions and other Council meetings, 

should reflect the general subject matter of discussion held in Executive 

Session authorized under Division G of the Section 121.22 of the Texas 

Revised Code.  In addition, the aforementioned minutes should reflect the 

vote on the motion to go into Executive Session and the commencement and 

termination times of the Executive Session meeting. 

 
Discussion in Executive Session is confidential. No participant shall 

compromise the confidentiality of an Executive Session. 

 

G. Pre-Meeting Information: Three (3) business days prior to scheduled 

City Council Meetings, Council Work Sessions, or other Council 

meetings, Councilmembers are to be furnished a meeting packet with 

information germane to the meeting agenda items. This meeting packet 

will include background information on the agenda items and/or copies 

of proposed ordinances and resolutions, historical information, and any 

additional relevant information on the agenda items. The agenda will 

normally be finalized on the Thursday immediately preceding each 

meeting; however, proposed agenda items must be submitted to and 

approved by the City Manager on the Monday immediately preceding 

each meeting by 5:00 P.M. The City Attorney will also be provided all 

of this information to allow for proper legal review. 

 
H. Recesses and Adjournments: City Council Meetings, Council Work Sessions, 

or other Council meetings may be adjourned or recessed to another time, 

date. Short recesses (5-15 minutes) may be designated by the Presiding 

Officer during regular or special meetings without a vote of Council. Other 

recesses require a simple majority vote of Council. 

Cop
y



6 

 

 

I. Presiding Officer: The Mayor presides over Regular City Council 

Meetings, Special City Council Meetings, Council Work Sessions, or 

other Council meetings; however, in the absence of the Mayor, the Mayor 

Pro Tem presides (Section 4.04, City Charter). In the absence of the Mayor 

and the Mayor Pro Tem or at the discretion of the Mayor or Mayor Pro 

Tem, the Council may elect a Councilmember to serve as Presiding 

Officer for that meeting provided a Council quorum is present. The Mayor 

is a member of Council, but does not have voting rights on issues in 

Regular City Council Meetings or Special City Council Meetings except in 

cases of tie votes (Section 3.05, City Charter). The Mayor Pro Tem serves 

as a Councilmember with all voting and other rights accorded that position 

(Section 3.05, City Charter). 

 
J. City Secretary: The City Secretary attends Council meetings, records 

proceedings, maintains City records, handles public records requests, 

authenticates legislation and signatures, prepares correspondence and 

minutes, and performs other duties as directed by the City Manager and 

required by law (Section 4.03, City Charter). The job duties and functions 

of the City Secretary are also defined in the applicable position 

descriptions. 

 
K. Quorum and Majority Votes: 

 

1. Quorum: Four (4) members of the City Council shall constitute a 

quorum for the purpose of transaction of business. No action of the City 

Council, except as specifically provided in this Charter, shall be valid or 

binding unless adopted by the affirmative vote of a majority of the City 

Council present and qualified to act. (Section 3.10, City Charter). 

 
2. Majorities: Majorities are based on the total number of Councilmembers, 

including the Mayor who may vote, holding office (not simply those 

present). Therefore, majorities are calculated, in normal situations, using 

the number seven (7) as denominator. Thus, four (4) constitutes a simple 

majority, five (5) a two-thirds (2/3) majority, and six (6) a three-fourths (3/4) 

majority. 

 

L. Attendance, Absences, and Removals: Councilmembers are required and 

expected to attend all Regular City Council Meetings and Special City 

Council Meetings. Absences from Council meetings may be excused for 

reasonable 

Cop
y



7 

 

 

cause. All absences from meetings will be communicated through the City 

Secretary’s Office. For the official record purposes, a motion of Council to 

excuse a member’s absence must be passed by a simple majority vote. 

 
If any member of the City Council is absent from three (3) consecutive regular 

meetings, without explanation acceptable to a majority of the remaining members 

of the City Council, his or her office shall be deemed and declared vacant by 

resolution at the next regular meeting of the City Council. The City Council shall 

convene a public hearing before exercising its authority under this provision and 

permit the Council member to be heard regarding absences. (Section 3.06 (B), 

City Charter). 

 
A Councilmember or the Mayor may be expelled from a Council meeting 

for disorderly conduct or violation of the Rules of Council by a vote of a 

two- thirds (2/3) majority of Councilmembers. Expulsions are considered 

unexcused absences. 

 

M. Agendas: 
 

1. Preparation: The City Manager shall prepare or designate an 

appropriate department head or City employee to prepare items for 

inclusion in the official agenda of all City Council meetings and 

meetings of all boards and commissions. The City Manager may also 

solicit input from Councilmembers and the Mayor for the agendas 

for future Council meetings. Any two (2) Councilmembers may 

also compel an item to be placed on the agenda for Council Work 

Sessions as described under Section II, C. of this document. 

 
2. Review: Council will be previously apprised and informed of all 

proposed legislation/motions and/or other matters of significance 

on the agendas through Council Work Sessions, other Council 

meetings, or written communications from the City Manager or the 

City Secretary (except for emergency situations) or as otherwise 

determined by Council. 

 
3. Format: 

 

A. Regular City Council Meetings of Council will follow 

this format unless changed by any five (5) 

Councilmembers: 

 
1. Call the Meeting to Order 

2. Roll Call 

3. Pledge of Allegiance (US and Texas flags) 

4. Invocation (as appropriate) 

Cop
y



8 

 

 

5. Special Presentations/Announcements * 

6. Citizens Comments ** 

Cop
y



9 

 

 

7. Regular Agenda 

8. Consent Agenda 

9. Staff Reports 

10. Executive Session 

11. Post Executive Session agenda items 

12. Future Agenda Items/New Business 

13. Adjournment 

 
* Usually reserved to accommodate departments, non-profit 

or citizen groups whose purpose is to make a short, formal 

presentation or receive a proclamation. 

 

** Citizens wishing to reserve time to speak must 

complete a Citizens Comments Request. 

 
B. Council Work Sessions will normally follow this format: 

 
1. Call the Meeting to Order/Roll Call 

2. Citizens Comments ** 

3. Work Session Topics of Discussion 

4. Executive Session 

5. Adjournment 

 
N. Public Participation at Meetings: The Presiding Officer (Mayor or Mayor 

Pro Tem) of Regular or Special City Council Meetings, Council Work 

Sessions, or other Council meetings will recognize persons requesting to be 

heard. If the topic to be discussed is not on the agenda, it may not be 

discussed under Citizens Comments (in accordance with Open Meetings 

statutes). Members of the public desiring to speak at Regular City Council 

Meetings and Special City Council Meetings must request time using the 

Citizens Comments Request. Members of the public desiring to speak at 

Council Work Sessions or other Council meetings must request time using 

the Citizens Comments Request. Citizens granted time to speak may do so 

following recognition by the Presiding Officer. Individuals wishing to 

speak are asked to abide by the following procedures: 

 
1. Wait to speak until recognized by the Presiding Officer. 

2. Approach the microphone and state your name 

and address. 

3. Address remarks to the Presiding Officer. 

4. Respond to questions from Councilmembers through 

the Presiding Officer (if the item being discussed is on 

the agenda). 

5. Limit comments to subject under discussion (if 

speaking on an agenda item). 

Cop
y



10 

 

 

6. Limit comments to three (3) minutes. 

7. Avoid complaints and/or remarks directed against 

individual employees or Councilmembers. (These 

types of complaints and/or remarks will be ruled out 

of order by the Presiding Officer and should be 

handled instead through the proper procedures for 

filing complaints). 

 
Public statements on agenda items by other than properly registered or 

properly recognized citizens will generally not be allowed during the 

discussion and/or decision of such agenda items. Public statements will be 

accepted during public hearings, citizens’ comments agenda time, and at 

other times as allowed by the Presiding Officer. 

 
O. Minutes: The minutes shall record actions taken at the meeting and shall 

not be a verbatim transcript of what is said at the meeting. Council may, 

by a simple majority vote, direct that more detailed minutes be kept for all 

or part of a meeting. 

 

P. Councilmember Decorum: During all official meetings of the Council, 

whether Committee Meetings, Council Work Sessions, Regular City 

Council Meetings, or Special City Council Meetings, the members of 

Council in attendance will represent the City in a professional manner by 

directing their comments to the business of the Council and the policy 

implications of such business. 

 
Disparaging comments about a specific member of Council’s personhood, 

political affiliations, or matters of a personal nature will be ruled out of 

order by the Presiding Officer. For repeated offenses, the Presiding Officer 

shall put the question of whether the offender shall be removed from the 

meeting which shall be determined by a vote of three-fourths (3/4) of 

Councilmembers then present (excluding the offender) without debate. 

 
In no way is this section designed to eliminate the natural and appropriate 

disagreement or communication of such disagreements between 

Councilmembers on particular views, positions, directions, or political 

and/or philosophical positions of individual Councilmembers. 

Additionally, this section is not designed to limit any First Amendment 

rights of individual Councilmembers in their private or political capacities 

outside of official City meetings. 

Cop
y



11 

 

 

III. LEGISLATION  

A. The Legislative Process: Actions of the Council are by ordinance, resolution, 

or motion. A motion is used to make or approve appointments of 

personnel, to conduct the business of Council in procedural matters, to 

conduct elections required by Council, and for other similar matters 

provided by the Charter. All motions of Council require seconds. Voting 

records by individual Councilmembers on each item voted on are to be kept 

by the City Secretary. 

 
Article III of the City Charter prescribes procedures that must be adhered to 

in regard to legislation. The City Attorney assures that any proposed 

legislation fulfills all legal requirements. 

B. The City Council shall legislate by ordinance only, and the enacting clause of 

every ordinance shall be “Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Iowa 

Colony, Texas….” Each proposed ordinance shall be introduced in the written 

or printed form required for adoption. Each ordinance shall contain a title or 

caption that identifies the subject(s) addressed in the ordinance. General 

appropriation ordinances may contain various subjects and accounts for which 

monies are to be appropriated. After adoption, an ordinance shall not be 

amended or repealed except by the adoption of another ordinance amending or 

repealing the original ordinance. Copies of any proposed ordinance, in the form 

required for adoption, shall be furnished timely to the City Council. Copies of 

the proposed ordinance, in the form required for adoption, shall be available at 

the City offices and shall be furnished to the public upon request to the City 

Secretary from and after the date on which such proposed ordinance is posted 

as an agenda item for a City Council meeting and, if amended, shall be available 

and furnished in amended form for as long as the proposed ordinance is before 

the City Council. 

C. Unless otherwise required by law, every ordinance shall become effective upon 

adoption or at any later time(s) specified in the ordinance, except that every 

ordinance imposing any penalty, fine or forfeiture shall become effective only 

after the caption has been published once after adoption, in a newspaper 

designated as the official newspaper of the City. 

D. If a majority of the City Council present request that the ordinance title and 

caption or its entirety be read, it must be read.  
E. Emergency Legislation: The City Council may adopt emergency ordinances 

only to meet public emergencies affecting life, health, property or the public 

peace. In particular, such ordinances shall not levy taxes, grant or renew or 

extend a franchise, or regulate the rate charged by any public utility for its 

services. Neither shall they authorize the borrowing of money except as 

provided elsewhere in the Charter. An emergency ordinance shall be introduced 

in the form and manner generally prescribed for ordinances, except that they 

shall be plainly designated in the title as an emergency ordinance and shall 

contain after the enacting clause a declaration stating that an emergency exists 

and describing the emergency in clear and specific terms. An emergency 

ordinance may be introduced at any City Council meeting and can be adopted 

Cop
y



12 

 

 

with or without amendment or rejected at the meeting at which it is introduced. 

The majority vote of members of the City Council shall be required for 

adoption. 

Emergency ordinances shall become effective upon adoption and shall be 

published as soon thereafter as practicable. Every emergency ordinance so 

adopted, except one authorizing the borrowing of money as described herein, 

is automatically repealed as of the sixty-first (61st) day following the day on 

which it became effective. The ordinance may be re-enacted if the emergency 

still exists. (Section 3.15, City Charter) 

F. Copies of Ordinances and Resolutions: The City Secretary shall provide 

copies of ordinances and resolutions adopted by Council to persons 

requesting such copies. Copies of proposed ordinances and resolutions shall 

also be provided to persons requesting such copies. The City Secretary shall 

charge the established rate in the Iowa Colony Public Records Policy for 

such copies. Per the Charter, copies shall be provided on the website. 

 

IV. MOTIONS 
 

Unless there is a conflict with these Rules of Council or the City Charter, Roberts 

Rules of Order will be used as guidance during Council meetings. The following 

specific procedures shall be followed during Council meetings: 

 

1. Main Motions: A motion to introduce a subject (requires majority 

vote). 

 
2. Motions When Question Is Before Council: When a question or 

proposition is before or under debate by Council or when a motion 

has been made, only the following motions can be accepted: 

 

a. To adjourn (requires majority vote). 

b. To recess (requires majority vote). 

c. To raise a question of privilege. Questions of 

privilege have precedence over all other questions 

except adjournment. Questions of privilege are those 

affecting the rights of the Council collectively, its 

safety, dignity, comfort, and the integrity of its 

proceedings and those rights, reputations, and 

conduct of Councilmembers in the capacity as 

members of Council (decision of Presiding 

Officer). 

d. To call for orders of the day to require the Council to 

conform to its agenda, program, or order of business, 

or to take up a general or special order (decision of 

Presiding Officer). 

e. To lay on the table to set aside the pending question 

Cop
y



13 

 

 

when something else of immediate urgency has arisen 

or when something else needs to be adopted before 

consideration of the pending question is resumed 

(requires majority vote). 

f. To call the previous question and request that discussion 

end and that the motion being considered be voted on 

(requires two thirds vote). 

g. To limit or extend limits of debate (requires two thirds 

vote). 

h. To postpone any action to a certain time (or definitely) 

(requires majority vote). 

i. To commit or refer the proposal to a committee or 

special meeting of Council for further investigation or 

to put into better condition for consideration 

(requires majority vote). 

j. To amend. A motion to amend is to modify the main 

motion by inserting or adding; striking out; or 

striking out and inserting. No motions can be made to 

amend an amendment. A rejected amendment may 

not be moved again in the same form (requires 

majority vote). 

k. To postpone indefinitely. When motions to postpone 

indefinitely are passed, the principle question is 

declared lost. The motion rejects or “kills” the main 

motion for the duration of the session (requires 

majority vote). 

l. To postpone any action indefinitely (requires majority 

vote). 

 
Note: These motions have precedence in the order given. Motions 

listed above in “a”, “b”, “c” and “f” are decided without debate. 

 

3. Motion to Take Matter From Committee: When ordinances, 

resolution, or other matters have been referred to a committee and said 

committee fails within a reasonable or specified time to report or offer 

a valid reason for failure to report, any member of Council has a right 

to move that ordinance, resolution, or matter of concern be taken from  

that committee and placed before Council for action (requires 

majority vote). 

 

4. Motion to Reconsider: Motions to reconsider an approved item must 

be made before adjournment of that session of Council for those 

items of legislation that are effective immediately; motions to 

reconsider other legislation must be made prior to the close of the 

next following regular meeting of Council. A motion to reconsider 

may be made only by a Councilmember who voted with the 

Cop
y



14 

 

 

prevailing side. A motion to reconsider, being laid on the table, 

may be taken up and acted upon at any time when the Council is 

engaged in the transaction of other business. No motion to 

reconsider may be made more than once on any matter and the same 

number of votes is required to reconsider the action of Council as was 

required to pass or adopt the matter (requires majority vote). 

Cop
y



15 

 

 

V. COUNCIL WORK SESSIONS/COMMITTEES 
 

A. Council Work Sessions: Council Work Sessions are working committee 

meetings of Council and are not utilized for legislative action or other 

formal Council actions appropriate to Regular or Special City Council 

Meetings. The Council Work Sessions shall consist of the Mayor and all 

of the Councilmembers. Council Work Sessions shall be supported by the 

City Secretary, the City Manager, the City Attorney, and City Staff as 

directed by the City Manager. 

 
Proposed legislation/motions and/or other matters of significance will 

generally be reviewed initially through assignment to a Council Work 

Session. Exceptions to the review of proposed legislation/motions and/or 

other matters of significance through assignment to a Council Work Session 

can be made by Council for routine matters, including approval of expenses 

legislation and end of the year legislation. Council may also opt to review 

proposed legislation/motions and/or other matters of significance that 

arise in emergency situations at Regular City Council Meetings or Special 

City Council Meetings without assignment to a Council Work Session. 

 
All Council Work Sessions shall comply with the requirements of Texas 

Revised Code Section 121.22 under Texas’s Open Meetings Act. It shall be 

the responsibility of the Presiding Officer to advise the Office of the City 

Secretary of all scheduled meetings so that public notice can be given. It 

shall also be the responsibility of the Office of the City Secretary to ensure 

and/or prepare written minutes of all such meetings and to maintain a copy 

of all meeting notices, information, and minutes in the Office of the City 

Secretary’s records. 

 
B. Committee of the Whole: The working business of the Council may also be 

conducted through Committee of the Whole meetings. The Committee of 

the Whole shall consist of the Mayor and all of the Councilmembers. The 

Committee of the Whole meetings shall be supported by the City 

Secretary, the City Manager, the City Attorney, and City Staff as directed 

by the City Manager. 

 

C. Special Committees: The Mayor may appoint temporary special committees, 

unless objected to by Council, as may be appropriate to gather information, 

conduct surveys, make findings and recommendations on proposed 

legislation, or perform other specified tasks. The work of the special 

committees shall be confined to specific assignments and these committees 

shall have only the authority granted by Council.   These special committees 

shall be temporary   and terminate upon presentation of their final reports to 

the Council.  All special committees appointed by the Mayor shall be 

advisory only. The Mayor 

Cop
y



16 

 

 

shall be a non-voting ex-officio member of all special committees. A 

Special Committee Chair will be elected by the members of the special 

committee to act as the Presiding Officer of meetings of the special 

committee. The Special Committee Chair shall advise the Mayor of all 

committee meetings at the same time that members are notified of such 

meetings. 

 
All special committee/subcommittee meetings shall comply with the 

requirements of Texas Revised Code Section 121.22 under the Texas’s Open 

Meetings Act. It shall be the responsibility of each such Chair to advise the 

Office of the City Secretary of all scheduled meetings so that public notice 

can be given. It shall also be the responsibility of the Office of the City 

Secretary to ensure and/or prepare written minutes of all such meetings and 

to maintain a copy all meeting notices, information, and minutes in the 

Office of the City Secretary’s records. 

 
D. Outside Committees: For those Councilmembers selected to serve as 

individual representatives of City Council on outside committees or 

organizations, ongoing reports shall be provided to City Council in a 

timely manner. Representation of City Council on outside committees or 

organizations should be made by a motion of Council and approval by a 

simple majority vote of Council. 

 

VI. COMPENSATION AND EXPENSES 
 

Councilmembers shall be reimbursed their actual expenses incurred in the 

performance of authorized travel on official business of the City for approved 

training seminars, conferences, etc. The mode of travel and types of expenses 

covered (meals, tips, lodgings, fees, materials, etc.) for Council must first be 

approved by the Mayor before such expenses are reimbursable. The Mayor’s 

mode of travel and types of expenses covered (meals, tips, lodgings, fees, 

materials, etc.) must first be approved by the Mayor Pro Tem before such expenses 

are reimbursable. Those who use a personal vehicle during authorized travel will 

be reimbursed at the same rate as that authorized for City employees. Travel 

vouchers requesting reimbursement for approved travel expenses shall be 

submitted to the Office of the City Secretary after approval by the Mayor (or 

Mayor Pro Tem for the Mayor’s travel expenses) for processing by the Finance 

Department. 

Cop
y



17 

 

 

VII. IN-SERVICE TRAINING 
 

The Mayor and Councilmembers may avail themselves of educational 

opportunities by attendance at professional meetings, conferences, educational 

institutions, and purchases of information that enhance a Councilmember’s ability 

to perform Council duties. The Finance Department will process payment for 

any advance registration expenses and councilmembers shall be reimbursed for 

any other expenses. 

 

VIII. CITY ATTORNEY AND OTHER LEGAL COUNSEL 
 

No legal services shall be performed by the City Attorney except as authorized by 

the City Charter and City Council, or as requested by the City Manager, the City 

Secretary, and Senior City Staff. City Council, through the Council Work 

Sessions or any other Council meetings as determined by City Council, shall be 

responsible for administration and management of the City Attorney. All 

administrative matters involving the City Attorney shall be brought before the 

appropriate Council meeting including the Council Work Session or the 

Committee of the Whole. Conflicts of interest shall be resolved between City 

Attorney and City Council through the appropriate Council meeting including the 

Council Work Sessions. 

 
The City Attorney shall attend all Council meetings, including Executive 

Sessions, unless unable to do so because of a conflict in court scheduling or other 

business related to the conduct of official business. The City Attorney shall attend 

meetings of other City bodies when, in the City Attorney’s judgment, the subject 

matter at those meetings is such that a presence is required or appropriate. The 

chairs of City boards, committees, and commissions generally should request, 

through the City Manager, the attendance of the City Attorney at any meetings, if 

necessary. Communication will also be forwarded to City Council by the City 

Manager regarding the attendance of the City Attorney regarding such meetings. 

 
Preliminary drafts of legislation should be submitted to the City Attorney for 

review as part of the legislative process established in Section III of the Rules of 

Council. In addition, the City Attorney will draft legislation at the specific direction 

of the City Manager, the City Secretary, or from Council meetings and shall review 

all   legislation for legal form and propriety. 

 
The City Attorney will provide Council, the City Manager, and the City 

Secretary with copies of each significant legal document issued; however, entire 

briefs, etc. too bulky for reproduction will not be reproduced in their entirety 

except upon request or will be provided in electronic format. 

 
The City Attorney will provide Council with a quarterly activity report, 

including a verbal update on all significant active legal actions (such as civil suits, 

Cop
y



18 

 

 

etc.). Between these reports, the City Attorney will advise Council and the City 

Manager of any 

Cop
y



19 

 

 

matters warranting immediate attention. Additionally, to ensure the City’s best 

interest are always protected, the City Attorney will attend other City meetings, as 

requested, and coordinate day-to-day activities with the City Manager. 

 
The Council may employ additional legal counsel to provide supplemental legal 

services and to represent the City. These services are to be paid for from the City’s 

legal budget. 

 

IX. COUNCIL/ADMINISTRATION COMMUNICATIONS 
 

Official communications between Council or its individual members and City 

officers and employees are to be conducted solely through the City Manager. 

 

Requests to the City Manager for routine information, which involve minimal 

extra work by City Staff, can be handled without approval of Council as a whole 

(for example; a copy of existing information, brief project status reports, opinions, 

etc.). 

 
The City Manager may determine that a request for information is not routine or 

will require more than minimal effort, in which case the requesting 

Councilmember will be informed and has the option of taking the matter before 

the entire Council for consideration. Similarly, routine complaints or requests 

received by the City Manager from elected officials will be handled promptly 

without Council approval. 

 
On matters pending before Council, any new information that is developed by the 

City Staff will be shared by the City Manager with all Councilmembers prior to 

the discussion of the matter. Additionally, all Councilmembers inquiries to the 

City Attorney for non-routine requests (greater than one hour of work) shall be 

approved by a majority of Council before the work begins and will be detailed 

on the City Attorney’s billing statements. 

 
If a request for new information on matters not presently before Council is received 

that would suggest the issue would be a policy matter for the entire Council to 

consider, the City Manager shall inform all members of Council and seek approval 

for the City Staff work necessary to respond to the request (with majority 

approval of Council necessary). Requests for information or reports which will 

interrupt the established day-to-day utilization of City Staff time must be approved 

and authorized by Council. If the request is approved, all information compiled 

will be shared with all Councilmembers. 

 
In order to assure that the City Manager’s time is directed to implementing a 

common agenda reflecting the wishes of Council, a goal setting session shall be held 

not less than every two (2) years. The City Manager shall report progress on the goals 

Cop
y



20 

 

 

not less than three (3) times per year.. 

Cop
y



21 

 

 

X. INVESTIGATIONS 
 

Council may make investigations in coordination with the City Manager into the 

affairs of the City and the conduct of any City office, department, division, 

board, commission, or committee. Such investigations must be authorized by a 

majority of the Councilmembers. Councilmembers who request such 

investigations shall bring the request and the reasons for the request to Council in 

Executive Session. Such investigations shall be carried out within parameters 

established by the City Charter, federal and state law, and in consultation with the 

City Attorney. (Section 3.12, City Charter) 

 

XI. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 
 

Council is empowered to create City boards and commissions, in addition to 

those established by the City Charter. Council also appoints members to City 

boards and commissions. A simple majority vote of Councilmembers currently 

holding office at the time of appointment is required to appoint. Appointments 

will be made in accordance with the process set forth in the City of Iowa Colony 

Board and Commission Handbook. (Section 3.07 (f), City Charter) 

 

XII. CONFLICTS OF INTEREST AND ETHICS 
 

Councilmembers are subject to all Texas and local statutes and federal and state 

law regarding conflicts of interest, criminal misbehavior, ethics, and financial 

disclosure by municipal officials (Chapter 171, Local Government Code, 

V.T.C.A.). Members of Council shall abstain from voting on and the formal 

discussion of any motion or issue wherein the member might have a conflict of 

interest. Members having conflicts are expected to notify other members of the 

conflict as soon as such conflict becomes evident. 

 

XIII. COMPLAINTS 
 

Complaints against employees are to be made to the City Manager and handled in 

accordance with the City Personnel Policy Manual. Complaints against 

Councilmembers, the City Manager, the City Attorney, the Municipal Court 

Judge, or members of City boards or commissions appointed by Council are to be 

made to the Mayor. Complaints against the Mayor are to be made to the Mayor 

Pro Tem. Complaints are required to be in writing. 

 
Upon receipt of a complaint against the City Manager, the City Attorney, the 

Municipal Court Judge, or members of City boards or commissions appointed by 

Council, the Mayor or Mayor Pro Tem shall distribute a copy of the complaint to 

all members of the City Council. All actions taken to investigate and resolve the 

complaint shall be documented as a matter of record. The Mayor or Mayor Pro 

Tem will complete a written response as soon as possible advising the initiator 

Cop
y



22 

 

 

and the City Council of the disposition of the complaint. In those cases where 

resolution requires longer than ten (10) business days, an interim written response 

and target date for completion will be provided to the initiator of the complaint and 

the City Council. 
 

Oral complaints against individual employees by the public or Councilmembers at 

City Council Meetings are out of order. The Presiding Officer shall rule the 

complaint out of order and explain the proper procedure for filing complaints. 

 
The above are not to be construed to deny the rights of the public to criticize, state 

dissatisfaction, or complain about Council or City services, but to protect 

individuals from public censure without the chance to answer specific complaints. 

 

XIV. EVALUATION OF CITY OFFICIALS 
 

It shall be the responsibility of Council to provide a written evaluation of the 

performance of the City Manager, the City Attorney, and the City Secretary 

annually. There shall be a formal Executive Session discussion of these 

evaluations by Council prior to the finalization of these evaluations. The Mayor 

or the Mayor Pro Tem shall consolidate and present final evaluations to all City 

Officials. The City Manager, City Attorney and City Secretary have the right to 

have their evaluation in public outside of an Executive Session. The request for 

a public evaluation must provided in writing to the Mayor, City Secretary and 

City Attorney. 

 

XV. SUSPENSION OR WAIVER OF THE RULES OF COUNCIL 

 
Council may suspend or waive the adopted Rules of Council, in full or in part, 

for a specified time by a motion. The motion to suspend or waive the Rules of 

Council must be properly seconded and approved by a simple majority vote of 

Councilmembers currently holding office. 

 

XVI. SOCIAL MEDIA GUIDELINES AND STANDARDS FOR COUNCIL 
 

These Guidelines and Standards apply to City Councilmembers (“Elected 

Officials”) that may maintain and use personal web pages, websites, blogs, and 

social networking sites (collectively “Internet Platform”). 

 

Elected Official’s Internet Platforms are not controlled by the City of Iowa 

Colony. The City does not require or promote such sites, nor provides web 

space or access (links) for such sites through any official City channels. 

Communications on Elected Official’s Internet Platforms are not created, 

received, maintained or used by the City. Nor are they meant to document the 

organization, functions, policies, decisions, procedures, operations, or other 

activities of the City or its Council as a whole. 

Cop
y



23 

 

 

 

 

 

Social Media Guidelines 

1. The site should NOT be designated as a “governmental” page. 

2. The site should NOT appear to be an official City internet platform. 

3. The site should have a disclaimer predominantly featured on the site, such as: 

 

This is a private page under the sole control of  . The 

comments expressed by me are my own and do not reflect the 

opinions and/or position of the City of Iowa Colony or its officers 

and employees. This page is not sanctioned or monitored by the 

City. This Page cannot be used for service of any legal notice, 

administrative notice or any other legal process directed to the 

City. As this site is not monitored by the City, do not use this site 

to request City records. 

 

4. Elected Officials should NOT promote their private Internet Platforms at 

official City meetings or in official City correspondence. 

5. If the Internet Platform is interactive (allows third parties to post) the site 

should expressly provide that it is not intended to be a public forum and that 

posts that are vulgar, off topic, hate speech etc. will be deleted according to a 

posted policy advising of such. A sample provision is: 

I reserve the right to remove or edit any posts that are unlawful, 

threatening, libelous, defamatory, obscene, pornographic, invasive 

of privacy, infringing of intellectual property rights, or otherwise 

violate any law. This includes comments or content that promotes, 

fosters, or perpetuates discrimination on the basis of race, creed, 

color, age, religion, gender, marital status, genetics, status with 

regard to public assistance, national origin, physical or intellectual 

disability, or sexual orientation. Spam, links to other sites, 

information that is clearly off topic, and/or apparent spamming or 

trolling will be removed. 
 

Social Media Standards 

 

1. Elected Officials should not disclose information that is considered 

privileged or confidential. By way of example, such information may 

include but is not limited to certain personnel information, non-public 

information from criminal investigations and business trade secrets. 

 

2. Elected Officials should be honest and accurate when posting information or 

news, and should quickly correct any mistakes, misstatements and/or factual 

Cop
y



24 

 

 

errors in content upon discovery. 

 

3. Elected Officials should never represent themselves as a spokesperson for 

the City Council, board, committee, or commission. 

 

4. Elected Officials should consider the potential impact of social 

media statements prior to posting. 

 

5. Elected Officials should not post information about matters involving 

pending or threatened litigation, items that are or may be appealed to them in 

their official capacity or to City boards or commissions. 

 

6. Elected Officials should not use internet platforms to communicate with 

city employees about City-related matters. 

 

7. Elected Officials should not “tag” a matter to a City employee’s 

personal internet platform site. 

 

8. Elected Officials should be mindful of the risks of electronic communication 

in relation to the Texas Public Records Laws and the Open Meeting Law; 

communication between elected officials should be avoided on internet 

platforms. 

 

9. Elected Officials should not reference any document(s) as a basis for making 

an official decision unless that document is available through the City as a 

public record. 

 

10. Removing a user’s comment or post because the person is criticizing 

some government action is not advisable. 

 

11. When an Elected Official desires to have a matter posted to an Official 

City Internet Platform, the Elected Official shall provide the item or link 

to the City Secretary who will then forward it to the designated person in 

charge of the City Internet Platform for posting consistent with the 

City’s Social Media Policy. 

 

XVIII Code of Conduct 

Policy Statement 

The citizens and businesses of Alvin are entitled to have fair, ethical and accountable local  

government, which has earned the public' s full confidence in integrity. In keeping with the City  

of Iowa Colony’s commitment to treasuring our past while forging our future, the effective functioning 

of democratic government therefore requires that:  

Cop
y



25 

 

 

Public officials, both elected and appointed, comply with both the letter and spirit of the laws and 

policies affecting the operations of government; 

Public officials be independent, impartial and fair in their judgment and actions; 

Public office be used for the public good, not for personal gain; and  

Public deliberations and processes be conducted openly, unless legally confidential, in an atmosphere 

of respect and civility.  

To this end, the Iowa Colony City Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members of the City  

Council and of the City's boards and commissions to assure public confidence in the integrity of local 

government and its effective and fair operation.  

1. Act in the Public Interest. Recognizing that stewardship of the public interest must be their 

primary concern, members will work for the common good of the people of Alvin and not for any 

private or personal interest, and they will assure fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims and 

transactions coming before the Iowa Colony City Council,boards and commissions of Texas and 

the City of Alvin in the performance of their public duties. These laws include but are not limited 

to: the United States and Texas constitutions; the Alvin City Charter; laws pertaining to conflicts of 

interest, election campaigns, financial disclosures, employer responsibilities, open processes of 

government, and City ordinances and policies.  

2. Conduct of Members. The professional and personal conduct of members must be above reproach 

and avoid even the appearance of impropriety. Members shall refrain from abusive conduct, 

personal charges or verbal attacks upon the character or motives of other members of Council, 

boards and commissions, the staff or public. Members should dedicate themselves to the highest 

ideals of honor and integrity in all public and personal relationships.  

3. Respect for Process. Members shall perform their duties in accordance with the processes and 

rules of order established by the City Council and boards and commissions governing the 

deliberation of public policy issues, meaningful involvement of the public, and implementation of 

policy decisions of the City Council by City staff, even when the member has voted in the minority.  

4. Conduct of Public Meetings. Members shall prepare themselves for public issues, listen 

courteously and attentively to all public discussions before the body, and focus on the business at 

hand. They shall refrain from interrupting other speakers, making personal comments not germane 

to the business of the body, or otherwise interfering with the orderly conduct of meetings.  

5. Conduct Business in Open. Members shall conduct business in open and publicized meetings in 

order to be transparent to the citizens of Alvin. It is recognized that certain exceptions are made by 

the State for closed sessions and any action as a result of that type of meeting will be addressed in 

the open session as noted on the agenda. Communications made during a public meeting or closed 

session are subject to the Texas Public Information Act. Members will not use " electronic 

communication devices" to communicate either internally or externally during meetings.  

6. Decisions Based on Merit. Members shall base their decisions on the merits and substance of the 

matter at hand, rather than on unrelated considerations. Members will not withhold information that 

is pertinent to the decision-making process.  

7. Communication. Members shall publicly share substantive information that is relevant to a matter 

under consideration by the Council or boards and commissions, which they may have received 

from sources outside of the public decision-making process. Members will not withhold 

information that is pertinent to the decision-making process.  

Cop
y



26 

 

 

8. Comply with the Law. Members shall comply with the laws of the nation, the State of Texas and 

the Iowa Colony City Charter. 

9. Use of Electronic Devices. Members will not use electronic devices other than what is necessary 

for conducting business during a meeting. Members will not text, email, make phone calls, use 

social media, and play games during the course of a meeting. Members shall not communicate or 

participate in a discussion with a quorum of the city council relative to city business via electronic 

mail, text or other social media tool. Use of personal emails, cell phones or computers may subject 

members to Public Information Act disclosure requirements.  

10. Smoking or Use of Tobacco Products. Members will not smoke or use tobacco products, 

electronic cigarettes and/or smokeless tobacco during the course of a meeting.  

11. Use of Alcohol. Members shall not be impaired due to the use of alcohol prior to or while 

conducting city business within our outside of a formal meeting. 

12. Conflict of Interest. In order to assure their independence and impartiality on behalf of the 

common good members shall not use their official positions to influence government decisions in 

which they have a material financial interest or where they have an organizational responsibility or 

personal relationship which may give the appearance of a conflict of interest. In accordance with 

the law, members shall disclose investments, interests in real property, sources of income, and gifts, 

and they shall abstain from participating in deliberations and decision-making where conflicts may 

exist, because these areas WILL exist. When these issues arise, it is simply imperative that we 

mitigate those issues appropriately. 

13. Gifts and Favors. Members shall not take any special advantage of services or opportunities for 

personal gain, by virtue of their public office that are not available to the public in general. They 

shall refrain from accepting any gifts, favors or promises of future benefits which might 

compromise their independence of judgement or action or give the appearance of being 

compromised. 

14. Confidential information. Members shall respect the confidentiality of information concerning the 

property, personnel or affairs of the City. They shall neither disclose confidential information 

without proper legal authorization nor use such information to advance their personal, financial or 

other private interests. A member shall not intentionally or knowingly disclose any confidential 

information gained by reason of said official position concerning the property, operations, policies 

or affairs of the city. 

15. Use of Public Resources. Members shall not use public resources not available to the public in 

general, such as City staff time, equipment, supplies or facilities, for private gain or personal 

purposes. 

16. Representation of Private Interests. In keeping with their role as stewards of the public interest, 

member of the City Council shall not appear or speak specifically on behalf of the private interests, 

including both private and nonprofit entities, of third parties before the Council or any board, 

commission or proceeding of the City in, nor shall members of boards or commissions appear 

before their own bodies or before the Council on behalf of the private interests of third parties on 

matters related to the areas of service of their bodies. 

17. Advocacy. Members shall represent the official policies or positions of the City Council, board or 

commission to the best of their ability when designated as delegates for this purpose. When 

presenting their individual opinions and positions, embers shall explicitly state they do not 

represent their body or the City of Iowa Colony, nor will they allow the inference that they do. 

18. Policy Role of Members. Members shall respect and adhere to the Council-Manager structure of 

the Iowa Colony City government, as outlined by the Iowa Colony City Charter. In this structure, 

the City Council determines the policies of the City with the advice, information and analysis 

provided by the public, boards, commissions and City staff. Except as provide by the City Charter, 

Cop
y



27 

 

 

members therefore shall not interfere with the administrative functions of the City or the 

professional duties of the City staff, nor shall they impair the ability of staff to implement Council 

policy decisions. 

19. Independence of Boards and Commissions. Because of the value of the independent advice of 

boards and commissions to the public decision0making process, members of the City Council shall 

refrain from using their positions to unduly influence the deliberations or outcomes of board and 

commission proceedings. 

20. Positive Workplace Environment. Members shall support the maintenance of a positive and 

constructive workplace environment for City employees and for citizens and businesses dealing 

with the City. Members shall recognize their special role in dealing with City employees to in no 

way create the perception of inappropriate directions or comments to City staff. 

21. Political Endorsements. When publicly endorsing a candidate for any elected office, members 

will not use their title as a councilperson, board or commission members nor use a City meeting 

forum to endorse a candidate. Council is prohibited from endorsing any candidate for City elections 

as it is deemed inappropriate. 

22. Implementation. As an expression of the standards of conduct for members expected by the City, 

the Iowa Colony Code of Conduct is intended to be self-enforcing. It therefore is most effective 

when members are thoroughly familiar with it and embrace its provisions. For this reason, code of 

conduct standards shall be included in the regular orientations for candidates for City Council, 

applicants to boards and commissions, and newly elected and appointed officials. Members 

entering office shall sign a statement affirming they read and understood the City of Iowa Colony 

Code of Conduct and Rules of Procedure. The City Council shall consider recommendations from 

boards and commissions and Council members and update this document as necessary. 

23. Compliance and Enforcement. The Iowa Colony Code of Conduct expresses standards of ethical 

conduct expected for members of the Iowa Colony City Council, boards and commissions. 

Members themselves have the primary responsibility to assure that ethical standards are understood 

and met, and that the public can continue to have full confidence in the integrity of their 

government in Iowa Colony. The chairs of board and commissions and the Mayor have the 

additional responsibility to intervene when actions of members that appear to be in violation of the 

Code of Conduct and these Rules of Procedure are brought to their attention. The second in line, 

when the Mayor’s or chair’s actions come into question, would assume the duty of intervening. The 

City Council may impose sanctions on members whose conduct does not comply with this Code of 

Conduct or these Rules of Procedure, such as reprimand, formal censure, loss of seniority or 

committee assignments.  

 

 

Cop
y



 

1 of 7 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY 
Job Description 

Job Title:  City Manager 

 

Department: City Manager      FLSA Status: Exempt 

Reports To:  Mayor / Council 

 

Location: 12003. Iowa Colony Blvd.      Revision Date: 

   

PURPOSE OF THE JOB: 

 

 To plan, organize, and direct all City affairs as assigned by City charter, ordinance, or 

directive. 

 

 To promote City interests through direct community involvement or indirectly, through the 

management of Department Directors. 

 

 To provide advice and consultation to City Council, and as liaison between Council and City 

staff. 

 

WORK PERFORMED: 

 

1. Directs and engages in short term and strategic planning for the development, acquisition, and 

use of the City’s human, capital, and financial resources. 

 

2. Prepares or directs the preparation of policy and procedural proposals for review and adoption 

by City Council. 

 

3. Monitors the implementation and progress of policies, procedures, programs, and projects. 

 

4. Appoints / hires Department Directors (as provided by City Charter) and City Manager’s staff, 

and other City employees through subordinates; Evaluates performances, resolves grievances 

and develops staff. 

 

5. Directs the preparation of City’s budget, monitors execution of the budget throughout the year, 

to include and review approval of expenditures, check registers, and overtime reports. 

 

6. Advises the Council of the City’s financial status. 

 

7. Directs the preparation of City Council meeting agendas; Determines items to be included in 

the agenda. 

 

8. Receives and responds to public inquiries; Resolves or delegates the resolution of problems 

presented by citizens. 

 

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

2 of 7 

9. Represents the City’s interests in a variety of settings, both inside and outside of the City; 

conducts on-site visits of City projects. 

 

10. Directs staff meetings, reviews status of staff projects, and reviews recommendations and 

projects completed by staff. 

 

11. Attends evening City Council meetings, committee meetings, social, civic, and volunteer 

association meetings. 

 

12. Actively participates in professional associations. 

 

13. Consults with City attorney to seek legal advice and legal opinions. 

 

14. Attends workshops and seminars to stay abreast of latest developments in topics bearing on 

effective City management, to include, but not limited to, Federal and State regulatory changes. 

 

15. May perform other related duties. 

 

SUPERVISION EXERCISED:  

 

1. Position Directly Supervised: 

 

All Department Directors that may now or in the future exist 

 

Any assistants positions that may be established 

 

2. Positions Indirectly Supervised: 

 

> All full-time employees 

 

> All part-time employees 

 

SUPERVISION RECEIVED: 

 

1. Title of Supervisor:   

 Mayor and City Council 

 

2. Nature of Supervision: 

 Performs work under general supervision; Receives annual performance evaluation. 

 

RESPONSIBILITY AND AUTHORITY: 

 

1. Decision Making: 

 

 Decisions to be made are far reaching, thus requiring the ability to forecast consequences.  

Conditions surrounding the problems are uncertain and involve highly sensitive matters.  

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

3 of 7 

Decisions affect the well being of the organization, or the well being of the public.  

Decisions require extensive and broad experience in municipal government, and in-depth 

knowledge of relevant laws and ordinances, and public practices. 

 

Examples: 

 

 Exercises total authority and discretion in daily interpretation and execution of 

citywide policies, procedures, and programs. 

 

 Independent judgment and discretion is utilized in exercising the responsibilities of 

Chief Executive. 

 

2. Equipment: 

 

 Frequently uses computer, Cell Phone and vehicle. 

 

3. Finances: 

 

 Responsible for complete oversight of City budget  

 

4. Public Contacts (Nature and Identity): 

 

 Interacts with Federal and State agencies to obtain information concerning rules, 

regulations, and grants, as well as other matters. 

 

 Provides or receives advice and guidance to / from Federal and State elected officials, 

statewide organizations and elected officials’ staffs concerning legislation. Shares 

information with City and County elected officials. 

 

 Provides quotes and press releases for television, radio and newspaper media. 

 

 Exchanges information concerning programs and projects of mutual benefit with Chamber 

directors and board members. 

 

 Consults with City Attorney. 

 

 Discusses common issues with other City Managers throughout the State. 

 

 Consults with school officials of F.I.S.D. and C.C.I.S.D. to share projects, concerns, and 

exchange information. 

 

 Interacts with consultants concerning project status. 

 

 Interacts with the public, both individuals and organizations, concerning a wide range of 

issues bearing on City policies, procedures, and programs. 

 

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

4 of 7 

5. Internal Contacts (Nature and Identity): 

 

 Principal contacts are with the Mayor, City Council, and Department Heads to exchange 

routine information, coordinate work activities, provide advice and consultation, and negotiate 

policies and procedures; Provides direct orders to Department Heads. 

 

SKILLS, KNOWLEDGE AND ABILITIES:  

 

1. Minimum Education and Experience Required to Perform the Job: 

 

 Undergraduate degree in business, public administration, or related field; Master’s degree in 

political science, business, public administration, or related field is preferred. 

 

 Five years of progressively responsible City Management experience in a smaller City, or 

eight years in lieu of a graduate degree. 

 

2. Knowledge or Skill Proficiencies: 

 

 Knowledge of Federal, State and local laws / regulations bearing on City programs. 

 

 Knowledge of business practices and protocol. 

 

 In depth understanding of municipal operations. 

 

3. Special Aptitudes and Abilities Required: 

 

 Excellent verbal skills, both oral and writing.  Must be able to make effective presentations to 

City Council, Social and Civil group, negotiate with high-ranking officials, and represent the 

City in formal, as well as informal, settings. 

 

 Outstanding managerial skills, to include ability to plan, organize, and direct multiple projects 

of significant importance to the public. 

 

 Ability to create a motivating work environment for managers of diverse talents and 

personalities. 

 

 Philosophy oriented toward serving the public and acting as role model for other employees’ 

interactions with the public. 

 

 Outstanding problem-solving and analytical skills; Must be able to find solutions to problems 

for which there may be no precedent. 

 

4. Required Licenses, Registries and Certifications: 

 

 Valid Texas Drivers License and a good driving record. 

 

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

5 of 7 

COMPETENCIES REQUIRED                   
 

To perform the job successfully, an individual should demonstrate the following competencies: 

 

 Analytical - Synthesizes complex or diverse information; Uses intuition and experience 

to complement data. 

 

 Problem Solving - Identifies and resolves problems in a timely manner; Gathers and 

analyzes information skillfully; Develops alternative solutions; Works well in group 

problem solving situations; Uses reason even when dealing with emotional topics. 

 

 Project Management - Communicates changes and progress; Manages project team 

activities. 

 

 Customer Service - Responds to requests for service and assistance; Meets 

commitments. 

 

 Interpersonal Skills - Focuses on solving conflict, not blaming; Maintains 

confidentiality. 

 

 Oral Communication - Speaks clearly and persuasively in positive or negative 

situations; Listens and gets clarification; Responds well to questions; Demonstrates group 

presentation skills; Participates in meetings. 

 

 Written Communication - Writes clearly and informatively; Edits work for spelling and 

grammar; Presents numerical data effectively; Able to read and interpret written 

information. 

 

 Teamwork - Exhibits objectivity and openness to others' views; Contributes to building a 

positive team spirit; Able to build morale and group commitments to goals and 

objectives. 

 

 Visionary Leadership - Inspires respect and trust; Provides vision and inspiration to 

peers and subordinates. 

 

 Change Management - Communicates changes effectively; Builds commitment and 

overcomes resistance. 

 

 Delegation - Delegates work assignments; Matches the responsibility to the person; Sets 

expectations and monitors delegated activities; Provides recognition for results. 

 

 Leadership - Exhibits confidence in self and others; Effectively influences actions and 

opinions of others. 

 

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

6 of 7 

 Managing People - Includes staff in planning, decision-making, facilitating and process 

improvement; Takes responsibility for subordinates' activities; Makes self available to 

staff. 

 

 Quality Management - Looks for ways to improve and promote quality; Demonstrates 

accuracy and thoroughness. 

 

 Business Acumen - Understands business implications of decisions; Aligns work with 

strategic goals. 

 

 Cost Consciousness - Works within approved budget; Conserves organizational 

resources. 

 

 Diversity - Promotes a harassment-free environment. 

 

 Ethics - Treats people with respect; Keeps commitments; Inspires the trust of others; 

Works with integrity and ethically; Upholds organizational values. 

 

 Organizational Support - Follows policies and procedures; Supports organization's 

goals and values. 

 

 Strategic Thinking - Develops strategies to achieve organizational goals; Adapts 

strategy to changing conditions. 

 

 Professionalism - Approaches others in a tactful manner; Reacts well under pressure; 

Treats others with respect and consideration regardless of their status or position; Accepts 

responsibility for own actions; Follows through on commitments. 

 

 Adaptability - Adapts to changes in the work environment; Manages competing 

demands; Changes approach or method to best fit the situation. 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS (GENERAL): 

 

 Position may involve extended periods of sitting and standing with some lifting; Frequently 

exposed to odors and fumes; Occasionally exposed to heat, cold, dampness, and bad 

lighting.  Unlikely to sustain physical injury if care is exercised when traveling and 

arranging meeting room, or while engaged in other physical activity. 

 

 Position incumbent is subject to considerable stress due to workload, budgetary 

responsibilities, and total management responsibility under uncertain or unstable economic 

conditions; Stressors include the management of highly charged political situations and 

negotiating with individuals who may have conflicting personal agendas or views (City 

Council Members or City Council-Staff members). 

 

 Position is required to attend evening meetings and is expected to work beyond a 40-hour 

workweek to accomplish all objectives. 

Cop
y



Job Description: City Manager 

7 of 7 

 

NOTE:   

Any applicant receiving a bona fide job offer for this position will be required to undergo and pass 

a pre-employment physical examination, illegal drug screening and criminal background check 

prior to employment.  

 

All positions at the City of Iowa Colony require documentation of employment eligibility in 

accordance with Federal employment law.  

 

Communication skills in English are required for some specific assignments based upon job-

related needs for communication with the general public and/or co-workers. Bilingual skills 

(Spanish/English) are encouraged, but not required.  

 

 

The above statements are intended to describe the general nature and level of work being 

performed by the person assigned to this job.  They are not intended to be an exhaustive list 

of all responsibilities, duties, skills and physical demands required of the personnel so 

classified. 

 

The Job Description does not constitute an employment agreement between the City of Iowa 

Colony and the employee.  This position is subject to change by the employer as the needs of 

the employer and requirements of the job change. 

Cop
y



NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC 

PUBLIC HEARING ON 

HOURS OF OPERATION 

 

7:00 P.M., JANUARY 25, 2021 

 

The Iowa Colony City Council will hold a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on January 25, 

2021, by videoconference; pursuant to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance to consider 

(1) generally amending the zoning ordinance to allow businesses to operate 24 hours per 

day and (2) granting a variance to allow a business to operate 24 hours per day on the 

following property: 

  

The northeast corner of the Highway 288 Access Road (Green Valley 

Drive) and Meridiana Parkway (former County Road 56), Brazoria 

County, Texas. 

 

All interested persons may be heard concerning this matter.  A copy of the application for 

action by the City of Iowa Colony is available for inspection by any person upon a 

reasonable request to the City Secretary at the address herein stated. 

 

This hearing will be held by video conference, as authorized by the Governor of Texas 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Please join this meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone at this link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84905488162?pwd=ME0waCtCazZEc01NUmNwZVgwcWR

BQT09  

 

Meeting ID: 849 0548 8162 

Passcode: 779137 

You can also dial in using your phone. +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.) 

One tap mobile 

+13462487799,,84905488162#,,,,*779137# US (Houston) 

 

       Kayleen Rosser 

       City Secretary 

  

 

 

 

Cop
y



NOTICE OF ELECTRONIC  

PUBLIC HEARING ON 

ZONING AND UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCES 

 

7:00 P.M., JANUARY 25, 2021 

 

The Iowa Colony City Council will hold a public hearing at 7:00 p.m. on January 25, 

2021, by videoconference, pursuant to the Comprehensive Zoning Ordinance and the 

Unified Development Code to consider amending those ordinances concerning the 

Zoning Board of Adjustment and various authorities and procedures. All interested 

persons may be heard concerning this matter. 

 

This hearing will be held by video conference, as authorized by the Governor of Texas 

in response to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Please join this meeting from your computer, tablet, or smartphone at this link: 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84905488162?pwd=ME0waCtCazZEc01NUmNwZVgwcWR

BQT09  

 

Meeting ID: 849 0548 8162 

Passcode: 779137 

You can also dial in using your phone. +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 

(For supported devices, tap a one-touch number below to join instantly.) 

One tap mobile 

+13462487799,,84905488162#,,,,*779137# US (Houston) 

 

       Kayleen Rosser 

       City Secretary 
  
 

 

 

 

Cop
y



 

Proclamation 
 

African American History Month 
February 1 - 28, 2021 

 
 

 

 

WHEREAS, During African American History Month, we celebrate the many achievements and 

contributions made by African Americans to our economic, cultural, spiritual, and political 

development; and 

 
WHEREAS, African American History Month grew out of the establishment, in 1926, of Black 

History Week by Carter G. Woodson and the Association for the Study of African American Life 

and History; and 

 
WHEREAS, the observance of African American History Month calls our attention to the 
continued need to battle racism and build a society that lives up to its democratic ideals; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Iowa Colony continues to work toward becoming an inclusive community 

in which all citizens—past, present, and future—are respected and recognized for their contributions 

and potential contributions to our community, the state, the country, and the world; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Iowa Colony is proud to honor the history and contributions of African 

Americans in our community, throughout our state, and nation. 

 
THEREFORE, I, Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor of the City of Iowa Colony, in recognition of 
these contributions do hereby proclaim the month of February 2021, as: 

 
“AFRICAN AMERICAN HISTORY MONTH” 

 
with the theme, African Americans and the Vote, I encourage the community to observe this month 

with appropriate programs, ceremonies and activities. 
 

Whiteness whereof, I have hereunto set 
my hand and have caused the Official 
Seal of the City of Iowa Colony to be 

affixed this 25h Day of January, 2021 
 
 

 
Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
Mayor, City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

Cop
y



 

 

M E M O R A N D I U M  

 

Date: January 20, 2021 

To: Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 

 City Council Members 

From: Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 

RE: COIC Council Meeting – January 2021 Engineer’s Report  

cc: Ron Cox, Kayleen Rosser 

 

The following is a status report of various engineering items: 

1. TxDOT Overpasses – TxDOT has recently completed the 60% design phase for the overpass at the following roadways: 
Iowa Colony Blvd., Cedar Rapids Parkway, Davenport Parkway and Dubuque Parkway though Iowa Colony. They are also 
building an overpass at County Road 60. 
 
The proposed schedule is completion of engineering design by September 2021. Construction is expected to start 2nd Quarter 
of 2022. We are awaiting confirmation from TxDOT if funding is available for CR 57 and CR 63. This is significant has it will 
provide safe access across SH 288 for the City. 

 
2. Crystal Lagoon- City staff met with the developer for Crystal Lagoon earlier this month to discuss the project design progress 

and planning for the remainder of the site. Staff review included Ron, Kent, Albert, Jim S. and myself. 
 
The layout of the lagoon is now covers approximately 3.3 acres from the originally planned +/- 4.0 acres. The first phase of 
the development will include the lagoon infrastructure and areas reserved for the Community. Phase Two plans include areas 
for an event center and beach area for private use. At this time, there is no plan for public access. However, there are acreage 
for future development at the west side of the reserves along Ames Blvd.  
 
Below is the latest Development Schedule (DRAFT): 
A. Phase One: Groundbreaking for Mass Grading Plan  December 2020 – February 2021 
B. Phase Two: Crystal Lagoon infrastructure construction  February 2021 – November 2021 
C. Phase Three: Amenities Construction     June 2021 – April 2022 
D. Grand Opening:      May 2022 

  
3. AMES ROAD BRIDGE 

 Subject to Environmental Clearance – Expected to start bidding in January 2021. 
 

4. ROADWAY REPAIRS 
 Interlocal with BC Agreement for FY 2020-2021 has been submitted and approved by Commissioners Court. County 

has requested the City to reduce the total mileage to a total of 2 miles. 
 

5. FIBER SERVICE 
 Citywide Service – FastFiber – On hold awaiting legal review. 

 
6. CITY HALL 

 City Hall Renovation – Complete with the exception of the cashier openings.  
 

7. GRANTS 
 We will be submitting the following grants 

Cop
y



Engineer’s Report 
City Council Meeting 01/25/2020 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

i. GLO-CDBG MITIGATION GRANT – HURRICANE HARVEY 
1. Proposed grant will provide for acquisition and funding for a Flood Mitigation Basin 
2. Total Grant funds is estimated to approximately $7.23 mil. 
3. Grant Application submitted. Expect 1st Qtr 2021 determination. 

ii. TWBD- FIF GRANT – 
1. Proposed grant will fund the City first Master Drainage Plan 
2. Total amount will by $300k, of which $150k will be matching funds. 
3. Agreement is on the TWDB Agenda for approval on 12/17/2020. 

 
8. CONSTRUCTION PROJECT STATUS: 

A. MERIDIANA SUBDIVISION – RISE COMMUNITIES 

 Active construction projects 

 Meridiana Commercial Utility and Paving – Awaiting contractor to move in 

 Meridiana Ph 3 Well Site Park – 99% complete. Punchlist items being completed. 
 Merdiana 76A- 99% complete. Punchlist items to be completed. 
 BCMUD 55 MER WWTP Exp to 0.48 MGD- 65% complete. 
 Merdiana 81B- Under construction. 50% complete 

 

B. STERLING LAKES – LAND TEJAS  

 Active construction projects. 
 Sterling Lakes Lift Station Expansion– Complete. Need closeout documents. 
 BCMUD 31 WWTP Expansion Ph IV – Ongoing  @ 90% complete. 
 BCMUD 31 GST Replacement – 100% complete- awaiting closeout documents. 
 BCMUD 31 Trail System – 100% complete. Awaiting final walkthrough. 

 
C. SIERRA VISTA - LAND TEJAS 

 Active construction projects 
 Meridiana Parkway Phase 5 – 95% complete 
 Meridiana Parkway Phase 6 – 95% complete 
 Lane switch on 12/17/2020. Final Completion by January 2021 due to power pole. 
 Karsten Phase IV- 100% complete- awaiting closeout documents. 
 Karsten Blvd North Ph I – 100% complete- awaiting closeout documents. 

 
D. SIERRA VISTA WEST - LAND TEJAS 

 Active construction projects: 
 BCMUD 53 Water Well Plant – Plant is 90% complete. 
 Sierra Vista West Mass Grading and Detention Phase II – 70% complete. 
 BCMUD 53 WWTP- 45% complete. 
 BCMUD 53 Offsite Lift Station – 85% complete. 
 Crystal View Drive Phase III – 80% complete 
 Sierra Vista West Section 4 – 15% 
 Sierra Vista West Section 5 – 0% 

 
E. OTHER CONSTRUCTION PROJECTS 

 AISD H.S. No. 4 – 85% of civil complete 
 

9. OTHER ITEMS: 
A. Baymark Pipeline/ South Texas NGL Pipeline – Crossings 

 
 
 

Cop
y



 

 

M E M O R A N D I U M  

 

Date:  January 5, 2021 

To:  Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen and City Council 

RE:  City Council Meeting January 25, 2021 

 

 Consider amending the Zoning Ordinance and Unified Development Code concerning the Zoning 

Board of Adjustments, Planning and Zoning Commission, and various authorities and procedures.  

 

 Defer action until staff can formulate a revision that: 1. Continues the current ordinance 

requirement for no operation of businesses between midnight and 5 am unless a Specific Use 

Permit is obtained from the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council.  Conditions 

that would support a SUP include: Specific retail and emergency type uses (we will need to 

prepare a specific list of uses), location along Super Arterials of SH  288 and SH 6 and within 

1/2 mile either side of these Super Arterials, and location with frontage along a Major Arterial, 

Minor Arterial or Major Collector as designated by the Major Thoroughfare Plan. 
 

 Consider a variance to the zoning ordinance allowing for 24-hour sales at a convenient store located 

at the northeast corner of the Highway 288 access road and Meridiana Parkway. 
 

 The variance request was recommended for approval to City Council by the Planning and 

Zoning Commission.  

 

 Consider a variance request to the UDC regarding transparency and building setback lines for a 

building located at 2944/2942 Meridiana Parkway.  

 

 On the variance request for 2942/2944 Meridiana Parkway to allow the interpretation of the 

65% transparency regulation to mean 65% of the linear building frontage to be transparent on 

the sides of the building facing Merdiana Parkway and Sierra Vista Boulevard and to allow the 

build-to line along Meridiana Parkway to be measured from the 35 feet wide pipeline easement 

adjacent to Meridiana Parkway ROW.  Planning and Zoning Commission recommended 

approval of the variance to City Council. 

 

 Consider amending the plan of development for Sierra Vista 

 

 Planning and Zoning Commission considered and recommended City Council approval with 

the removal of the multi-family residential section of the agreement per Kent’s amended LOR. 

This item was then deferred back to the planning and zoning commission for the February 

meeting per the developer.  

 

 

 

Cop
y



 

 

 Consider approval for Sierra Vista Section 8 Preliminary Plat, subject to approval of the amendment 

to the plan of development.  

 

  The applicant asked for a deferral until the next Planning and Zoning Commission meeting (in 

February) to allow the applicant time to address the rental issue raised by the Planning and 

Zoning Commission. 

 

 

 

 

Signed by:  

 

 

 

______________________________ 

David Hurst, Chairman 

 

 

Cop
y



  
 

 

 

 

MONTHLY REPORT- DECEMBER 2020 

 

January 20, 2021 
 
Mayor and Council, 
 
See December 2020 monthly report for both the Building Department and Fire Marshal’s Office below.  
 
Building Department 

 
Inspections Conducted- 

 
Building Inspections-  502 
Plumbing Inspections - 424 
Mechanical Inspections- 194 
Electrical Inspections-  326 
 
  Total-  1466 

 
Total Fees Collected- 

  
Initial Fees-   $180,901,90 
Re- Inspection Fees-  $3400.00 
Convenience Fee-  $249.24 
 
  Total-  $184,551.14 

 

Fire Marshal 

 
During the fireworks season I patrolled the city to endure that fireworks were not being discharged and or possessed in the 
city.  I made one stop off Kiowa in the Mobile Home District to someone discharging fireworks, a warning was issued and I 
explained the city ordinance.   
 
No other information to report. 
  
Thanks, 
 

Albert Cantu 
Albert Cantu, 
Fire Marshal/Building Official 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony Tx. 77583 
Phone: 281-369-2471 
Fax: 281-369-0005 
www.iowacolonytx.gov 
 
 

 
 

 

Cop
y



AW3-2a 
Prescribed by Secretary of State 
Section 141.040, Texas Election Code 
11/2020 

 

NOTICE OF DEADLINE TO FILE AN APPLICATION FOR PLACE ON THE BALLOT 

(AVISO DE FECHA LÍMITE PARA PRESENTAR UNA SOLICITUD PARA UN LUGAR EN LA BOLETA) 
 

Notice is hereby given that an application for a place on the                     City of Iowa Colony             
(name of political subdivision/party) 

 

Regular/Special/Primary Election ballot may be filed during the following time:   Mon-Thurs 8:00 a.m-5:00 p.m. and        

(Circle one)                                                                                                           Friday 8:00 a.m - 12:00 p.m.                                                                                                                     

 
(Se da aviso por la presente que una solicitud para un lugar en la boleta de la Elección 

 
Regular/Especial/Primaria de              Ciudad de Iowa Colony                               se pueden presentar 

(marcar una con círculo)                     (nombre de la subdivisión política/partido) 

 

durante el siguiente horario:   lunes - jueves 8:00 a.m - 5:00 p.m. y viernes 8:00 a.m - 12:00 p.m.                                                                               

 
Filing Dates and Times: 

(Fechas y Horario para Entregar Solicitudes) 
 

Start Date:  1/13/21 

(Fecha Inicio) 

End Date: 2/12/21 by 5:00 p.m.  

(Fecha Limite)                       

 

Office Hours: Mon-Thurs 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 p.m. and Fri 8:00 a.m. - 12:00 p.m.        

(Horario de la Oficina) 
 

 
 
Physical address for filing an application in person for place on the ballot: 
(Dirección a física para presentar una solicitud en persona para un lugar en la boleta) 

 
 Iowa Colony City Hall 
 12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
 Iowa Colony, Texas 77583 
 

Address to mail an application for place on the ballot (if filing by mail): 
(Dirección a donde enviar una solicitud para un lugar en la boleta (en caso de presentar por correo)) 

 
        Iowa Colony City Hall 
        Attn: Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 
        12003 Iowa Colony Blvd.  
        Iowa Colony, Texas 77583 

 
Email or Fax Number to send an application for place on the ballot: krosser@iowacolonytx.gov 
(Dirección de correo electrónico o número de fax para enviar una solicitud para un lugar en la boleta) 

 

 
 
                       /s/ Kayleen Rosser       Kayleen Rosser 
 

Signature of Filing Officer                                    Printed Name of Filing Officer 
(Nombre en letra de molde del Oficial de Archivos)          (Firma del Oficial de Archivos) 

 

 
 12/14/2020 

 
Date Posted 
(Fecha archivada) 

Cop
y



Dec 31, 20

ASSETS 0.00

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Equity

Baymark Pipleine LLC
Baymark P - Engr/Inspctn/Legal 22,310.42
Baymark Pipleine LLC - Other 183,037.50

Total Baymark Pipleine LLC 205,347.92

Bond 1 - Series 2020 1,203,980.00
Cherry Crushed Concrete 23,200.00
Early Plat- SVW Section 3 -0.01
Formosa/Lav pipeline-TRC 10,826.04
M2E3/EnterprisePipeline 5,466.76
Meridiana Escrow 4,615.00
Old Airline Market- Axis Dev. 207.50
Sierra Vista- Land Tejas 54,232.55
Sierra Vista West- Land Tejas 44,967.37
South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC

South TX NGL -Engr/Inspct/Legal 22,797.93
South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC - Other 183,622.50

Total South Texas NGL Pipeline, LLC 206,420.43

Sterling Lakes - Land Tejas 1,005.34
1002401 · Capital Contribution-CR 64 1,731,000.00
1002406 · Earlt Platting Escrow Sec. 13 -0.01
1002501 · Property Delq Tax - TIF 100% 3,159.70
1002502 · Property Tax TIF-100% -105,691.73
1003600 · Opening Balance Equity 753,437.07
1003601 · Retained Earnings -95,189.00

Total Equity 4,046,984.93

TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 4,046,984.93

3:20 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Balance Sheet
Accrual Basis As of December 31, 2020

Page 1

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

Income
4100 · GENERAL REVENUE

4109 · Mixed Beverage Tax 158.47 2,000.00 -1,841.53 7.9%
4110 · City Sales Tax 92,055.60 350,000.00 -257,944.40 26.3%
4120 · Property Tax 1,364,231.47 1,164,165.53 200,065.94 117.2%
4121 · Delinquent Property Tax 10,386.65 35,000.00 -24,613.35 29.7%
4130 · Property Tax - TIF - 70% 542,080.43 0.00 542,080.43 100.0%
4131 · Delinquent Tax - TIF - 70% -366.82 0.00 -366.82 100.0%
4132 · City Property TIF 30% 232,320.21 0.00 232,320.21 100.0%
4133 · City Property Deliquent TIF 30% -157.21 0.00 -157.21 100.0%
4134 · Intermodel Ship. Container 891.00 2,000.00 -1,109.00 44.6%

Total 4100 · GENERAL REVENUE 2,241,599.80 1,553,165.53 688,434.27 144.3%

4122 · OTHER REVENUE
4124 · Accident Reports 35.00 0.00 35.00 100.0%
4126 · MUD 31 Annexation

MUD 31 Pub. Safety Contr. 0.00 250,000.00 -250,000.00 0.0%
MUD 32 Pub. Safety Contr. 0.00 250,000.00 -250,000.00 0.0%

Total 4126 · MUD 31 Annexation 0.00 500,000.00 -500,000.00 0.0%

4122 · OTHER REVENUE - Other 2,256.23 0.00 2,256.23 100.0%

Total 4122 · OTHER REVENUE 2,291.23 500,000.00 -497,708.77 0.5%

4125 · Arrest Fees 13.92 0.00 13.92 100.0%
4200 · BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION PERMITS

4201 · Building Construction Permits 458,318.54 1,375,000.00 -916,681.46 33.3%
4202 · Trade Fees 7,308.60 40,000.00 -32,691.40 18.3%
4203 · Reinspection Fees 9,925.00 25,000.00 -15,075.00 39.7%
4204 · Signs 100.00 2,500.00 -2,400.00 4.0%
4205 · Misc Permits 1,506.10 1,000.00 506.10 150.6%
4206 · Dirt Work Permits 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
4207 · Driveway Permits 1,000.00 3,000.00 -2,000.00 33.3%
4210 · Culvert Permit 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
4211 · Commercial Vehicle Permit 500.00 3,000.00 -2,500.00 16.7%
4212 · Park Use Permit 30.00

Total 4200 · BUILDING & CONSTRUCTION PERMITS 478,688.24 1,452,000.00 -973,311.76 33.0%

4300 · PLAT FEES
4301 · Preliminary Plat Fees 4,710.00 75,000.00 -70,290.00 6.3%
4302 · Final Plat Fees 0.00 40,000.00 -40,000.00 0.0%
4303 · Abbreviated Plat Fees 1,500.00 2,000.00 -500.00 75.0%
4304 · Plat Re-Check Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4305 · Admin Fee- Early Plat Recording 0.00 300,000.00 -300,000.00 0.0%

Total 4300 · PLAT FEES 6,210.00 417,000.00 -410,790.00 1.5%

4400 · ENGINEERING FEES
4401 · Infastructure Plan Review Fee 5,476.45 150,000.00 -144,523.55 3.7%
4402 · Recheck Fee 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4403 · Civil Site Plan Review Fee 57,239.13 300,000.00 -242,760.87 19.1%

Total 4400 · ENGINEERING FEES 62,715.58 450,000.00 -387,284.42 13.9%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 1

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

4500 · ZONING FEES
4501 · Rezoning Fees 0.00 3,000.00 -3,000.00 0.0%
4502 · Misc Zoning Fees 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
4503 · Specific Use Permit 0.00 2,000.00 -2,000.00 0.0%

Total 4500 · ZONING FEES 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

4600 · FRANCHISE
4601 · Franchise Tax - Electric 0.00 110,000.00 -110,000.00 0.0%
4602 · Franchise Tax - Gas 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%
4603 · Telecomunications Fee-Sales Tax 84.53 10,000.00 -9,915.47 0.8%
4600 · FRANCHISE - Other 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 4600 · FRANCHISE 84.53 140,000.00 -139,915.47 0.1%

4700 · CITATIONS
4701 · Citations / Warrants 93,007.55 200,000.00 -106,992.45 46.5%
4702 · Deliquent Court Collection 465.00 5,000.00 -4,535.00 9.3%
4703 · Court Security Fee 1,322.26 2,000.00 -677.74 66.1%
4704 · Court Technology Fee 1,646.89 2,500.00 -853.11 65.9%
4700 · CITATIONS - Other 241.00

Total 4700 · CITATIONS 96,682.70 209,500.00 -112,817.30 46.1%

4800 · SPECIAL FUNDS
4803 · Miscellaneous Grants 5,920.50
4805 · Park Reserves 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%

Total 4800 · SPECIAL FUNDS 5,920.50 35,000.00 -29,079.50 16.9%

4900 · INVESTMENT INCOME
4910 · Interest Income 25.19 1,000.00 -974.81 2.5%

Total 4900 · INVESTMENT INCOME 25.19 1,000.00 -974.81 2.5%

Total Income 2,894,231.69 4,762,665.53 -1,868,433.84 60.8%

Gross Profit 2,894,231.69 4,762,665.53 -1,868,433.84 60.8%

Expense
UNKNOWN EXPENSE

1105110 · Payroll Expenses 206.63 0.00 206.63 100.0%

Total UNKNOWN EXPENSE 206.63 0.00 206.63 100.0%

10 · ADMINISTRATION
10-5111 · Payroll - City Secretary 13,875.00 62,831.00 -48,956.00 22.1%
10-5112 · Payroll - Clerk 0.00 17,680.00 -17,680.00 0.0%
10-5113 · Payroll-City Manager 13,210.19 100,000.00 -86,789.81 13.2%
10-5114 · Merit pool (For all employees) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5115 · Payroll Clerk - Overtime 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5120 · Payroll Taxes 1,075.20 13,248.88 -12,173.68 8.1%
10-5127 · TMRS 2,031.33 18,202.06 -16,170.73 11.2%
10-5130 · Texas Workforce Commission 0.00 486.00 -486.00 0.0%
10-5132 · Insurance - Health 0.00 11,660.00 -11,660.00 0.0%
10-5200 · Professional Services 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5210 · Legal Delinquent Citations 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5211 · Legal 6,402.40 100,000.00 -93,597.60 6.4%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 2

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

10-5212 · Audit 3,218.00 22,000.00 -18,782.00 14.6%
10-5213 · Tax Appraisal & Collection 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5219 · Management Professional Service 5,816.50 10,000.00 -4,183.50 58.2%
10-5220 · Website - Professional

Website Domain 34.99 400.00 -365.01 8.7%
10-5220 · Website - Professional - Other 2,500.00 5,500.00 -3,000.00 45.5%

Total 10-5220 · Website - Professional 2,534.99 5,900.00 -3,365.01 43.0%

10-5227 · Hosting BCCA Meeting 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5228 · Property Taxes Collection Fee 0.00 7,000.00 -7,000.00 0.0%
10-5229 · BCAD Fee 4,614.75 6,000.00 -1,385.25 76.9%
10-5240 · Building Maintenance

Prof Cleaning Services 3,150.00
10-5240 · Building Maintenance - Other 4,348.31 50,000.00 -45,651.69 8.7%

Total 10-5240 · Building Maintenance 7,498.31 50,000.00 -42,501.69 15.0%

10-5245 · Technology 4,165.89 16,000.00 -11,834.11 26.0%
10-5246 · Software Maintenance / License 2,735.15 7,500.00 -4,764.85 36.5%
10-5250 · Utilities 992.97 9,000.00 -8,007.03 11.0%
10-5260 · Equipment Rentals 807.55 3,000.00 -2,192.45 26.9%
10-5320 · Supplies / Printing 1,544.43 12,000.00 -10,455.57 12.9%
10-5321 · Postage 79.60 750.00 -670.40 10.6%
10-5322 · Advertising & Legal Notices 1,948.91 5,000.00 -3,051.09 39.0%
10-5323 · Telephone Expense 5,062.56 10,000.00 -4,937.44 50.6%
10-5325 · Miscellaneous 562.79 0.00 562.79 100.0%
10-5326 · Well Permit Fee 0.00 30.00 -30.00 0.0%
10-5411 · Travel & Training 700.00 2,400.00 -1,700.00 29.2%
10-5412 · Seminars/BCCA 0.00 1,200.00 -1,200.00 0.0%
10-5439 · Election Costs 2,061.94 8,000.00 -5,938.06 25.8%
10-5481 · Mayor's Special Expense 26.82 1,500.00 -1,473.18 1.8%
10-5495 · Dues 200.00 2,000.00 -1,800.00 10.0%
10-5630 · Equipment 1,732.15 500.00 1,232.15 346.4%
10-5710 · Insurance - Windstorm 455.50 7,500.00 -7,044.50 6.1%
10-5720 · Insurance - Liability/Prop/ WC 3,529.75 20,000.00 -16,470.25 17.6%
10-5721 · Bank Fees 0.00 100.00 -100.00 0.0%
10-5722 · credit card fees 402.82 4,000.00 -3,597.18 10.1%
10-5723 · Certificate Pay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10-5724 · Longevity PAy 180.00 240.00 -60.00 75.0%
10-5725 · Grant Admin 0.00 15,000.00 -15,000.00 0.0%
5113 · Payroll - Office Manager 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
10 · ADMINISTRATION - Other 4,863.05

Total 10 · ADMINISTRATION 92,328.55 550,727.94 -458,399.39 16.8%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 3

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

15 · FINANCE
15-5112 · Payroll - Senior Accountant 17,500.02 70,004.00 -52,503.98 25.0%
15-5127 · TMRS 2,562.01 7,357.42 -4,795.41 34.8%
15-5128 · FICA 1,299.01 5,355.31 -4,056.30 24.3%
15-5129 · TWC 0.00 162.00 -162.00 0.0%
15-5130 · WC 0.00 3,052.00 -3,052.00 0.0%
15-5132 · Health Insurance 1,363.20 5,830.00 -4,466.80 23.4%
15-5320 · Supplies/Printing 127.79 2,000.00 -1,872.21 6.4%
15-5321 · Postage 38.90 200.00 -161.10 19.5%
15-5410 · Technology 294.89 8,000.00 -7,705.11 3.7%
15-5411 · Training & Travel 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
15-5495 · Dues 0.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 0.0%
15-5630 · Equipment 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
15-5723 · Certificate Pay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
15-5724 · Longevity Pay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%

Total 15 · FINANCE 23,185.82 109,460.73 -86,274.91 21.2%

20 · POLICE DEPARTMENT
20-5112 · Payroll - Police Chief 24,870.66 99,495.00 -74,624.34 25.0%
20-5113 · Payroll - Full Time Officer 95,156.41 490,614.50 -395,458.09 19.4%
20-5114 · Telecommunications Operator 0.00 17,680.00 -17,680.00 0.0%
20-5115 · Humane/Code Enf. Officer 9,628.50 41,600.00 -31,971.50 23.1%
20-5125 · Payroll - Overtime 4,384.07 10,000.00 -5,615.93 43.8%
20-5126 · Professional Services 75.00 7,000.00 -6,925.00 1.1%
20-5127 · TMRS 22,142.19 73,810.63 -51,668.44 30.0%
20-5128 · FICA 8,766.99 53,725.15 -44,958.16 16.3%
20-5129 · TWC 228.72 2,106.00 -1,877.28 10.9%
20-5130 · WC 0.00 28,313.38 -28,313.38 0.0%
20-5131 · Certification Pay 3,553.83 42,100.00 -38,546.17 8.4%
20-5132 · Health Insurance 10,485.56 69,960.00 -59,474.44 15.0%
20-5320 · Supplies & Printing 572.85 3,500.00 -2,927.15 16.4%
20-5321 · Postage 26.95 100.00 -73.05 27.0%
20-5322 · Recruiting and Hiring Expenses 539.16 1,500.00 -960.84 35.9%
20-5324 · Cell Phone 1,528.00 7,000.00 -5,472.00 21.8%
20-5325 · Miscellaneous 777.96 4,900.00 -4,122.04 15.9%
20-5326 · Uniforms 2,302.83 7,500.00 -5,197.17 30.7%
20-5327 · Charitable 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5410 · Technology 2,220.14 18,000.00 -15,779.86 12.3%
20-5411 · Travel & Training 187.99 5,000.00 -4,812.01 3.8%
20-5412 · Radio Service 3,258.00 3,300.00 -42.00 98.7%
20-5413 · Radio Equipment 459.80 2,000.00 -1,540.20 23.0%
20-5415 · Building Maintenance 1,605.45 2,600.00 -994.55 61.7%
20-5450 · Vehicle Equipment -869.00 5,000.00 -5,869.00 -17.4%
20-5495 · Association Dues 368.88 1,000.00 -631.12 36.9%
20-5496 · Dues - TCLDS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
20-5497 · Animal Control 525.00 2,000.00 -1,475.00 26.3%
20-5498 · Hospital Expense - Suspects 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
20-5499 · Investigations 308.00 2,900.00 -2,592.00 10.6%
20-5724 · Longevity Pay 300.00 300.00 0.00 100.0%
20-5810 · Vehicle Insurance 2,256.50 5,000.00 -2,743.50 45.1%
20-5820 · Vehicle Repairs & Maint 844.53 13,000.00 -12,155.47 6.5%
20-5830 · Fuel 5,052.62 30,000.00 -24,947.38 16.8%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 4

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

20-5840 · Equipment 790.87 10,000.00 -9,209.13 7.9%
20-5850 · Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00 47,200.00 -47,200.00 0.0%

Total 20 · POLICE DEPARTMENT 202,348.46 1,109,204.66 -906,856.20 18.2%

25 · MUNICIPAL COURT
25-5112 · Payroll- Municipal Court Clerk 9,471.05 45,001.00 -35,529.95 21.0%
25-5125 · Payroll - Clerk Overtime 1,641.42 2,500.00 -858.58 65.7%
25-5127 · TMRS 2,002.94 5,118.48 -3,115.54 39.1%
25-5128 · FICA 719.12 3,725.63 -3,006.51 19.3%
25-5129 · TWC 0.00 162.00 -162.00 0.0%
25-5130 · WC 0.00 1,962.04 -1,962.04 0.0%
25-5131 · Certification Pay 323.05 1,200.00 -876.95 26.9%
25-5132 · Health Insurance 1,317.17 5,830.00 -4,512.83 22.6%
25-5210 · Legal Delinquent Citations 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%
25-5216 · Judge Court Fees 4,812.50 25,000.00 -20,187.50 19.3%
25-5217 · Prosecutor Fees 17,012.50 35,500.00 -18,487.50 47.9%
25-5218 · Interperter 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
25-5219 · Professional Services - Muni Co 11,900.00 10,000.00 1,900.00 119.0%
25-5222 · Court Security Exp. 558.61
25-5315 · Payroll - Clerk 670.53 0.00 670.53 100.0%
25-5321 · Postage 27.80 500.00 -472.20 5.6%
25-5411 · Travel & Training 0.00 1,000.00 -1,000.00 0.0%
25-5414 · Jury Trial Expense 0.00 1,500.00 -1,500.00 0.0%
25-5415 · State Criminal Cost & Fees 37,262.38 80,000.00 -42,737.62 46.6%
25-5500 · Supplies & Equipment 167.64 4,200.00 -4,032.36 4.0%
25-5730 · Contract Services 4,690.00 4,735.12 -45.12 99.0%

Total 25 · MUNICIPAL COURT 92,576.71 234,434.27 -141,857.56 39.5%

30 · PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT
30-5115 · Payroll - Public Works 12,691.20 55,000.00 -42,308.80 23.1%
30-5125 · Payroll - Public Works Overtime 481.88 2,000.00 -1,518.12 24.1%
30-5127 · TMRS 2,254.19 5,990.70 -3,736.51 37.6%
30-5128 · FICA 789.71 4,600.00 -3,810.29 17.2%
30-5129 · TWC 0.00 162.00 -162.00 0.0%
30-5130 · WC 0.00 2,400.00 -2,400.00 0.0%
30-5131 · Certification Pay 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
30-5132 · Health Insurance 1,317.17 5,830.00 -4,512.83 22.6%
30-5320 · Supplies 834.43 7,440.00 -6,605.57 11.2%
30-5326 · Uniforms 10.81
30-5451 · Roads./ Bridges/ Drainage 3,727.00 325,000.00 -321,273.00 1.1%
30-5452 · Mowing Roads 21,200.00 60,000.00 -38,800.00 35.3%
30-5454 · Bridge Replacement 0.00 30,000.00 -30,000.00 0.0%
30-5455 · Signs & Postings 2,549.51 8,000.00 -5,450.49 31.9%
30-5456 · Public Works Maintenance 2,685.74 25,000.00 -22,314.26 10.7%
30-5461 · Park Improvements 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%
30-5462 · Park Maintenance 11,304.37 70,000.00 -58,695.63 16.1%
30-5810 · Vehicle Insurance 270.00
30-5820 · Vehicle Repairs & Maint 770.93 6,800.00 -6,029.07 11.3%
30-5830 · Fuel 518.38 5,000.00 -4,481.62 10.4%
30-5840 · Equipment 14,747.27 24,000.00 -9,252.73 61.4%
30-5850 · Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%
30-5860 · ROW Maintenance 0.00 5,000.00 -5,000.00 0.0%

Total 30 · PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 76,152.59 680,722.70 -604,570.11 11.2%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 5

Cop
y



Oct - Dec 20 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget

35 · COMMUNITY SERVICES
35-5111 · Payroll-Building Official 12,916.68 80,000.00 -67,083.32 16.1%
35-5112 · Payroll-Permits Clerk 9,240.00 40,040.00 -30,800.00 23.1%
35-5125 · Payroll-Clerk Overtime 573.75 1,500.00 -926.25 38.3%
35-5127 · TMRS 3,547.29 12,773.85 -9,226.56 27.8%
35-5128 · FICA 1,546.08 9,297.81 -7,751.73 16.6%
35-5129 · TWC 144.00 324.00 -180.00 44.4%
35-5130 · WC 0.00 5,234.05 -5,234.05 0.0%
35-5131 · Certification Pay 0.00 480.00 -480.00 0.0%
35-5132 · Health Insurance 2,831.83 8,745.00 -5,913.17 32.4%
35-5212 · Early Platting Escrow Exp. INV 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
35-5214 · Engineering Services

35-5216 · Platting 4,968.00 150,000.00 -145,032.00 3.3%
35-5217 · Plan Review 5,228.06 100,000.00 -94,771.94 5.2%
35-5218 · Permits/Inspections 53,730.18 195,000.00 -141,269.82 27.6%
35-5214 · Engineering Services - Other 17,043.65 80,000.00 -62,956.35 21.3%

Total 35-5214 · Engineering Services 80,969.89 525,000.00 -444,030.11 15.4%

35-5215 · Building Inspector Fees 149,479.19 295,500.00 -146,020.81 50.6%
35-5219 · Professional Services - Plannin 6,604.68 85,000.00 -78,395.32 7.8%
35-5220 · TIF Fund (70% of TIF revenue t 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
35-5221 · ICVFD Contract Services/Equip 0.00 6,000.00 -6,000.00 0.0%
35-5246 · Software Subscription/License 2,156.78
35-5320 · Supplies 1,116.25
35-5326 · Uniforms 1,467.64
35-5455 · Signage & Postings 0.00 4,000.00 -4,000.00 0.0%
35-5722 · Credit Card Fees 6,529.02 10,000.00 -3,470.98 65.3%
35-5724 · Longevity Pay 120.00 240.00 -120.00 50.0%
35-5820 · Vehicle Repairs & Maint 1,221.39
35-5830 · Fuel 151.08
35-5840 · Equipment 4,120.98
35-5850 · Vehicle Replacement Fund 0.00 3,500.00 -3,500.00 0.0%

Total 35 · COMMUNITY SERVICES 284,736.53 1,087,634.71 -802,898.18 26.2%

90 · CAPITAL AND PLANNING PROJECTS
Parking and Storage Lot 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
Public Safety Building Reserve 0.00 500,000.00 -500,000.00 0.0%
Purchase of Prop. Next to CH 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.0%
990 · Contingency 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%
991 · PD - Vehicle 0.00 35,000.00 -35,000.00 0.0%
992 · PW Loader/Backhoe/Brush Truck 0.00 20,000.00 -20,000.00 0.0%
993 · Planning Projects 8,250.00 200,000.00 -191,750.00 4.1%
90 · CAPITAL AND PLANNING PROJECTS - Other 0.00 175,000.00 -175,000.00 0.0%

Total 90 · CAPITAL AND PLANNING PROJECTS 8,250.00 965,000.00 -956,750.00 0.9%

Total Expense 779,785.29 4,737,185.01 -3,957,399.72 16.5%

Net Income 2,114,446.40 25,480.52 2,088,965.88 8,298.3%

3:18 PM City of Iowa Colony

01/14/21 Profit & Loss Budget vs. Actual
Accrual Basis October through December 2020

Page 6

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION

A SIGNAGE

1 county road 67@brister Rd

2 county road 67@brister Rd

3 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

4 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

5 Davenport @ Ames

6 Davenport @ Ames

7 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

8 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

9 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

10 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd

11 Dubuque

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 7347 County Rd 48

2 Iowa Colony and Oak St intersection on east side

3 Iowa Colony (north side of rail road tracks)

4 9614 Iowa Colony Blvd 

5 Brister Pkwy and Iowa colony (next to white fence)

6 Bullard Pkwy going east (288 to Pursley)

7 CR 79 (Bullard Pkwy to Cedar Rapids Pkwy)

8 Sophie Mary

9 8703 Pursley Blvd

10 Pursley Blvd (Davenport to CR 181)

11 Ames Blvd. (from CR62 to Meridiana pkwy)

12 N. Karsten blvd. (from Cedar Rapids to CR 81)

13

14

Cop
y



15

16

17

18

19

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1 Iowa Colony Blvd -County Rd 48"  going south

2 7341 County Rd 48

3 Iowa Colony Blvd going north 

4 Iowa Colony Blvd

5 11730 Iowa Colony Blvd

6 FCR 78 going east (Iowa Colony Blvd to CR 79)

7 FCR 380 (FCR 79 going east to Pursley Blvd)

8 CR 57 and Cedar Rapids Pkwy (288 to CR 80)

9 Bullard Pkwy going east (288 to Pursley)

10 CR 79 (Bullard Pkwy to Cedar Rapids Pkwy)

11 Sophie Mary

12 Davenport (east of 288)

13 CR 62 (east of 288)

14 3750 CR 61

15 Cedar Rapids, west 288

16 Karsten Blvd. (CR 383)

D. STREET REPAIRS

1 Bullard Pkwy and Iowa Colony intersection , south bound

2 3750 CR 61

3 11914 CR 439

4 CR 62 west 288 to CR 685

5 CR 685

6 CR 382

7 Ruth road

8 CR 57

9 Ceder Rapids pkwy by Bayou Rifles

E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1 Sophie Mary

Ditch Drainage issue

1 2206 Davenport Pkwy 

Cop
y



Miscellaneous Works 

1 City Hall 

2 City Hall 

3 Meridiana Park 

4 Meridiana Park 

5 City Hall 

Cop
y



DESCRIPTION

Replaced post 

Replaced 45 m.p.h sign

striaghting  45 M.P.H sign 

Replaced Stop Sign Ahead

Straighting Truck Sign

Straighting Stop Sign 

Replace  45 M.P.H  sign

Replace  45 M.P.H   post 

Straighting 45 M.P.H post 

Straighting Stop Ahead Sign 

Straighting Stop Sign 

Remove tree from ditch

Remove electric wooden pole

Remove chairs and tires 

Remove wooden pole from ditch

Remove tree from side of road

Remove existing culverts 

Remove trash from ditch 

Remove branches from ditch

Remove tree limbs in ditch

Remove branches from ditch

Remove tree branch from ditch

Remove mattress, tree branch and trash

Cop
y



Mow ditch of west side 

Tree needs to be trimmed 

Mow ditch on east side

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed on both sides

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed on both sides and trees trimmed

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and cleaned (both sides)

Ditch needs to be mowed and trees trimmed (both sides)

Tree trimming and removal

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Fix pot holes

Tie loose cable on power line pole

Ditches not Draining 

Cop
y



Put new soap dispenser in restrooms 

Put new plug covers in the office 

Need New Nets on Basketball Goals 

put new trash can by the lake 

Added a light to the storage room 

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Sign been hit for a sec time Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Frontier and Centerpoint are aware of the pole Done

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

Frontier and Centerpoint are aware of the pole Done

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

Done

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

need to find someone to pick this up  and new Budget

Cop
y



Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

send email to the county Done

Done

Ditch south from  Ames Blvd to hayes Creek  needs to be Cleaned 

Cop
y



Done 

Done 

Done 

Done 

Done 

Cop
y



DATE COMPLETED

8/10/2020

8/10/2020

8/12/2020

8/12/2020

8/27/2020

8/27/2020

8/27/2020

8/27/2020

8/27/2020

8/31/2020

8/31/2020

8/27/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/31/2020

Cop
y



8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/5/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/4/2020

8/25/2020

8/4/2020

Cop
y



8/3/2020

8/3/2020

8/4/2020

8/6/2020

8/7/2020

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION

A SIGNAGE DESCRIPTION

1 Pasteur @Humboldt Straighten Post 

2 Pasteur @Carson Need Signs

3 Carson Ln @Lister Dr Straighten Post 

4 Carson ln @Humboldt Straighten Post 

5 Earle Ct @Humboldt Straighten Post 

6 Whitman Dr @Faulkner Trl Straighten Post 

7 Thoreau Dr @ Faulkner Trl Straighten Post 

8 Discovery Dr @Thoreau Dr Straighten Post 

9 Newton ln @Discovery Dr Straighten Post 

10 Meridiana Pkwy @Discovery Straighten Post 

11 Drake  st @Armstrong Dr Straighten Post 

12 Drake st @ Aldrin Dr Straighten Post 

13 Bauhaus Dr@ Iowa colony Blvd Straighten Post 

14 Ocean Dr @Lake ct Straighten Post 

15 Bauhaus Dr @Armstorng Dr Straighten Post 

16 Brazoria 524C country Straighten Post 

17 City Hall Remove sign

18 N. Iowa Colony Blvd Reset School Zone lights

19 W. CR56 Reset School Zone lights

20 S.Iowa Colony Blvd Reset School Zone lights

21 E.Cr56 Reset School Zone lights

22 N. Iowa Colony Blvd replace School Zone times

23 Meridiana Elementry school replace School Zone times

24 Iowa Colony Blvd@Bavenport Pkwy Took down

25 Iowa Colony Blvd@Duduque pkwy Took down

26 Duduque pkwy@Iowa Colony Blvd Took down

27

28

29

30

31

B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 Bullard Rd @288 Pick up TV

2 Stevens Rd @288 Pick up Refrigerator

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Cop
y



14

15

16

17

18

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING
1 Iowa Colony All right of way 

2 City Hall Mow grass at City Hall

3 City Park Mow the baseball Field

4 City Park Mow the field behind baseball field 

5 City Park Water Leak

6 Cedar Rapids @288 Pick up limbs

7 824B Pick up limbs

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

D. STREET REPAIRS
1 Iowa Colony bvld Pot hole 

2 2930 Cedar Rapids pkwy@Ruth rd Pot holes

3 9540 Ruth to Cedar Rapids pkwy Pot Holes

4

5

6

7

8

9

E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1 3522 CASSINI DR Street light out 

Ditch Drainage issue

Cop
y



Miscellaneous Works 

1 City Hall Toliet paper holder

2 City Hall New Lock 

3 City Hall Clean up 

4 City Park Replace the cushing on Volleyball nets

5

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS

Done

Need to order this Signs for address Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Stop Sign Done

Street Markers Done

Yield sign Done

Lions Club Done

Meridiana Elementry Done

Meridiana Elementry Done

Meridiana Elementry Done

Meridiana Elementry Done

replace times to reflect new time change Done

replace times to reflect new time change Done

No Center Stripe lane sign Done

No Center Stripe lane sign Done

No Center Stripe lane sign Done

Done

Done

Cop
y



done

done

done

done

Done

done

Done

Put up cones for the hole til we can get a plate to put over it Done

sent an email to the County to fix Done

sent an email to the County to fix Done

Done

Cop
y



Done

Done

Done

Done

Cop
y



DATE COMPLETED

9/1/2020

9/3/2020

9/1/2020

9/1/2020

9/1/2020

9/3/2020

9/3/2020

9/3/2020

9/2/2020

9/2/2020

9/4/2020

9/4/2020

9/4/2020

9/3/2020

9/4/2020

9/4/2020

9/14/2020

9/10/2020

9/10/2020

9/10/2020

9/10/2020

9/15/2020

9/15/2020

9/15/2020

9/15/2020

9/15/2020

9/17/2020

9/17/2020

Cop
y



9/14/2020

9/17/2020

9/16/2020

9/17/2020

9/18/2020

9/21/2020

9/21/2020

9/14/2020

9/22/2020

9/22/2020

9/10/2020

Cop
y



9/10/2020

9/10/2020

9/11/2020

9/17/2020

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION

A SIGNAGE DESCRIPTION

1 Bauhaus Dr. Need a no outlet added

2 CR 56 @ Iowa Colony Blvd. put in new batteries on school zone

3 Pursley Blvd@ Bullard Pkwy straighten street marker

4 iowa colony blvd S. replace school zone sign

5 Manvel dr.@ Meridiana Pkwy replace sign to Pursley Blvd.@ Meridiana Pkwy

6 Emerald Stone@ Red Garnet Remove the pole 

7 Red Garnet @ Paradise add Emerald Stone to the top of with arrows

8 Emerald Stone Fix hole left behind

9 Emerald Stone grass lost

10 iowa colony blvd S. School Zone Light 

11 Iowa Colony Blvd N. School Zone Light 

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 383 Trash 

2  9631 Carson Ln. Mud in front of home 

3 CR48 @288 Pick up Mattresses

4 Cr 48 @ highway 6 Pick up Fence panels

5 9540 Ruth Rd removal of a tree stump

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

Cop
y



13

14

15

16

17

18

19

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1 CR 380@ Pursley Cut back trees 

2 Pursley Blvd @Bullard Pkwy Cut back trees 

3 FCR 78@FCR 79 Cut back trees 

4 Cedar Rapids pkwy @Iowa colony blvd Cut back trees 

5 8150 Pursley Blvd Cut back trees 

6 Iowa Colony bvld @CR56 Cut back trees 

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

D. STREET REPAIRS

1 3730 Arpa cleaning of mud on street

2 CR 48 W. of Highway 6 Pot Hole 

3 Bullard PKWY@pursley Blvd Pot Hole 

4 8122 Pursley Blvd Pot Hole 

5 8134 Pursley Blvd Pot Hole 

6 8150 Pursley Blvd Pot Hole 

7 Iowa Colony blvd move died animal out of the street

8 9631 Carson Ln water not draining 

9

E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1

Ditch Drainage issue

1 9540 Ruth Rd Reset on Covers

2 8700 Cactus Ln Clean out the ditches 

3 9631 Carson Ln mud and standing water in front of the home 

4 3630 lister Dr @carson ln clean staning water with mud 

5 3402 Lake Ct clean staning water with mud 

Cop
y



6 2538 CR 64 grade ditch need to be done

7 2534 CR 64 grade ditch need to be done

8 2530 CR 64 grade ditch need to be done

Miscellaneous Works 

1 city hall To Replaces the blinds

2 city hall Power wash building 

3 City hall Grass cut 

4 The City of Iowa Colony Cut grass around the City 

5 Code enforcement Help with dog pick up 

6 city hall Pull files 

Cop
y



NOTES

will be in soon 

need to find out why the light isn't working 

need to go back and fill in the hole the pole left

replace the signs and added new logo on them and arrows 

after putting up the pole replaced the mud 

replace the grass where the post once was

battery was died recharged it 

Needed to change daylight saving time for the light to come on at the right time 

I let them know that we don’t not pick up mud 

we are not able to removal the tree stump that is on the home owner side of the ditch and still in the ground 

Cop
y



buses can't pass

buses can't pass put in work order to the county 

cut to 3950 FCR78

cut going back towards 288

Look at number 2 this is the same problem Request by Brenda Stephens

cut trees back from the road and off out the speed limit sign 

will grind down the concrete for the water to move we will hire someone to do that for us 

I have a picture to send to the  County  waiting on the Permit to sendfrom the home owner so I can send  it in to the county 

I have put this order in 2 times already with the county 

I scraped off the mud on the side walls of the driveways the problems are with the water system that the home owner have that are getting over watered 

I scraped off the mud on the side walls of the driveways the problems are with the water system that the home owner have that are getting over watered 

I scraped off the mud on the side walls of the driveways the problems are with the water system that the home owner have that are getting over watered 

Cop
y



Replace with Tint

4 J's

Cop
y



STATUS DATE COMPLETED

Done 10/21/2020

Done 10/7/2020

Done 10/6/2020

Done 10/7/2020

Done 10/7/2020

Done 10/20/2020

Done 10/20/2020

Done 10/20//2020

Done 10/20/2020

Done 10/26/2020

Done 10/26/2020

incomplete

Done 10/12/2020

Done 10/13/2020

Done 10/15/2020

Cop
y



Done 10/7/2020

Done 10/6/2020

Done 10/9/2020

Done 10/9/2020

Done 10/9/2020

Done 10/16/2020

Done 10/1/2020

Done 10/21/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/22/2020

I have a picture to send to the  County  waiting on the Permit to sendfrom the home owner so I can send  it in to the county 

Done 10/7/2020

Done 10/13/2020

Done 10/13/2020

Done 10/13/2020

Cop
y



Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/14/2020

Done 10/1/2020

Done 10/5/2020

Done 10/2/2020

Done 10/15/2020

10/23/2020

10/23/2020

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION DESCRIPTION

A SIGNAGE

1 Iowa Colony Blvd. End of School Zone

2 Des Moines ct.@Louisana St. Replace stop sign

3 Des Moines ct.@Louisana St. fix pole up right 

4 Kiowa Ct.@Louisana St. Replace stop sign

5 Des Moines ct.@Louisana St. need new street markers

6 Kiowa Ct.@Louisana St. need new street markers

7 Iowa Colony Blvd. School Zone batterys

8 Iowa Colony Blvd.@Allegro Dr. Replace walkers ahead sign 

9 Iowa Colony blvd @ Elementry School Added a pole 

10 Iowa Colony blvd.@Elementry School added 40M.P.H  sign

11 Cedar Rpids pkwy@Iowa Colony took down 45 M.P.H

12 Cedar Rpids pkwy@Iowa Colony added 40M.P.H  sign

13 Daveport pkwy @Iowa Colony Added a pole 

14 Daveport pkwy @Iowa Colony Added a 40 M.P.H sign

15 Iowa Colony @ City hall Removed 45 M.P.H sign

16 Iowa Colony @ City hall Added a 40 M.P.H sign

17 Des Moines ct.@Louisana St. Placed new street marker up 

18 Kiowa Ct.@Louisana St. Placed new street marker up 

19 Golden Topaz@Sliver beryl ln Placed new street marker

20 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd Replaced pole 

21 Dubuque @ Pursley blvd Place pole in the ground 

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 3414 Delita Dr Clean off debri on the side walk 

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Cop
y



14

15

16

17

18

19

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1 City Park cut the grass 

2 City hall grass cut

3 524 c need grass cut 

4 Pursley@CR63 tree trimming 

5 City hall tree trimming 

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

D. STREET REPAIRS

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1

Ditch Drainage issue

1

Cop
y



Miscellaneous Works 

1 City hall build information broad 

2 City hall landscape the front of city hall 

3 City hall Cut Grass 

4 City Park replace the water filter

5 City Park replace the trim in restroom

6 City hall Put lights in info broad 

7 City hall Pull bench down in front of the building 

8 City hall placed a walk way in front of city hall 

9 City Park clean restroom 

10 City Park clean restroom 

11 City Park powerwash building 

12 Pursely Put out road blocks 

13 City Park fixing the hand blower

14 City hall Cut Grass 

15 Pursely Pick up road blocks

16

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS DATE COMPLETED

north of the school Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/2/2020

Done 11/2/2020

Done 11/2/2020

order the sign Done 11/9/2020

order the sign Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/18/2020

Done 11/18/2020

The HoA will pay for the signs Done 11/20/2020

Done 11/30/2020

Done 11/30/2020

after hours call 5pm-6pm Done 11/17/2020

Cop
y



Done 11/1/2020

Done 11/10/2020

Done 11/16/2020

Done 11/19/2020

Cop
y



Done 11/3/2020

Done 11/3/2020

Done 11/4/2020

Done 11/5/2020

Done 11/4/2020

Done 11/4/2020

Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/9/2020

Done 11/12/2020

Done 11/12/2020

Done 11/16/2020

waiting on the tool to come in 

Done 11/17/2020

Done 11/17/2020

Cop
y



NO. LOCATION DESCRIPTION

A SIGNAGE

1 CR 56 @ Iowa Colony Bvld . Flashing lights at the School Zone

2 Iowa Colony Bvld @ CR 56 School zone time isn't right 

3 Iowa Colony Bvld @ CR 56 Put new batterys in the School Zone light

4 Cedar Rapids pkwy @ pursley Fix stop sign from haging 

5 Cedar Rapids pkwy @ pursley strighting the pole 

6 Karsten Rd @ bullard Rd placed new street marker 

7 Meridiana pkwy going East Placed City Park sign near 

8 Meridiana pkwy going East Placed City Park Sign to the left hand side 

9 Meridiana pkwy going East Placed new pole in 

10 Meridiana Pkwy going West of the middle School Need to fix the M.P.H sign 

11 Meridiana Pkwy Added City park sign

12 Thoreau Dr.@Faulkner Trail Replace post 

13 Meridiana pkwy going East Strighting the city park  pole 

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

B. DEBRIS REMOVAL

1 CR 383 Removal of trash 

2 City Park Removal of trash 

3 City Park Removal of trash 

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

Cop
y



14

15

16

17

18

19

C. MOWING/TREE TRIMMING

1 City Hall Trim trees at City hall 

2 City Hall Removing tree limbs at city hall 

3 city hall spray weed killer down 

4 528 A Trim trees 

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

D. STREET REPAIRS

1 Iowa Colony blvd . @ Hwy 6 Pot Hole 

2 Davenport pkwy @CR48 Large hole on side of the road 

3 Meridiana Pkwy going  West Large pothole by ames

4 CR 79 Pot hole 

5 2115 Davenport pot hole 

6

7

8

9

E. POWER LINES MAINTENANCE

1 3538 Cassini rd 77583 Report the light isn't working 

Ditch Drainage issue

1 2518 CR62 Rosharon,tx Set Culverts

2 Dubuque Pkwy @ Davenport Pkwy Grade ditch 

Cop
y



Miscellaneous Works 

1 10635 wagner st. Fire Hidrant cap

2 City Hall Paint the bench out front black 

3 City Hall Paint the info sign black 

4 park 2 Cut grass 

5 Park Pick up trash 

6 City Hall Put Ant bait around building 

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

Cop
y



NOTES STATUS DATE COMPLETED

need to replace the battery Done 12/1/2020

just need to change time for lights to flash Done 12/1/2020

Done 12/7/2020

Done 12/9/2020

Done 12/9/2020

Done 12/10/2020

right under the 40M.P.H sign Done 12/10/2020

Done 12/10/2020

used hardware Done 12/10/2020

Done 12/15/2020

Done 12/17/2020

Done 12/21/2020

Done 12/28/2020

I have pictures of it Done 12/4/2020

Done 12/15/2020

Done 12/28/2020

Cop
y



12/7/2020

12/9/2020

12/8/2020

12/9/2020

Done 12/7/2020

Will talk with DD5 on fixing it Done 12/10/2020

Call the Contractors to fix Done 12/10/2020

Done 12/15/2020

Send it over to County Done 128/29/2020

Tracking Number: 1405169723 Done 12/3/2020

Sent this to the county Done 12/1/2020

Sent this to the county Done 12/8/2020

Cop
y



put back on Done 12/3/2020

Done 12/11/2020

Done 12/10/2020

Done 12/10/2020

Done 12/17/2020

Done 12/17/2020

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



REQUEST FOR ANNEXATION OF 

CERTAIN BRAZORIA COUNTY ROADS BY 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY 

 

1. Brazoria County, Texas, is the political subdivision that maintains the roads and road rights 

of way herein described (“the Annexation Area”). 

 

2. The Annexation Area is described as follows: the portions of the roads and rights of way 

of County Road 56 (Meridiana Parkway) and County Road 48 (Ames Boulevard) more fully 

described on Exhibit “A,” which is attached hereto and incorporated herein in full. 

 

3. Brazoria County, Texas, hereby requests that the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, annex the 

Annexation Area. 

   

4. This request for annexation is authorized by Section 43.1055 of the Texas Local 

Government Code and any other applicable law. 

 

 

 

       BRAZORIA COUNTY, TEXAS 

 

       _______________________________ 

       L. M. “Matt” Sebesta, Jr., County Judge 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

__________________________ 

Name: ____________________ 

Title: _____________________ 

 

  

Cop
y



 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me, on the ____ day of _________, 2021, by L. 

M. “Matt” Sebesta, Jr., as County Judge, on behalf of Brazoria County, Texas. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS § 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me, on the ____ day of _________, 2021, by 

_______________________________,  as _____________________, on behalf of Brazoria 

County, Texas. 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 

 

 

  

Cop
y



 

 

 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

ANNEXATION AREA 

Cop
y



 

ORDINANCE NO. _________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, AMENDING 

THE ORDINANCE CALLING FOR THE 2021 ANNUAL GENERAL 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS FOR SAID CITY; DESIGNATING THE POLLING 

PLACE THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE QUALIFICATION OF 

ELECTORS; PROVIDING FOR OFFICERS OF SAID ELECTION; 

PROVIDING FOR EARLY VOTING; CALLING FOR A JOINT ELECTION; 

AUTHORIZING A JOINT ELECTION AGREEMENT; PROVIDING FOR 

SHARING OF EXPENSES OF THE JOINT ELECTION; AND PROVIDING A 

SEVERANCE CLAUSE AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS: 

 

SECTION ONE - Annual General Election Called. 

 

 A general election shall be held in and throughout the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, on the 

first Saturday in May, 2021, being the 1st  day of May, 2021, between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 

7:00 p.m., for the purpose of electing persons to the following offices of the City for a two-year 

term: Mayor; Alderman Position 4; and Alderman Position 5; and to the following office of 

the City for a one-year transitional term: Alderman Position 3. 

SECTION TWO - Municipal Election Precinct and Polling Place. 

 For the purpose of the election called and ordained by this ordinance, the polling places for 

the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, shall be all of the county-wide vote centers listed on the 

attachment to the Joint Contract for Election Services with the Brazoria County Clerk for this 

election. 

SECTION THREE - Electors. 

 Every person eligible to vote under the provisions of Chapter 11 of Title 2 of the Texas 

Election Code who is a resident of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, and who is duly registered to 

vote in this election shall be entitled to vote in this election. 

 

Cop
y



SECTION FOUR-Officers of Election and Compensation Thereof. 

 The appointments, compensation, and duties of all election officers and personnel shall be 

as provided in the Joint Contract for Election Services with the Brazoria County Clerk for this 

election. 

SECTION FIVE - Early Voting. 

 a. The Early Voting Clerk is hereby authorized to conduct early voting by personal 

appearance beginning on the twelfth (12th) day preceding and ending on the fourth (4th) day 

preceding the day hereinabove specified for said Election, being Monday, April 19, 2021, through 

Tuesday, April 27, 2021, respectively, said early voting by personal appearance to be conducted 

between the hours of 8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. on every day except Saturday, Sunday and State 

legal holidays.  In addition, early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted between the 

hours of 7:00 a.m. and 7:00 p.m. on Saturday, April 24, 2021.  In addition, early voting by 

personal appearance shall be conducted for twelve hours on each of two weekdays, as follows: 

from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. on Monday, April 26, 2021, and Tuesday, April 27, 2021.  

b. The main early voting place is: 

 East Annex (Old Walmart)  

  1524 E. Mulberry #144, Angleton 

 

c. The locations for early voting by personal appearance are as follows: 

Angleton Main Location:  East Annex  

 (Old WalMart Building) 

 1524 E. Mulberry 

  Angleton 

 

Alvin Branch Location: Alvin Library 

 105 S. Gordon, Alvin 

 

 

Brazoria Branch Location: Brazoria Library  

 620 S. Brooks, Brazoria 

Cop
y



 

Freeport Branch Location: Freeport Library 

 410 Brazosport Blvd., Freeport 

 

Lake Jackson Branch Location: Lake Jackson Library 

 250 Circle Way, Lake Jackson  

 

Manvel Branch Location: Courthouse North Annex  

 7313 Corporate Dr., Manvel 

 

Pearland East Branch Location: Tom Reid Library 

 3522 Liberty Dr., Pearland 

 

Pearland West Branch Location: Westside Event Center 

 2150 Countryplace Pkwy., Pearland 

 

Shadow Creek Branch Location: Pearland Westside Library 

 2803 Business Center Dr. #101 

 Pearland 

 

Sweeny Location: Sweeny Community Center 

 205 W. Ashley Wilson Rd., Sweeny  

 

West Columbia Branch Location: Precinct 4 Building 2 

 121 N. 10th Street, West Columbia  

       

  

d. Early voting by mail shall be as provided by applicable law. The mailing address 

of the Early Voting Clerk is Joyce Hudman, County Clerk, 111 East Locust, Suite 200, 

Angleton, Texas 77515-4654. The email address of the Early Voting Clerk is 

cclerkelections@brazoria-county.com.  

SECTION SIX - Method of Voting and Conducting Election. 

 All early voting by personal appearance and all voting on the day named above for the 

holding of said general annual election shall be by means of whatever type of voting machine or 

electronic voting system is available from the voting machine department of Brazoria County, 

Texas.  The manner of holding said election will be governed by the laws of the State of Texas 

governing general elections and as provided in this ordinance.   

Cop
y



SECTION SEVEN - Notice of Election. 

 a. The Mayor shall cause notice of said election to be posted for at least twenty-one 

(21) days prior to the date named above for the holding of said general annual election (1) on the 

bulletin board used for posting notices of meetings of the City Council and (2) on the internet 

website of the City. 

b. The Mayor shall also cause notice of said election to be published in The Alvin 

Sun, a newspaper published in the City of Alvin, in Brazoria County, Texas, having a general 

circulation within the corporate limits of the City of Iowa Colony, not earlier than thirty (30) days 

and not later than ten (10) days before the date named above for the holding of said general annual 

election. 

SECTION EIGHT - Call for Joint Election. 

 a. This election shall be held jointly with Brazoria County and any other participating 

entities, pursuant to Chapter 271 of the Texas Election Code.   

 b. The City Council hereby approves the attached Joint Contract for Election Services 

between the City and the Brazoria County Clerk for this election. The Mayor and City Secretary 

are hereby authorized to execute that contract on behalf of the City. 

 c. Costs of this election shall be shared as provided in the Joint Contract for Election 

Services with the Brazoria County Clerk for this election. 

SECTION NINE - Severance Clause 

 If any part of this order or ordinance, of whatever size, is ever declared invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this order shall remain in full force and effect. 

SECTION TEN - Effective Date 

 This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 

Cop
y



READ, PASSED, and APPROVED on the FIRST READING on JANUARY 25, 2021. 

READ, PASSED, and APPROVED on SECOND and FINAL READING ON FEBRUARY 15, 2021. 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor 

      City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 

City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Iowa Colony/Ordinance/2021 Election Ordinance 
  Cop

y



 

 

 

ATTACHMENT TO ELECTION ORDINANCE 

 

JOINT CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES 

 

Cop
y



 1 

JOINT CONTRACT FOR ELECTION SERVICES 
 
 THIS CONTRACT (this “Agreement”) is made effective as of the Effective Date (as defined 
below), by and between the CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, acting by and through its governing 
body, hereinafter referred to as “ Political Subdivision,” and County Clerk of Brazoria County, 
Texas, hereinafter referred to as “County,” and by authority of Section 31.092(a), Texas Election 
Code, and Chapter 791, Texas Local Government Code, for the conduct and supervision of the  
Political Subdivision’s election to be held on MAY 1, 2021.  Political Subdivision and County may 
be referred to individually as a “Party” and collectively as “the Parties.” 

 
 This contract is made by and between the CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, acting by and 
through its governing body, hereinafter referred to as “Political Subdivision,” and the County 
Election Officer of Brazoria County, defined by statute as the County Clerk through the authority 
set forth in Texas Election Code §§31.091 and 31.092.  The purpose of this contract is for the 
performance of election services as authorized by statute.  This contract shall serve as the general 
contract for each election for which the Political Subdivision requests the assistance of the County 
Clerk.  Provisions specific to each particular election will be included as an attachment to the 
original contract.   Political Subdivision and County Clerk may be referred to individually as “Party” 
or collectively as “Parties.” 

 
RECITALS 

 
The County Clerk has care, custody, and control over the electronic voting system, the Hart 

InterCivic Verity Voting System (Version 2.4), which has been duly approved by the Secretary of 
State pursuant to Texas Election Code Chapter 122, as amended, and is compliant with the 
accessibility requirements set forth by Texas Election Code Section 61.012.  Political Subdivision 
desires to use the electronic voting system and to compensate the County Clerk for such use and 
to share in certain other expenses connected with joint elections in accordance with the applicable 
provisions of Chapters 31 and 271 of the Texas Election Code.  
  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, agreements, and benefits to 
the parties, IT IS AGREED as follows: 

 
 

I. ADMINISTRATION 
 

The Parties agree to hold a “Joint Election” in accordance with Chapter 271 of the Texas 
Election Code and this Agreement. The County Clerk shall coordinate, supervise, and handle all 
aspects of administering the Joint Election as provided in this Agreement.  Political Subdivision 
agrees to pay County Clerk for equipment, supplies, services, and administrative costs as provided 
in this Agreement. The County Clerk shall serve as the administrator for the Joint Election; 
however, the Political Subdivision shall remain responsible for the decisions and actions of its 
officers necessary for the lawful conduct of its election. The County Clerk shall provide advisory 
services in connection with decisions to be made and actions to be taken by the officers of the 
Political Subdivision. 
 

It is understood that other political subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the 
electronic voting system and polling places, and it is agreed that the County Clerk may enter into 

Cop
y



 2 

other joint election agreements and contracts for election services for those purposes on terms and 
conditions set forth in the Election Code.  Political Subdivision agrees that County Clerk may enter 
into joint election agreements with other political subdivisions that may have territory located 
partially or wholly within the boundaries of Political Subdivision, and, in such case, all parties 
sharing common territory shall share a joint ballot on the electronic voting system at the applicable 
polling places. In such cases, total costs shall be divided among the participants.  

 
At each polling location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the 

extent possible. The participating parties shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts where 
jurisdictions overlap. However, in no instance shall a voter be permitted to receive a ballot 
containing an office or proposition stating a measure on which the voter is ineligible to vote. 
Multiple ballot styles shall be available in those shared polling places where jurisdictions do not 
overlap. 
 

II. LEGAL DOCUMENTS 
  

 Political Subdivision shall be responsible for the preparation, adoption, and publication of all 
required election orders, resolutions, notices, and any other pertinent documents required by the 
Texas Election Code or Political Subdivision’s governing body, charter, or ordinances. With 
reference to publications, the County Clerk will publish the “Notice of Test of Automatic Tabulating 
Equipment” and the “Notice of Election.” If a Political Subdivision is holding any type of Special 
Election, the Political Subdivision may have to publish their own “Notice of Election” in order to 
meet additional requirements. Please advise the County Clerk’s Elections Office if the Political 
Subdivision must publish a separate notice so the Political Subdivision’s notice is not included in 
the Notice published by the County Clerk. 

 
Preparation of the necessary materials for notices and the official ballot shall be the 

responsibility of each participating authority, including translation to languages other than English. 
Each participating authority shall provide a copy of their respective election orders and notices to 
the County Clerk’s Election Department.  

 
III. STATUTORY COMPLIANCE 

 
Political subdivisions shall follow all applicable State and Federal laws related to elections, 
including, but not limited to, Section 52.072 of the Election Code, which states in part, “A 
proposition shall be printed on the ballot in the form of a single statement…” Failure to do so may 
prohibit the political subdivision’s participation in a Joint Election. 
 
 

IV. VOTING LOCATIONS 
 
The County Clerk’s Election Office shall select and arrange for the use of and payment for all 
election day voting locations. Voting locations will be, whenever possible, the usual voting location 
for each election precinct in elections conducted by the county. The proposed voting locations are 
listed in Attachment “A” of this agreement. In the event a voting location is not available, the 
Elections Department will arrange for use of an alternate location with the approval of the Political 
Subdivision. The Elections Department shall notify the Political Subdivision of any changes from 
the locations listed in Attachment “A”. 

Cop
y



 3 

 
If polling places for the joint election in Attachment “A” are different from the polling place(s) 

used by Political Subdivision in its most recent election, Political Subdivision agrees to post a 
notice no later than the date of the election described in Attachment “A”, at the entrance to any 
previous polling places in the jurisdiction, stating that the polling location has changed, and stating 
the political subdivision’s polling place name(s) and address(s) in effect for the election described 
in Attachment “A”.  Any changes in voting location from those that were used in the most recent 
COUNTYWIDE JOINT election will be posted by the County Clerk’s Election Office. 

 
 

V. ELECTION JUDGES, CLERKS, AND OTHER ELECTION PERSONNEL 
 

The Brazoria County Commissioners Court shall be responsible for the appointment of the 
presiding judge and alternate judge for each polling location in accordance with Chapter 32 of the 
Texas Election Code. In the event an emergency appointment is necessary, appointment shall be 
made in accordance with Election Code §32.007, which authorizes the presiding officer of the 
Brazoria County Commissioners Court to make an emergency appointment.  Should that officer not 
be available, the County Clerk’s office shall make emergency appointments of election officials. 
Upon request by the County Clerk, Political Subdivision agrees to assist in recruiting polling place 
officials who are bilingual (fluent in both English and Spanish). 
 

The County’s Elections Department shall notify all election judges of the eligibility 
requirements of Subchapter C of Chapter 32 of the Texas Election Code, and will take the 
necessary steps to ensure that all election judges appointed for the Joint Election are eligible to 
serve. 
 

The County Clerk shall arrange for the training and compensation of all election judges and 
clerks. The Elections Department shall arrange for the date, time, and place for the presiding 
election judge to pick up their election supplies. Each presiding election judge will be sent a letter 
from the Elections Department notifying him of his appointment, the time and location of training 
and distribution of election supplies, and the number of election clerks that the presiding judge may 
appoint. 
 

Each election judge will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $14.00. Each election 
clerk will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $12.00. The election judge will receive an 
additional sum of $25.00 for picking up the election supplies prior to Election Day and for returning 
the supplies and equipment to the central counting station after the polls close. All judges and 
clerks who attend training will be compensated at an hourly rate of $8.00 as compensation for 
same. 

 
It is agreed by all Parties that at all times and for all purposes hereunder, all election judges, 

clerks, and all other personnel involved in this election are temporary part-time employees subject 
only to those benefits available to such employees. 
 
 
 

 
 

Cop
y



 4 

VI. PREPARATION OF SUPPLIES AND VOTING EQUIPMENT 
 

The County Clerk Elections Department shall arrange for all election supplies and voting 
equipment including, but not limited to, official ballots, sample ballots, voter registration lists, and all 
forms, signs and other materials used by the election judges at the voting locations. At each polling 
location, joint participants shall share voting equipment and supplies to the extent possible. The 
participating parties shall share a mutual ballot in those precincts where jurisdictions overlap. 
However, in no instance shall a voter be permitted to receive a ballot containing an office or 
proposition stating a measure on which the voter is ineligible to vote. Multiple ballot styles shall be 
available in those shared polling places where jurisdictions do not overlap. The County Clerk 
Elections Department shall provide the necessary voter registration information, instructions, and 
other information needed to enable the election judges in the voting locations that have more than 
one ballot style to conduct a proper election. If special maps are needed for a particular Political 
Subdivision, the County Clerk Election Department will order the maps and pass that charge on to 
that particular Political Subdivision.  

 
 Political Subdivision shall furnish the County Clerk a list of candidates and/or propositions 

showing the order and the exact manner in which the candidate names and/or proposition(s) are to 
appear on the official ballot (including titles and text in each language in which the authority’s ballot 
is to be printed). THE POLITICAL SUBDIVISION SHALL ALSO PROVIDE A COPY OF EACH 
CANDIDATE’S APPLICATION TO THE COUNTY CLERK ELECTIONS OFFICE. This list shall be 
delivered to the County Clerk Elections Department as soon as possible after ballot positions have 
been determined by each of the participating authorities. Each participating authority shall be 
responsible for proofreading and approving the ballot insofar as it pertains to that authority’s 
candidates and/or propositions. 
 

VII. EARLY VOTING 
 

The Parties agree to conduct joint early voting and to appoint the County Clerk as the Early Voting 
Clerk in accordance with Sections 31.097 and 271.006 of the Texas Election Code.  Political 
Subdivision agrees to appoint the County Clerk’s permanent county employees as deputy early 
voting clerks. The Parties further agree that each Early Voting Location will have an “Officer in 
Charge” who will receive compensation at an hourly rate of $14.00. The clerks at each location will 
receive compensation at an hourly rate of $12.00. Early Voting by personal appearance will be held 
at the locations, dates, and times listed in Attachment “B” of this document. Any qualified voter of 
the Joint Election may vote early by personal appearance at any one of the joint early voting 
locations. 
 

As Early Voting Clerk, the County Clerk shall receive applications for early voting ballots to 
be voted by mail in accordance with Chapter 86 of the Texas Election Code. Any requests for early 
voting ballots to be voted by mail received by the Political Subdivision shall be forwarded 
immediately by fax or courier to the Elections Department for processing. 
 

The County Clerk Elections Department shall, upon request, provide the Political 
Subdivision a copy of the early voting report on a daily basis and a cumulative final early voting 
report following the election. 

 
 

Cop
y



 5 

VIII. EARLY VOTING BALLOT BOARD 
 

 The County Clerk shall appoint an Early Voting Ballot Board (EVBB) to process early voting 
results from the Joint Election. The Presiding Judge, with the assistance of the County Clerk 
Elections Department, shall appoint two or more additional members to constitute the EVBB. The 
County Clerk Elections Department shall determine the number of EVBB members required to 
efficiently process the early voting ballots. 
 
 

IX. CENTRAL COUNTING STATION AND ELECTION RETURNS 
 

The County shall be responsible for establishing and operating the central counting station 
to receive and tabulate the voted ballots in accordance with the provisions of the Texas Election 
Code and of this agreement.  

 
The participating authorities hereby, in accordance with Section 127.002, 127.003, and 

127.005 of the Texas Election Code, appoint the following central counting station officials: 
 
Counting Station Manager:   Lisa Mujica 
Alternate Counting Station Manager: Brandy Pena 
Tabulation Supervisor:    Susan Cunningham 
Alternate Tabulation Supervisor:  Johnathan Escamilla 
Presiding Judge:     Tamara Reynolds  
Alternate Presiding Judge:   Dottie Cornett 
 
 
The County Clerk Elections Department will prepare the unofficial canvass reports after all 

precincts have been counted, and will deliver a copy of the unofficial canvass to the Political 
Subdivision as soon as possible after all returns have been tabulated. All participating authorities 
shall be responsible for the official canvass of their respective elections.  

 
The County Clerk Elections Department shall be responsible for conducting the 

post-election manual recount required by Section 127.201 of the Texas Election Code unless a 
waiver is granted by the Secretary of State. Notification and copies of the recount, if waiver is 
denied, will be provided to each participating authority and the Secretary of State’s Office. 

 
The County Clerk Elections Department shall submit all Cities’ precinct by precinct returns to 

the Texas Secretary of State’s Office electronically. 
 
The County Clerk Elections Department shall post all election night results to County 

website on election night.   http://www.Brazoriacountyvotes.com.  
 
 

X. ELECTION EXPENSES AND ALLOCATION OF COSTS 
 

The Parties agree to share the costs of administering the Joint Election. Allocation of costs, 
unless specifically stated otherwise, is mutually agreed to be shared. The County participates in 
“Vote Centers,” therefor all political subdivisions can vote at any location.  

Cop
y



 6 

 
It is agreed that the normal rental rate charged for the County’s voting equipment used on 

election day shall be calculated per polling locations and among the participants utilizing each 
polling location.  (See “Exhibit 1” for rental rates.) Total cost will be calculated, and then multiplied 
by the Political Subdivisions percentage number of registered voters or with the minimum of 
$1500.00, for those with lesser amount, additional cost associated will be itemized and billed. 

 
 Costs for Early Voting by Personal Appearance will also be charge with the same formula 

as Election Day. Those political subdivisions with the percentage of registered voters less than 
amount equal to $1500.00 charged will be a minimum amount of $1500.00.  

 
Political Subdivision contracting for a runoff shall be responsible for all associated costs. 
 

XI. WITHDRAWAL FROM CONTRACT DUE TO CANCELLATION OF ELECTION 
 

 Political Subdivision may withdraw from this agreement and the Joint Election should it 
cancel its election in accordance with Sections 2.051 - 2.053 of the Texas Election Code, or should 
it be later ruled that the election is not needed.  Political Subdivision is fully liable for any expenses 
incurred by County Clerk on behalf of the Political Subdivision. Any monies deposited with the 
county by the withdrawing authority shall be refunded, minus the aforementioned expenses.  

 
XII. RECORDS OF THE ELECTION 

 
The County Clerk is hereby appointed general custodian of the voted ballots and all records 

of the Joint Election as authorized by Section 271.010 of the Texas Election Code. 
 

Access to the election records shall be available to each participating authority, as well as to 
the public, in accordance with applicable provisions of the Texas Election Code and the Texas 
Public Information Act. The election records shall be stored at the offices of the County Clerk or at 
an alternate facility used for storage of county records. The County Clerk Elections Department 
shall ensure that the records are maintained in an orderly manner so that the records are clearly 
identifiable and retrievable. 
 

Records of the election shall be retained and disposed of in accordance with the provisions 
of Section 66.058 of the Texas Election Code. If records of the election are involved in any pending 
election contest, investigation, litigation, or open records request, the County Clerk shall maintain 
the records until final resolution or until final judgment, whichever is applicable. It is the 
responsibility of each participating authority to bring to the attention of the County Clerk any notice 
of pending election contest, investigation, litigation or open records request which may be filed with 
the participating authority. 

 
XIII. RECOUNTS 

 
A recount may be obtained as provided by Title 13 of the Texas Election Code.  Political 

Subdivision agrees that any recount shall take place at the offices of the County Clerk and that the 
County Clerk shall serve as Recount Supervisor and the Political Subdivision’s official or employee 
who performs the duties of a secretary under the Texas Election Code shall serve as Recount 
Coordinator. 

Cop
y



 7 

 
The County Clerk Elections Department agrees to provide advisory services to the Political 

Subdivision as necessary to conduct a proper recount and cost of the recount depends on the size 
of the election and number of precincts to be recounted. 
 

XIV. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
 

1. It is understood that to the extent space is available, that other districts and political 
subdivisions may wish to participate in the use of the election equipment and voting places; 
it is agreed that the County Clerk may contract with such other districts or political 
subdivisions for such purposes, and that in such event, there may be an adjustment of the 
pro-rata share to be paid to the County by the participating authorities. 
 

2. The County Clerk shall file copies of this document with the County Treasurer and the 
County Auditor in accordance with Section 31.099 of the Texas Election Code. 
 

3. In the event that legal action is filed contesting the Political Subdivision’s election under Title 
14 of the Texas Election Code, Political Subdivision shall choose and provide, at its own 
expense, legal counsel for the County, the County Clerk, and additional election personnel 
as necessary. 
 

4. Nothing in this contract prevents any party from taking appropriate legal action against any 
other party and/or other election personnel for a breach of this contract or a violation of the 
Texas Election Code; however, any action taken is subject to any immunity provided by 
statute or common law to governmental entities.  For purposes of this contract, the County 
Clerk’s office is acting as a governmental entity covered by any immunity available to 
Brazoria County. 
 

5. The parties agree that under the Constitution and laws of the State of Texas, neither 
Brazoria County nor Political Subdivision can enter into an agreement whereby either party 
agrees to indemnify or hold harmless another party; therefore, all references of any kind, if 
any, to indemnifying or holding or saving harmless for any reason are hereby deleted. 
 

6. This agreement shall be construed under and in accord with the laws of the State of Texas, 
and all obligations of the parties created hereunder are performable in Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 

7. In the event of one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall for any 
reason be held to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, 
illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision hereof and this agreement 
shall be construed as if such invalid, illegal, or unenforceable provision had never been 
contained herein. 
 

8. All parties shall comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, and codes of the State of 
Texas, all local governments, and any other entities with local jurisdiction. 
 

9. The waiver by any party of a breach of any provision of this agreement shall not operate as 
or be construed as a waiver of any subsequent breach. 

Cop
y



 8 

 
10.  Any amendments of this agreement shall be of no effect unless in writing and signed by all 

parties hereto. 
 

11. Authorization of Agreement. This Agreement has been approved and authorized by the 
governing body of the Political Subdivision. 
 

12.  Purpose, Terms, Rights, and Duties of the Parties. The purpose, terms, rights, and 
duties of the Parties shall be as set forth in this Agreement.   
 

13. Payments from Current Revenues. Each Party paying for the performance of 
governmental functions or services must make those payments from current revenues 
available to that paying Party. 
 

14. Fair Compensation. The Parties acknowledge and agree that each of the payments 
contemplated by this Agreement fairly compensate the performing Party. 
 

15. Termination. At any time and for any reason, either Party may terminate this Agreement by 
providing thirty (30) days’ written notice of termination to the other Party.   
 

16. Funding. The Parties understand and acknowledge that the funding of this Agreement is 
contained in each Party’s annual budget and is subject to the approval of each Party in each 
fiscal year. The Parties further agree that should the governing body of any Party fail to 
approve a budget that includes sufficient funds for the continuation of this Agreement, or 
should the governing body of any Party fail to certify funds for any reason, then and upon 
the occurrence of such event, this Agreement shall automatically terminate as to that Party 
and that Party shall then have no further obligation to the other Party. When the funds 
budgeted or certified during any fiscal year by a Party to discharge its obligations under this 
Agreement are expended, the other Party’s sole and exclusive remedy shall be to 
terminate this Agreement. 
 

17. No Joint Enterprise. The Agreement is not intended to, and shall not be construed to, 
create any joint enterprise between or among the Parties. 
 

18. Public Information. This Agreement is public information. To the extent, if any, that any 
provision of this Agreement is in conflict with Texas Government Code Chapter 552, et seq., 
as amended (the “Texas Public Information Act”), such provision shall be void and have no 
force or effect. 

 
19.  No Third-Party Beneficiaries. This Agreement is entered solely by and between, and may 

be enforced only by and among the Parties. Except as set forth herein, this Agreement shall 
not be deemed to create any rights in, or obligations to, any third parties. 
 

20. No Personal Liability. Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating any 
personal liability on the part of any employee, officer, or agent of any Party to this 
Agreement.   
 

Cop
y



 9 

21. Nothing in this Agreement requires that either the Political Subdivision or County incur debt, 
assess or collect funds, or create a sinking fund.   
 

22. Sovereign Immunity Acknowledged and Retained. THE PARTIES EXPRESSLY 
ACKNOWLEDGE AND AGREE THAT NO PROVISION OF THIS AGREEMENT IS IN ANY 
WAY INTENDED TO CONSTITUTE A WAIVER BY ANY PARTY OF ANY IMMUNITY 
FROM SUIT OR LIABILITY THAT A PARTY MAY HAVE BY OPERATION OF LAW. THE 
CITY AND THE COUNTY RETAIN ALL GOVERNMENTAL IMMUNITIES. 
 

XV. COST ESTIMATES AND DEPOSIT OF FUNDS 
 

It is estimated that the Political Subdivision’s obligation under the terms of this agreement 
shall be DETERMINED AFTER THE ELECTION.  Political Subdivision agrees to pay to County a 
deposit of $1,500.00.  This deposit shall be paid to County within 10 business days after the final 
candidate filing deadline. The final candidate filing deadline is February 16, 2021. Therefore, 
deposit is due by MARCH 3, 2021. The exact amount of the Political Subdivision’s obligation under 
the terms of this Agreement shall be calculated after the MAY 1, 2021, election; and if the amount 
of the Political Subdivision’s obligation exceeds the amount deposited, the Political Subdivision 
shall pay to County the balance due within thirty (30) days after receipt of the final invoice 
from the County’s Election Department. However, if the amount of the Political Subdivision’s 
obligation is less than the amount deposited, County shall refund to the Political Subdivision the 
excess amount paid within thirty (30) days after final costs are calculated. 
 
IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, this agreement, its multiple originals all of equal force, has been 
executed on behalf of the parties. 
 
(1) On the _________ day of _____________, 2021 been executed on behalf of the County Clerk 
by the County Clerk pursuant to the Texas Election Code; 
 
(2) On the _______ day of _______________, 2021 been executed on behalf of the Political 
Subdivision by its Mayor or authorized representative, pursuant to an action of the Political 
Subdivision.  
 

BRAZORIA COUNTY, COUNTY CLERK by    
  
_____________________________________ 

         Joyce Hudman, County Clerk  
 
 
 
ATTEST:                CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 
    
 
___________________________________ By ______________________________________ 

 Presiding Officer or Authorized Representative 
 CITY OF IOWA COLONY 
 

Cop
y



ORDINANCE NO. __________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF  IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, CLOSING A 

PORTION OF KARSTEN BOULEVARD; CONTAINING FINDINGS OF 

FACT; PRESERVING ALL EASEMENTS AND RIGHTS OF WAY; 

RESERVING THE RIGHT TO REOPEN THAT STREET; AND PROVIDING 

A SAVINGS CLAUSE, SEVERANCE CLAUSE, AND EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS: 

 

 1.  The term “the Closed Street” herein shall mean only the portion of Karsten 

Boulevard from the southern edge of its intersection with Bullard Parkway (former County Road 

81) south to the current termination of Karsten Boulevard at the northern edge of its intersection 

with Cedar Rapids Parkway (former County Road 57), in the City of Iowa Colony, Brazoria 

County, Texas. 

 

 2. The City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas (“the City”) hereby finds that 

the following facts and all other facts stated in any part of this ordinance are true: 

 

  a. The Closed Street is not necessary for access to any property. 

 b. All properties adjoining the Closed Street have adequate access without 

the Closed Street. 

 c. The Closed Street is being used unlawfully as a dumping ground for 

rubbish and litter. 

  d. That rubbish and litter constitute an unlawful nuisance. 

 e. Public convenience and necessity do not require that the Closed Street 

remain open at this time. 

  f. This ordinance promotes the public health, safety, and general welfare. 

 g. This ordinance is authorized by Section 311.007 of the Texas 

Transportation Code, Section 217.042 of the Texas Local Government 

Code, the Home Rule Charter of the City, and all applicable law. 

 

 3. The Closed Street shall be closed until further order of the City Council. 

 

 4. As a matter of law, this ordinance and the closure of the Closed Street do not 

substantially impair access to any property. 

  

 5. The Public Works Department of the City is hereby authorized and directed to 

physically block access to the Closed Street and to provide a method for access by emergency 

vehicles. 

 

 6. This ordinance shall not waive, release, vacate, or transfer any right of way or 

easement of any nature, including but not limited to the right of way and easement of the Closed 

Street. All easements and rights of way of any nature, including but not limited to the Closed 

Street, shall remain in full force and effect and shall continue to be held by the City. 

 

Cop
y



 7. The City reserves the right to reopen all or any portion of the Closed Street. 

 

 8. If any part of this ordinance, of whatever size, is ever declared invalid or 

unenforceable for any reason, the remainder of this order shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 9. The City Secretary is authorized and directed to record a duplicate original or 

certified copy of this ordinance in the Official Records of  the Brazoria County Clerk. 

 

 10. This ordinance shall be effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 

 

READ, PASSED, and APPROVED on the FIRST READING on JANUARY 25, 2021. 

READ, PASSED, and APPROVED on the SECOND and FINAL READING ON FEBRUARY 

15, 2021. 

 

 

 

      _______________________________________ 

      Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor 

      City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________________ 

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary 

City of Iowa Colony, Texas Cop
y



 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me, on the ____ day of _________, 2021, by 

Michael Byrum-Bratsen, as Mayor, of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas. 

 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

        

 

THE STATE OF TEXAS  § 

 

COUNTY OF BRAZORIA  § 

 

 This instrument was acknowledged before me, on the ____ day of _________, 2021, by 

Kayleen Rosser, as City Secretary, of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas. 

 

 

       ____________________________________ 

       Notary Public in and for the State of Texas 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     
Iowa/Ordinance/Closure of Karsten Boulevard (Portion) (01-22-21) 

Cop
y



From: Aaron I. Bell abell@iowacolonypd.org
Subject: Employee Handbook Change Request

Date: January 5, 2021 at 2:47 PM
To: Ronald Cox (City) rcox@iowacolonytx.gov

Mr. Ron,
 
Per our discussion, I would like to add the phrase “Officers assigned to the patrol
division, holiday time off is considered time worked when figuring overtime.” to the
city employee handbook under the 7k exemption section.
 
Policy: Under current city policy, an officer, working under the 7k exemption, has a
bank of holidays each quarter.  Banked holidays must be taken during that quarter
or they lose the time.
 
Issue: An officer takes a scheduled banked holiday off and then gets called in to
cover a shift during that same pay period, the officer does not accrue any overtime
and loses the holiday.
 
Here is what I found in reference to vacation:
Employee handbook VII(8.05)(c) states that unused personal leave (vacation) can
deferred for 30 days by the Department Director only if scheduled and called back
or denied the vacation after it is scheduled.
 
Aaron I. Bell
Chief of Police
 
Iowa Colony Police Department
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd.
Iowa Colony, Texas 77583
Cell: (832) 210-4166
Office: (281) 369-3444
Dispatch: (281) 756-2392
Fax: (281) 406-3722
www.iowacolonytx.gov
Sign up for Emergency Notifications
Connect with us on NextDoor
 
  

This message, as well as any files or documents attached to it, contains information which may be privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under applicable law.  It is intended only for the use of the person or entity to which it is
addressed.  Unless you are the addressee (or authorized to receive for the addressee), you are hereby notified that the
copying, distribution or other use of this message is strictly prohibited.  You may not use, copy or disclose to anyone the
message or any information contained in the message.  If you have received this message in error, please advise the
sender immediately by reply e-mail, telephone or fax and destroy all forms of this message.

Cop
y

mailto:Bellabell@iowacolonypd.org
mailto:Bellabell@iowacolonypd.org
mailto:rcox@iowacolonytx.gov
http://www.cityofiowacolony.com/
https://cityofiowacolony.bbcportal.com/
https://nextdoor.com/agency/iowa-colony-police-department/?i=fkwdwsxblnrcrjjkwlsc


Cop
y



PARKING ANALYSIS

KEYED NOTES:

PROP. RETAIL BUILDING

10,300 SQ. FT.

5
3

'
-
0

"

2
0

'
-
0

"

3'-0"

7
3

'
-
0

"

140'-0"

143'-0"

LEGEND:

VICINITY MAP N.T.S. KEY MAP #: 290-H

SITE PLAN

01

ADA DETAIL

02

MASTER SITE

PLAN

A1.0

This Drawing is an instrument of service and

is the sole property of Doan & Associates,

any use of this drawing without written

consent by Doan & Associates is prohibited.

The designer shall not have control or charge

of and shall not be responsible for

construction means, methods, deviations,

techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for

safety precautions and programs in

connection with the work, for the acts or

omissions of the contractor, subcontractors

or any other persons performing ay of the

work, or failure of any of them to carry out

the work in accordance with the contract

documents. Always use dimensions as shown.

Drawings are not to be scaled.

Drawing scales as indicated are for reference

only and are not intended to accurately

depict actual or designed conditions.  Written

dimensions shall govern.

11700 Southwest Fwy, Ste. 205

Houston, TX 77031

T 281 564 2200

F 281 564 2700

doan@doanassociates.com

www.doanassociates.com

ASSOCIATE S

SHEET #

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

CHECKED BY

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT #

DATE ISSUED REMARKS

STAMP

PROJECT NAME

JD

AS SHOWN

11/03/2018

JD

18-071

SIERRA VISTA

PLAZA

2944 Meridiana Pkwy.

Rosharon, Texas 77583

2019-07-29 1st SUBMITTAL

2020-11-18 2nd SUBMITTAL

11-18-2020

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCCUPANCY

AutoCAD SHX Text
SQUARE FOOTAGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
RATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SF RETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
10,299 SF

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
PER 1,000 SQ. FT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL REQUIRED PARKING SPACES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL PROVIDED PARKING SPACES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
(INCLUDING 2 ADA P.S.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" THICK CONCRETE PAVING. REFER TO CIVIL DWG. 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8" THICK CONCRETE PAVING

AutoCAD SHX Text
6" CONCRETE CURB. REFER TO DETAIL 01, 06, 19/A1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE SIDEWALK REFER TO DETAIL 11 & 16/A1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE WHEEL STOP. REFER TO DETAIL 02/A1.1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
GREEN AREA. REFER TO LANDSCAPING PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE STRIPES, PAINTED WHITE (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
4" WIDE STRIPES, PAINTED WHITE SPACING 2'-0" O.C. (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP SIGN. REFER TO DETAIL 07/A1.1 

AutoCAD SHX Text
HANDICAP SYMBOL. REFER TO DETAIL 08/A1.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
ACCESSIBLE RAMP. REFER TO DETAIL 12 & 13/A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE (SEE DETAIL - 05/A1.1) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
DUMPSTER (BY OTHERS) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SIGN (BY OTHERS); SIGN COMPANY SHALL COMPLY WITH CODES, REGULATIONS, ORDINANCES AND EASEMENTS WITH THE CITY/COUNTY DEPT. BEFORE PERFORMING THE WORK. PROJECT SIGN BY SEPARATE PERMIT  

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKING LIGHT POLE (TYP.) 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
LS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL

AutoCAD SHX Text
GM

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLM

AutoCAD SHX Text
GV

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' ETC NGL TRANSPORT, LLC., PIPELINE EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2012010807

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' ENTERPRISE CRUDE PIPELINE COMPANY, LLC., PERMANENT MAINTENANCE EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2016055348 & 2016056368

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' ENTERPRISES CRUDE PIPELINE COMPANY LLC PERMANENT PIPELINE EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2016055348 B.C.C.F. NO. 2016056368

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 87°16'24" E  540.11'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 87°16'24" W  565.00'

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 02°43'36" W  313.52'

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 02°42'17" E  288.51'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=25.00' L=39.28' Δ=90°01'19" CB=S 47°42'57" E CD=35.36'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4.0639 ACRES 177,023 SQUARE FEET

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMIGRATION LAND COMPANY PLAT OF SECTIONS 50, 51 AND 56 H.T. & B. AND OF 2. 3 & 4 L&N. VOLUME 2, PAGE 113 B.C.P.R.

AutoCAD SHX Text
McALISTER OPPORTUNITY FUND L.P. RESIDUE OF TRACT II CALLED 240.9 ACRES B.C.C.F. NO. 2013060096

AutoCAD SHX Text
LAND TEJAS STERLING LAKES SOUTH, LLC., TRACT 8 CALLED 2.356 ACRES B.C.C.F. NO. 2017048393

AutoCAD SHX Text
McALISTER OPPORTUNITY FUND L.P. RESIDUE OF TRACT II CALLED 240.9 ACRES B.C.C.F. NO. 2013060096

AutoCAD SHX Text
614 SQUARE FOOT LANDSCAPE EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2018006386

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1231 ACRE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2017010345

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.1231 ACRE SANITARY SEWER EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2017010345

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0069 ACRE STORM SEWER EASEMENT B.C.C.F. NO. 2017010345

AutoCAD SHX Text
FOUND 5/8" CAPPED IRON ROD

AutoCAD SHX Text
1'X1'

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELEC LID

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA VISTA BOULEVARD (RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIANA PARKWAY (A.K.A. C.R. 56 ~ RIGHT-OF-WAY WIDTH VARIES)

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC.WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'-11 249/256" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
29'-11 249/256" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
72'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
72'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0" 

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 6' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
162'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
162'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R2'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R4'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R6'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
71' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
10' BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. PROJECT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
45'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
72'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
72'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
126'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
126'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. PROJECT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. PROJECT SIGN

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
35'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
NEW 6' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
EX. 5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROP. 5' SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
H.C.C.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
HARRIS COUNTY CLERK'S FILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EASEMENT OR LOT DIVISION LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
D.R.H.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEED RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
MISC. IMPROVEMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
M.R.H.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAP RECORDS OF HARRIS COUNTY

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
F.C.

AutoCAD SHX Text
FILM CODE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXISTING FENCE

AutoCAD SHX Text
L.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
LIGHT STANDARD

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVERED CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
COV. CONC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SB

AutoCAD SHX Text
STEEL BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
U.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
UTILITY EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
EB 

AutoCAD SHX Text
ELECTRIC BOX

AutoCAD SHX Text
A.E.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AERIAL EASEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA

AutoCAD SHX Text
FORT BEND COUNTY RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
288

AutoCAD SHX Text
VALLEY GLEN RD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
AIRLINE RD. S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SIERRA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
MERIDIANA 

AutoCAD SHX Text
WEST

AutoCAD SHX Text
DR.

AutoCAD SHX Text
KARSTEN

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
VISTA

AutoCAD SHX Text
BLVD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARKWAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT LOCATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=30'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
02/A1.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H



1 2 3 4 5 7 86

CORNER CAFE

FRONT ELEVATION

01

RENDERING

02

EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

COLOR CHART

MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

– – 

·

·

·

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A3.0

This Drawing is an instrument of service and

is the sole property of Doan & Associates,

any use of this drawing without written

consent by Doan & Associates is prohibited.

The designer shall not have control or charge

of and shall not be responsible for

construction means, methods, deviations,

techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for

safety precautions and programs in

connection with the work, for the acts or

omissions of the contractor, subcontractors

or any other persons performing ay of the

work, or failure of any of them to carry out

the work in accordance with the contract

documents. Always use dimensions as shown.

Drawings are not to be scaled.

Drawing scales as indicated are for reference

only and are not intended to accurately

depict actual or designed conditions.  Written

dimensions shall govern.

11700 Southwest Fwy, Ste. 205

Houston, TX 77031

T 281 564 2200

F 281 564 2700

doan@doanassociates.com

www.doanassociates.com

ASSOCIATE S

SHEET #

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

CHECKED BY

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT #

DATE ISSUED REMARKS

STAMP

PROJECT NAME

JD

AS SHOWN

11/03/2018

JD

18-071

SIERRA VISTA

PLAZA

2944 Meridiana Pkwy.

Rosharon, Texas 77583

2019-07-29 1st SUBMITTAL

2020-11-18 2nd SUBMITTAL

11-18-2020

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOOKSTORE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SALON

AutoCAD SHX Text
ICE CREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATTRESS

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. HIGH PARAPET 30'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STOREFRONT 11'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. MID PARAPET 26'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CANOPY  12'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. SOFFIT  15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
STARBUCKS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTE: BUILDING SIGNAGE BY SEPARATE PERMIT.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DOUBLE PANE. CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS IN ALUMINUM FRAME  DARK BRONZE COLOR . REF. TO WINDOW SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS STOREFRONT DOOR. DARK BRONZE ALUMINUM FRAME REF. TO DOOR SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLLOW METAL DOOR REF. TO DOOR SCHEDULE. PAINTED COLOR MATCH WITH WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM CANOPY ALUMINUM FASCIA FINISH ANODIZED IN COLOR #1, DARK BRONZE COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM LOUVER SCREEN #1, DARK BRONZE COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM LOUVER SCREEN #2, CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.C. TO PROVIDE 5/8" FIRE RETARDANT TREATED PLYWOOD SHEATHING IN LIEU OF DENSGLASS FOR SIGNAGE AS SHOWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORE LOGO SIGN BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LADDER. PRIMED AND PAINTED TO MATCH WALL COLOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" X 24" X 1.25" ADHERED CAST STONE VENEER TYPE 1  COLOR: CREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" X 24" X 1.25" ADHERED CAST STONE VENEER TYPE 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONGBOARD SOFFIT & SIDING ALUMINUM CLADDING WOODGRAIN COLOR: ITALIAN ROSEWOOD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" STUCCO REVEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING PREFINISHED IN SILVER COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING PREFINISHED IN PARCHMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8" STUCCO FINISH, INTEGRAL PAINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"x8"x16" SPIT-FACE CMU, PREFINISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL PACK LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCUPPER & CONDUCTOR BOX DOWNSPOUTS PREFINISHED IN BUCKSKIN. CONNECT TO STORM LINE/SYSTEM REF TO CIVIL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW SCUPPER, PRE-FINISHED IN BUCKSKIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWIN WILLIAMS - SW 7004 SNOWBOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"X8"X16" PREFINISHED SPLIT-FACE CMU. GREY BURNISHED W/ BLOCKGUARD SEALER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM CLADDING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CLADDING BY MAC. ARCHITECTURAL MAC Metal Architectural – MS14 – Silver MetallicMS14 – Silver MetallicSilver Metallic

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE TYPE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x24"x1.25" (THK) CAST STONE PANEL BY ROCKCAST LATICRETE HI BOND ADHESIVE MORTAR TO CEMENT BACKER BOARD. REF. TO WALL SECTION DETAILS COLOR CREAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE TYPE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x24"x1.25" (THK) CAST STONE PANEL BY ROCKCAST LATICRETE HI BOND ADHESIVE MORTAR TO CEMENT BACKER BOARD. REF. TO WALL SECTION DETAILS COLOR VEL BLACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR SELECTIONS SUBJECT TO OWNER'S APPROVAL ALL PAINT SHALL BE "SHERWIN WILLIAM" EXTERIOR TYPE WITH 2 COATS THE COLORS NEED TO BE FINALIZED WITH THE OWNER, AND THE SAMPLE BOARD SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE ADHERED VENEER BY ACME BRICK COMPANY JOSH JAMES  TEL: 281-989-2945 

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H



EXTERIOR FINISH LEGEND

COLOR CHART

MATERIAL SPECIFICATIONS

– – 

·

·

·

A B C D E ACDE B

1234578 6

REAR ELEVATION

01

RIGHT ELEVATION

03

LEFT ELEVATION

02

GENERAL NOTES

A. STUCCO:

B. PAINTING OVER STUCCO

®

C. PAINTING OVER EXPOSED GALVANIZED STEEL:

–

D. ROCKCAST THIN CAST STONE VENEER:

”

“

” “

E. ALUMINUM CANOPY

F.  ALUMINUM/ METAL  RAINSCREEN CLADDING

G. PRE-FINISHED SINGLE WYTHE MASONRY WALL :

“ ” “ ” 

STONE VENEER: 1 1/2" STONE VENEER:

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

A3.1

This Drawing is an instrument of service and

is the sole property of Doan & Associates,

any use of this drawing without written

consent by Doan & Associates is prohibited.

The designer shall not have control or charge

of and shall not be responsible for

construction means, methods, deviations,

techniques, sequences, or procedures, or for

safety precautions and programs in

connection with the work, for the acts or

omissions of the contractor, subcontractors

or any other persons performing ay of the

work, or failure of any of them to carry out

the work in accordance with the contract

documents. Always use dimensions as shown.

Drawings are not to be scaled.

Drawing scales as indicated are for reference

only and are not intended to accurately

depict actual or designed conditions.  Written

dimensions shall govern.

11700 Southwest Fwy, Ste. 205

Houston, TX 77031

T 281 564 2200

F 281 564 2700

doan@doanassociates.com

www.doanassociates.com

ASSOCIATE S

SHEET #

DRAWN BY

SCALE

DATE

CHECKED BY

DRAWING TITLE

PROJECT #

DATE ISSUED REMARKS

STAMP

PROJECT NAME

JD

AS SHOWN

11/03/2018

JD

18-071

SIERRA VISTA

PLAZA

2944 Meridiana Pkwy.

Rosharon, Texas 77583

2019-07-29 1st SUBMITTAL

2020-11-18 2nd SUBMITTAL

11-18-2020

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
1" DOUBLE PANE. CLEAR TEMPERED GLASS IN ALUMINUM FRAME  DARK BRONZE COLOR . REF. TO WINDOW SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GLASS STOREFRONT DOOR. DARK BRONZE ALUMINUM FRAME REF. TO DOOR SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
HOLLOW METAL DOOR REF. TO DOOR SCHEDULE. PAINTED COLOR MATCH WITH WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM CANOPY ALUMINUM FASCIA FINISH ANODIZED IN COLOR #1, DARK BRONZE COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM LOUVER SCREEN #1, DARK BRONZE COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM LOUVER SCREEN #2, CLEAR ANODIZED ALUMINUM COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
G.C. TO PROVIDE 5/8" FIRE RETARDANT TREATED PLYWOOD SHEATHING IN LIEU OF DENSGLASS FOR SIGNAGE AS SHOWN 

AutoCAD SHX Text
STORE LOGO SIGN BY OTHERS

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LADDER. PRIMED AND PAINTED TO MATCH WALL COLOR 

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" X 24" X 1.25" ADHERED CAST STONE VENEER TYPE 1  COLOR: CREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
12" X 24" X 1.25" ADHERED CAST STONE VENEER TYPE 2 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LONGBOARD SOFFIT & SIDING ALUMINUM CLADDING WOODGRAIN COLOR: ITALIAN ROSEWOOD 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1/2" STUCCO REVEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING PREFINISHED IN SILVER COLOR

AutoCAD SHX Text
METAL COPING PREFINISHED IN PARCHMENT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/8" STUCCO FINISH, INTEGRAL PAINT 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"x8"x16" SPIT-FACE CMU, PREFINISHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROOF LINE BEYOND

AutoCAD SHX Text
WALL PACK LIGHT

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCUPPER & CONDUCTOR BOX DOWNSPOUTS PREFINISHED IN BUCKSKIN. CONNECT TO STORM LINE/SYSTEM REF TO CIVIL PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
OVERFLOW SCUPPER, PRE-FINISHED IN BUCKSKIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
#1

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHERWIN WILLIAMS - SW 7004 SNOWBOUND 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CMU 

AutoCAD SHX Text
8"X8"X16" PREFINISHED SPLIT-FACE CMU. GREY BURNISHED W/ BLOCKGUARD SEALER

AutoCAD SHX Text
ALUMINUM CLADDING 

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERTICAL CLADDING BY MAC. ARCHITECTURAL MAC Metal Architectural – MS14 – Silver MetallicMS14 – Silver MetallicSilver Metallic

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE TYPE 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x24"x1.25" (THK) CAST STONE PANEL BY ROCKCAST LATICRETE HI BOND ADHESIVE MORTAR TO CEMENT BACKER BOARD. REF. TO WALL SECTION DETAILS COLOR CREAM 

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE TYPE 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
12"x24"x1.25" (THK) CAST STONE PANEL BY ROCKCAST LATICRETE HI BOND ADHESIVE MORTAR TO CEMENT BACKER BOARD. REF. TO WALL SECTION DETAILS COLOR VEL BLACK 

AutoCAD SHX Text
COLOR SELECTIONS SUBJECT TO OWNER'S APPROVAL ALL PAINT SHALL BE "SHERWIN WILLIAM" EXTERIOR TYPE WITH 2 COATS THE COLORS NEED TO BE FINALIZED WITH THE OWNER, AND THE SAMPLE BOARD SHALL BE SUBMITTED FOR APPROVAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
CAST STONE ADHERED VENEER BY ACME BRICK COMPANY JOSH JAMES  TEL: 281-989-2945 

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. HIGH PARAPET 30'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STOREFRONT 11'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. MID PARAPET 26'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
B.O. SOFFIT 15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. LOW PARAPET 22'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. HIGH PARAPET 30'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. STOREFRONT 11'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. HIGH PARAPET 30'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. MID PARAPET 26'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. CANOPY  12'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. BOTTOM OF SOFFIT  15'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
T.O. LOW PARAPET 22'-0" A.F.F.

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1/8"=1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOTES:

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP.

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. THREE COAT (7/8 INCH) PLASTER ASSEMBLY OVER FRAMING:  THREE COAT (7/8 INCH) PLASTER ASSEMBLY OVER FRAMING:  SILICONE CORE/FIBERGLASS FACE OR WOOD BASED SHEATHING (PER APA) EXTERIOR SHEATHING BOARD, WITH ONE SHEET OF A SELF-ADHERED FLASHING (SAF) APPLIED AT ALL HORIZONTAL SURFACES, UNDER TWO SHEETS OF BLACK GRADE "D" BUILDING (KRAFT) PAPER AS A WEATHER-RESISTIVE BARRIER, GALVANIZED PLASTER ACCESSORIES, METAL LATH, A CONVENTIONAL PLASTER SCRATCH AND BROWN COAT MEETING ASTM STANDARD C 926, WITH AN INTEGRALLY COLORED FINISH.  2. TWO-COAT (5/8 INCH) PLASTER OVER CMU SUBSTRATE: A 3/8" TWO-COAT (5/8 INCH) PLASTER OVER CMU SUBSTRATE: A 3/8" TO 1/2" ASTM C 926 BASECOAT DIRECTLY APPLIED TO PROPERLY-PREPARED CONCRETE MASONRY UNITS, WITH AN INTEGRALLY COLORED FINISH. A METAL LATH (NO WRB) IS REQUIRED FOR APPLICATIONS OVER 5/8 INCH THICK. 3. FINISH COAT: CEMENT. SMOOTH CEMENT FINISH SHALL BE FINISH COAT: CEMENT. SMOOTH CEMENT FINISH SHALL BE PRE-BLENDED BASE MATERIAL WITH PRE-PACKAGED COLOR BOXES (IF REQUIRED). TEXTURE SHALL BE SMOOTH UNLESS NOTICE OTHERWISE. 1 TOPCOATS  A-100® EXTERIOR LATEX  TOPCOATS  A-100® EXTERIOR LATEX   EXTERIOR LATEX  PRIMER: ONE (1) COAT; FINISH COAT SHERWIN WILLIAMS  DURATION SATIN, TWO (2)  COATS. 2 EXTERIOR CMU & BLOCK AREAS (POROUS): EXTERIOR CMU & BLOCK AREAS (POROUS): FLAT FINISH FILLER: LOXON BLOCK SURFACER, A24W200 1ST COAT: A-100 EXTERIOR LATEX FLAT, A6 SERIES 2ND COAT: A-100 EXTERIOR LATEX FLAT, A6 SERIES 3 EXTERIOR PLASTER/STUCCO/EIFS: EXTERIOR PLASTER/STUCCO/EIFS: FLAT FINISH PRIMER: LOXON CONCRETE & MASONRY PRIMER SEALER,  24W8300 1ST COAT: A-100 EXTERIOR LATEX FLAT, A6 SERIES 2ND COAT: A-100 EXTERIOR LATEX FLAT, A6 SERIES 1. SURFACE PREPARATION ***IMPORTANT*** SURFACE PREPARATION ***IMPORTANT*** SSPC SP-1 SOLVENT CLEANING TO REMOVE OIL/GREASE CONTAMINATION. 2. PRIMER COAT: WATERBORNE ACRYLIC PRODUCTS DESIGNED FOR PRIMER COAT: WATERBORNE ACRYLIC PRODUCTS DESIGNED FOR GALVANIZED SURFACES  SUCH AS MPI #134 - SHERWIN-WILLIAMS PRO INDUSTRIAL - PRO-CRYL UNIVERSAL  ACRYLIC PRIMER - OFF WHITE - PRODUCT #B66N00310 3. TOP COAT (2 COATS): FINISH WITH SHER-CRYL HIGH TOP COAT (2 COATS): FINISH WITH SHER-CRYL HIGH PERFORMANCE ACRYLIC PAINT -  MATTE FINISH  C. RELATED ITEMS:  RELATED ITEMS:  - SHEATHING: REFER TO SECTIONS FOR INFORMATION.  REFER TO SECTIONS FOR INFORMATION. - WATER-RESISTANT BARRIER (WRB) SHALL BE MINIMUM   SHALL BE MINIMUM  60 MINUTE WATER RESISTIVE  GRADE D AND COMPLY WITH FED. SPEC. UU-B-790A. ALTERNATE WRB MUST BE APPROVED BY THE ARCHITECT. - SELF ADHERED FLASHING (SAF) MUST BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE  MUST BE COMPATIBLE WITH THE WRB, MINIMUM 25 MILS THICK, SELF SEALING AND WATERPROOF. - COLD-ROLLED CHANNEL (CRC): 1 ½ INCH AND 3/4 INCH WITH  1 ½ INCH AND 3/4 INCH WITH A MINIMUM OF 33,000 PSI YIELD STRENGTH AND A MINIMUM OF .0538 INCH BARE STEEL THICKNESS, COMPLY WITH ASTM A 653. NOTE: FOR SUSPENDED SOFFITS AND CEILINGS USE 1½ INCH CRC AS MAIN CARRYING CHANNELS AND 3/4 INCH CRC AS CROSS FURRING. REFER TO SECTIONS FOR DETAILS. - LATH: TYPE AND STYLE APPROPRIATE USE. PAPER–BACKED LATH  TYPE AND STYLE APPROPRIATE USE. PAPER–BACKED LATH BACKED LATH MUST BE APPROVED BY ARCHITECT PRIOR TO USE. EXPANDED METAL: GALVANIZED DIAMOND MESH, 3.4 LBS/SY,  SELF-FURRED, COMPLYING WITH ASTM C 847 (FOR METAL FRAMING,  CONCRETE AND/OR MASONRY SUBSTRATES). - ACCESSORIES: ACCESSORIES: FOUNDATION WEEP SCREEDS: MINIMUM 26 GAGE GALVANIZED STEEL WITH A 3 ½ INCH ATTACHMENT FLANGE. MUST BE TYPE THAT IS DESIGNED TO ALLOW MOISTURE TO WEEP OUT. INDUSTRY GENERIC NAME- #7 WEEP SCREED. CONTROL JOINTS: SINGLE-PIECE MINIMUM 26 GAGE GALVANIZED STEEL WITH A FLANGE DESIGNED TO ENGAGE PLASTER. GROUNDS TO PROVIDE FULL 7/8 INCH THICKNESS OF CEMENT PLASTER. INDUSTRY GENERIC NAME- XJ -15 EXPANSION JOINT: TWO-PIECE JOINT DESIGNED TO ALLOW FOR MOVEMENT IN MULTIPLE DIRECTIONS. MADE FROM ALUMINUM OR GALVANIZED STEEL. INDUSTRY GENERIC NAME- #40 2-PIECE JOINT. DRIP SCREED: MINIMUM 26 GAGE GALVANIZED STEEL WITH GROUND AND HOLES TO ALLOW FOR DRAINAGE. INDUSTRY GENERIC NAME #10 DRIP. CASING BEADS: MINIMUM 26 GAGE GALVANIZED STEEL WITH 7/8 INCH GROUNDS. EXPANDED FLANGE CASING BEADS. INDUSTRY GENERIC NAMES: MILCOR, J-MOLDOR #66. REVEALS: SIZE, SHAPE AND PROFILE AS DESIGNATED ON DRAWINGS. ALUMINUM REVEALS SHALL HAVE 4 WAY INTERSECTIONS SHALL BE FACTORY MITERED. CONTRACTOR TO USE INTERSECTION AND TERMINATION CLIPS AS SUPPLIED BY MANUFACTURER.  APPROVED CORROSION-RESISTIVE FLASHING THAT EXTENDS TO THE SURFACE OF EXTERIOR WALL FINISH AND IS INSTALLED TO PREVENT WATER FROM RE-ENTERING THE EXTERIOR WALL ENVELOPE. THIN ADHERED CALCIUM SILICATE MASONRY UNITS (THIN ADHERED CSMU) (GEORGIA): TO ASTM C73, GRADE SW; SOLID UNITS THAT HAVE BEEN PRESSURE FORMED AND AUTOCLAVED; AND THEN CUT TO [1 1/4”] THICKNESS; SPECIAL SHAPES AS INDICATED; AND AS ] THICKNESS; SPECIAL SHAPES AS INDICATED; AND AS FOLLOWS: 1. MODULAR SIZE: AS SCHEDULED; MODULAR SIZE: AS SCHEDULED; 2. TEXTURE: SMOOTH FINISH ON EXPOSED FACES AND ENDS; TEXTURE: SMOOTH FINISH ON EXPOSED FACES AND ENDS; 3. COLOR: AS SCHEDULED;FABRICATE CALCIUM SILICATE MASONRY COLOR: AS SCHEDULED;FABRICATE CALCIUM SILICATE MASONRY UNITS TO THE FOLLOWING TOLERANCES: 4. UNIT LENGTH:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16". UNIT LENGTH:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16". 5. UNIT HEIGHT:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16". UNIT HEIGHT:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16". 6. DEVIATION FROM SQUARE:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16", WITH DEVIATION FROM SQUARE:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/16", WITH MEASUREMENT TAKEN USING THE LONGEST EDGE AS THE BASE. 7. CUSTOM UNIT DIMENSIONS:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/8". CUSTOM UNIT DIMENSIONS:  PLUS OR MINUS 1/8". COMPLY WITH ASTM C73-10, STANDARD SPECIFICATION FOR CALCIUM SILICATE FACE BRICK. INSTALL IN ACCORDANCE WITH CURRENT VERSIONS OF AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARDS INSTITUTE, INC. (ANSI) “A108 AMERICAN A108 AMERICAN NATIONAL STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR INSTALLATION OF CERAMIC TILE” AND TCNA “HANDBOOK FOR CERAMIC TILE INSTALLATION AND TCNA “HANDBOOK FOR CERAMIC TILE INSTALLATION HANDBOOK FOR CERAMIC TILE INSTALLATION APPLIED OVER LISTED SUBSTRATES. DESIGN SUBSTRATE FOR MAX ALLOWABLE DEFLECTION OF L/600 (L/720 PREFERRED). MAX THICKNESS 3/4" FOR ROCKED FINISHES, 1-3/8" FOR SMOOTH FINISHES SUBSTRATE FRAMING: STEEL STUD/ CMU CEMENT BOARD -BACKER BOARD: CEMENTITIOUS, WATER DURABLE, BOARD: SURFACED WITH FIBERGLAS REINFORCING MESH ON FRONT AND BACK; LONG EDGES WARPPED; AND COMPLYING WITH ANSI A118.9 AND ASTM C 1325    FASTENERS:  FASTENERS:  -SCREWS: HI-LO THREAD SCREWS (NO. 8) WAFER HEAD, HI-LO THREAD SCREWS (NO. 8) WAFER HEAD, CORROSION RESISTANT, COMPLYING WITH ASTM C 1002 JOINT TREATMENT -TAPE: ALKALI-RESISTANT FIBERGLASS MESH TAPE INTENDED FOR USE ALKALI-RESISTANT FIBERGLASS MESH TAPE INTENDED FOR USE WITH CEMENT BOARD BONDING MATERIALS: LATEX-PORTLAND CEMENT MORTAR IN ACCORDANCE WITH ANSI A118.4 INSTALLATION MATERIALS AND ACCESSORIES: LATICRETE AIR&WATER BARRIER: THIN, COLD APPLIED, SINGLE COMPONENT LIQUID AND LOAD BEARING. WATERPROOF MEMBRANE TO BE NON-TOXIC, NON-FLAMMABLE, AND NON-HAZARDOUS DURING STORAGE, MIXING, APPLICATION AND WHEN CURED. INSTALL IN COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT REVISIONS OF ANSI A108 AND ANSI 108.13 LATAPOXY WATERPROOF FLASHING MORTAR: TO BE 3 COMPONENT EPOXY, TROWEL APPLIED SPECIFICALLY DESIGNED TO BE USED UNDER ADHERED MASONRY VENEER: LATEX-PORTLAND CEMENT MORTAR FOR LEVELING BEDS AND SCRATCH/PLAST COATS: LATICRETE PREMIUM MORTAR BED. LATEX PORTLAND CEMENT MORTAR: LATICRETE HI BOND MASONRY VENEER MORTAR TO BE WEATHER, FROST, SHOCK RESISTANT, NON-FLAMMABLE. LATEX PORTLAND CEMENT POINTING MORTAR/GROUT: LATICRETE HI PREMIUM MASONRY POINTING MORTAR TO BE WEATHER, FROST, AND SHOCK RESISTANT. INSTALL LATEX PORTLAND CEMENT MORTAR IN COMPLIANCE WITH CURRENT REVISIONS OF ANSI A108.02 (3.11), A108.1B AND ANSI A108.5 EXPANSION AND CONTROL JOINT SEALANT: LATICRETE LATASIL, TO BE A ONE COMPONENT, NEUTRAL CURE, EXTERIOR GRADE SILICONE SEALANT. SPOT BONDING EPOXY ADHESIVE: LATAPOXY 310 STONE ADHESIVE (STANDARD OR RAPID-GRADE) FOR INSTALLING ADHERED ADHERED MASONRY VENEER, BRICK AND STONE OVER VERTICAL AND OVERHEAD SURFACES SHALL BE HIGH STRENGTH, HIGH TEMPERATURE RESISTANT, NON-SAG  1. REFER TO STRUCTURAL FOR STEEL FRAME DETAIL. FINISH FASCIA REFER TO STRUCTURAL FOR STEEL FRAME DETAIL. FINISH FASCIA SHALL BE ALUMINUM SHEET W/ PROFILE PER DESIGN. IF G.C. CHOOSES A CANOPY COMPANY TO INSTALL THE CANOPY AS A SEPARATE STRUCTURE, THE CANOPY DESIGN IS SUBJECT TO ARCHITECT'S APPROVAL. CANOPY COMPANY SHALL FOLLOW STRUCTURAL REQUIREMENTS REGARDING WIND LOAD RESISTANCE CRITERIA PER CITY/COUNTY CODE. METAL WALL PANEL MATERIAL: METALLIC-COATED STEEL FACE SHEET: COIL-COATED, ASTM A 755/A 755M. ZINC-COATED (GALVANIZED) STEEL SHEET:  ASTM A 653/A 653M, G90 (CLASS Z275), STRUCTURAL STEEL QUALITY. ALUMINUM-ZINC ALLOY-COATED STEEL SHEET:  ASTM A 792/A 792M, CLASS AZ50 GRADE 50 (CLASS AZM150, GRADE 275), STRUCTURAL STEEL QUALITY. FACE SHEET:  MINIMUM [(0.024 INCH/24 GAGE) (0.60 MM)] [(0.030 INCH/22 GAGE) (0.76 MM)] [(0.036 INCH/20 GAGE) (0.91 MM)] [(0.047 INCH/18 GAGE) (1.19 MM)] NOMINAL UNCOATED THICKNESS. SURFACE:  SMOOTH, NON-DIRECTIONAL EMBOSSED ALUMINUM FACE SHEET:  SMOOTH SURFACE COIL-COATED, ASTM B 209, 3003-H14 OR 5052-H32 ALLOY. FACE SHEET:  [(0.032 INCH) (0.8 MM)] [(0.040 INCH) (1.0 MM)] [(0.050 INCH) (1.27 MM)] NOMINAL THICKNESS. SURFACE:  SMOOTH; NON-DIRECTIONAL EMBOSSED METAL WALL PANEL ACCESSORIES, GENERAL PROVIDE COMPLETE METAL WALL PANEL ASSEMBLY INCORPORATING TRIM, COPINGS, FASCIA, PARAPET CAPS, SOFFITS, SILLS, INSIDE AND OUTSIDE CORNERS, AND MISCELLANEOUS FLASHINGS. PROVIDE MANUFACTURER'S FACTORY-FORMED CLIPS, SHIMS, FLASHINGS, GASKETS, LAP TAPES, CLOSURE STRIPS, AND CAPS FOR A COMPLETE INSTALLATION.  EXTRUDED TRIM MANUFACTURER'S COMPLEMENTARY ALUMINUM EXTRUSIONS FOR HEAD, JAMB, SILL, BASE, FLUSH, REVEAL, INSIDE AND OUTSIDE CORNER, ENDWALL, AND EXPANSION JOINT DETAILS.  FINISH TO MATCH METAL WALL PANELS. MITERED CORNERS STRUCTURALLY-BONDED HORIZONTAL INTERIOR AND EXTERIOR TRIMLESS CORNERS MATCHING METAL WALL PANEL MATERIAL, PROFILE, AND FACTORY-APPLIED FINISH, FABRICATED AND FINISHED BY METAL WALL PANEL MANUFACTURER. WELDED, RIVETED, FASTENED, OR FIELD- FABRICATED CORNERS DO NOT MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THIS SPECIFICATION. FORMED FLASHING AND TRIM MATCH MATERIAL, THICKNESS, AND COLOR OF METAL WALL PANEL FACE SHEETS. SEALANTS TYPE RECOMMENDED BY METAL WALL PANEL MANUFACTURER FOR APPLICATION, MEETING REQUIREMENTS OF DIVISION 07 SECTION "JOINT SEALANTS." FLASHING TAPE 4-INCH WIDE SELF-ADHERING BUTYL FLASHING TAPE. FASTENERS, GENERAL SELF-TAPPING SCREWS, BOLTS, NUTS, AND OTHER ACCEPTABLE FASTENERS RECOMMENDED BY PANEL MANUFACTURER.  WHERE EXPOSED FASTENERS CANNOT BE AVOIDED FOR MISCELLANEOUS APPLICATIONS, SUPPLY CORROSION-RESISTANT FASTENERS WITH HEADS MATCHING COLOR OF METAL WALL PANELS BY MEANS FACTORY-APPLIED COATING. CONCEALED CLIPS GALVANIZED STEEL, (0.051 INCH/16 GA.) (1.29 MM) THICK, DESIGNED TO ALLOW UNIMPEDED THERMAL MOVEMENT OF PANEL AND CONFIGURED TO HOLD PANEL MINIMUM (1/2 INCH) (12.7 MM) FROM SUBSTRATE. PRE-FINISHED CONCRETE MASONRY UNIT TO REFER TO ARCH ELEVATIONS FOR SPECIFICATION.  ALL UNITS SHALL BE SPECIFIED AND MANUFACTURED WITH AN INTEGRAL WATER REPELLENT. REFER TO STRUCTURAL DRAWINGS FOR REBAR REINFORCEMENT & DETAILS FOR LOAD BEARING WALL  PROVIDE GROUT THAT CONFORMS TO THE REQUIREMENTS OF ASTM C476. DO NOT USE ADMIXTURES UNLESS ACCEPTABLE. MORTAR MATERIAL:. PROVIDE INTEGRAL WATER-REPELLENT MORTAR ADMIX “KRETE” BY KRETE INDUSTRIES, OR “BLOCKTITE” BY EUCLID KRETE” BY KRETE INDUSTRIES, OR “BLOCKTITE” BY EUCLID BY KRETE INDUSTRIES, OR “BLOCKTITE” BY EUCLID BLOCKTITE” BY EUCLID BY EUCLID CHEMICAL COMPANY, FOR ALL EXTERIOR WALLS. REFER TO ELEVATION FOR COLOR SPEC.  ADHERED MANUFACTURED STONE VENEER (AMSV) REFER TO ELEVATION NOTES FOR TYPES INSTALL CULTURED STONE PRODUCTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S CULTURED STONE INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS USING GROUTED TIGHT FITTED JOINTS. INSTALL ARCHITECTURAL TRIM PRODUCTS IN ACCORDANCE WITH MANUFACTURER'S CULTURED STONE INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS. INSTALL/APPLY RELATED MATERIALS SPECIFIED ABOVE IN ACCORDANCE WITH TYPE OF SUBSTRATE AND MANUFACTURED STONE CLADDING MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS. INSTALL WEATHER RESISTANT BARRIER IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS4200-1 PLIABLE BUILDING MEMBRANES AND UNDERLAYS - INSTALLATION REQUIREMENTS WATER RESISTIVE BARRIER:  MANUFACTURED IN ACCORDANCE WITH AS4200-1 PLIABLE BUILDING MEMBRANES AND UNDERLAYS - MATERIALS METAL LATH:  1.4 KG/M2 GALVANIZED EXPANDED METAL LATH SECURED TO EXTERIOR WALL SYSTEM.  FASTENERS: INTO TIMBER STUDS: 40MM GALVANISED CLOUTS OR SCREWS. MINIMUM LENGTH TO PENETRATE 25MM MINIMUM INTO THE TIMBER STUD. INTO METAL STUDS: MINIMUM 11.1 MM HEAD DIAMETER, CORROSION-RESISTANT, SELF-DRILLING, SELF TAPPING, PANCAKE HEAD SCREWS OF SUFFICIENT LENGTH TO PENETRATE 10 MM MINIMUM INTO THE STUD. MORTAR: MIXED FOLLOWING MANUFACTURED MASONRY MANUFACTURER'S INSTALLATION INSTRUCTIONS. MORTAR COLOR: IRON OXIDE PIGMENTS. TAN MORTAR WITH EARTH-TONE STONES WATERTABLES/SILLS PROVIDE A TRANSITION PIECE BETWEEN A STONE WAINSCOT AND OTHER EXTERIOR FINISHES AND FOR WATER RUNOFF.  INSTALL USING GALVANIZED METAL SUPPORT BRACKETS (SIMPSON STRONG TIE A-21 OR OTHER GALVANIZED RIGHT ANGLE BRACKET WITH HOLDING CAPACITY MINIMUM 5 LBS./LF) FASTENED WITH GALVANIZED NAILS OR SCREWS PENETRATING STUDS 1" AT A MINIMUM OF 16" ON CENTER. CAULK AND FLASH AS REQUIRED AT WATERTABLE/SILL LOCATIONS USING AN APPROVED CORROSION-RESISTIVE FLASHING THAT EXTENDS TO THE SURFACE OF EXTERIOR WALL FINISH AND IS INSTALLED TO PREVENT WATER FROM RE-ENTERING THE EXTERIOR WALL ENVELOPE.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
U

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H



  

 

December 30, 2020 

 

LETTER OF RECOMMENDATION 

 

2942 Meridiana Parkway 

 

Staff received a variance request for 2942 Meridana Parkway on December 10, 2020.  The 

variance request is for a reduction in the transparency area of a building wall facing a public 

street and a variance for the location of a 71 feet build-to line measurement. 

 

BACKGROUND 

 

This proposed development is to be located at 2942 Meridiana Parkway on the southwest 

corner of the intersection of Meridiana Parkway and Sierra Vista Boulevard.  The overall tract 

size is 4.0639 acres.  The current building is proposed at 10,300 square feet.  The provided 

elevation indicates a second future building of approximately the same size.  Strict 

interpretation of the transparency regulation in the Unified Development Code has been an 

issue in the past with standard retail building types and a variance has been granted to the CVS 

to allow the 65% measurement to be made as a linear distance of frontage rather than a total 

building face area.  The build-to line regulation is applicable to all major arterials.  Meridiana 

Parkway is unique in that it has parallel pipeline easements to the street right-of-way 

preventing development at the typical distance from the street.  Also, a variance has been 

granted to CVS to allow the measurement of the build-to line to be from the pipeline easement 

rather than the street right-of-way.  The Meridiana Parkway street right-of-way conforms with 

the ultimate requirement of 120 feet.  Additional development along Meridiana Parkway 

before enactment of the UDC is also located, in most instances, farther away from the 

Meridiana Parkway right-of-way than the 71 feet build-to regulation. 

 

REVIEW 

 

The subject tract is located within the Sierra Vista PUD.  The adopted General Plan of 

Development indicates this first phase of 2.3 acres to be commercial and is in conformance 

with the adopted General Plan of Development for Sierra Vista.  Single family residential is 

indicated in the General Plan of Development along the south and west boundaries of this site.  

In the City of Iowa Colony Unified Development Code, Section 3.5.3.12 Storefronts, subsection 

(b) Transparency indicates “each exterior wall of a commercial/retail/office building facing a 

public street must contain at least sixty-five (65) percent transparent material to allow visual 

penetration of at least three (3) feet into the building.  Transparency includes stationary glass, 

windows, and the glass area of doors.”  This development is on the corner of a street 

intersection so this regulation would be applicable to both the north and the east façade of the 

building.  Proposed elevation exhibits (front elevation and left elevation) submitted with the 

variance application indicate a minimum of 65% of the total linear length of both the north and 

the east elevation individually are transparent for a height of approximately 10 to 11 feet. 

Cop
y



 

 

 

In the City of Iowa Colony Unified Development Code, Section 3.5.3.1. Setback, Driveways,  

Sidewalks, and Parking for Commercial/Retail/Office/Industrial Use Buildings, subsection (a) (4) 

indicates “If both (i) property frontage is on a designated major arterial; and (ii) either (a) the 

tract size is two (2) acres or larger or (b) the proposed building size is greater than twenty-five 

thousand (25,000) square feet of Gross Leasable Area (GLA); then the front wall of the building 

shall be located on a build-to building setback line of seventy-one (71) feet from the ultimate 

right-of-way line of the street along the front of the property.”  The pipeline easements along 

Meridiana Parkway total thirty-five (35) feet in width.  The proposed location of the building 

face will be one-hundred and six (106) feet from the Meridiana Parkway right-of-way with a 

remainder of seventy-one (71) feet between the pipeline easements and the building face. 

 

SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATION 

 

The proposed development is in general conformance with the intent of the UDC regulations 

related to the requested variances.  Granting of the variances would not be detrimental to the 

health, safety, and welfare of the public.  STAFF RECOMMENDS THE PLANNING COMMISSION 

APPROVE AND RECOMMEND APPROVAL TO THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY CITY COUNCIL. 

 

J. Kent Marsh, AICP CUD 

Staff Planner for the City of Iowa  Colony 

Cop
y



  

 
 

 

CITY OF IOWA COLONY                                                      APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE REQUEST                            
12003 IOWA COLONY BLVD., IOWA COLONY, TEXAS 77583 PHONE: 281-369-2471 FAX: 281-369-0005                         REVISED SEPT 2019 

 

APPLICATION FOR VARIANCE REQUEST or  APPEAL 
  

 

 

 
 

 

Please use this application to request a variance/appeal within the Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, Unified Development Code (UDC) and Sign 
Ordinance. An Application for Variance Request/Appeal shall be considered by Planning Commission and Planning Commission shall make a 
recommendation to City Council, who has the authority to grant or deny variance requests. Considerations are made at the monthly Planning Commission 
and City Council meetings. Refer to the www.cityofiowacolony.com for Planning Commission and City Council scheduled meeting dates and all ordinances 
and development guidelines affecting the City. Provide hard copies and digital files (cd or usb drive) of application and any supporting documentation to the 
City Secretary. This application may be used for several requests but only one property or one section of a subdivision. The application fee for Variance 
Requests/Appeal is $1,000, due at the time of submission and is non-refundable.  Applications received without the required fee shall be considered 
incomplete. 
 

TYPE OF VARIANCE REQUEST (SELECT ONE):  [ ] ZONING     [ ] UDC     [ ] ZONING ORDINANCE     [ ] SIGN ORDINANCE     [ ] APPEAL 
 
APPLICANT INFORMATION: 
 
Name of Applicant:         ______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address of Applicant:      ____________________________________________         Phone: _______________________________________________ 
 
                        ____________________________________________         Email:   _______________________________________________ 
 
Name of Owner:              ______________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Address of Owner:           ____________________________________________         Phone: ______________________________ 
 
                        ____________________________________________         Email:   _______________________________________________ 
 
PROPERTY INFORMATION: 
 
Address Of Subject Property: __________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Legal Description Of Subject Property: ___________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Brazoria County Tax No(s): ____________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Current Zoning:    __________________________________________________        Water and Sanitary Serviced by: ___________________________ 
 
Street Frontage Type (Circle One):   Private    or     Public                FIRM Map Panel Number: ________________________________ 
 
VARIANCE REQUST/APPEAL INFORMATION: Requestor must identify specific Chapter and Section of the Subdivision Ordinance, Zoning Ordinance, 
Unified Development Code or Sign Ordinance that the Variance Request applies to.  If additional space is needed, please attach to this application. 
 

      List Ordinance or Code:        ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
    
           Request and reason:        ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

    
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
      List Ordinance or Code:        ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
           Request and reason:        ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
  ________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
List of supplemental documentation provided: _____________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Planning Commission Date Requested: ______________________________             City Council Date Requested: _____________________________ 
 
 

Requestor Signature or Owner and Date:  ________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

 
 FOR CITY USE ONLY:  Application Received By: ____________________              Date Received: _________________________________________ 
 
 Planning Commission Date: _____________________________________               Fee Received: __________________________________________ 
 
 City Council Date: ______________________________________________             Notifications Required:  
 
 Date Approved or Denied: ________________________________________            [ ] Published Notice    [ ] Posting on Property (applicant responsibility)    
 
                    [ ] Personal Notice     [ ] Written Notice of Decision   

Section 3.5.3.12 STORE FRONT

Section 3.5.3.1. Setback

Request: Glass area shall be 65% of linear feet of exterior wall facing the public
street in lieu of 65% of areas of exterior wall (see attached reasons)

Request: 71' built-to-line setback line from the easement instead of property due to
the 30' pipe line easement (see attached reasons)

JULIE DOAN

SIERRA VISTA VENTURES, LLC - CONTACT: NIZAR ALI

800 BONAVENTURE WAY, STE 131
SUGAR LAND, TX 77479 forefundersllc@gmail.com

11700 SOUTH WEST FWY, STE 205
HOUSTON, TX 77031 doan@doanassociates.com

281-564-2200

2942 MERIDIANA PKWY, ROSHARON, TX 77583

2942 MERIDIANA PKWY, ROSHARON, TX 77583

02880011005

ALL-2 BRAZORIA COUNTY MUD 32

#48039C PANEL 011OH

SITE PLAN, SURVEY, & BUILDING ELEVATIONS

05-01-2021

12-10-2020

Cop
y

http://www.cityofiowacolony.com/


DOAN & ASSOCIATES, LLC 

11700 Southwest Freeway, Suite# 205. Houston, Texas 77031. Tel: (281) 564-2200 Fax: (281) 564-2700 
 
DECEMBER 12 2020 

Reference:              SIERRA VISTA PLAZA                                

                               2944 Meridiana Pkwy 

                               Rosharon, TX 77515 

To whom it may concern: 

This letter is to list all the reasons for the variance request: 

Section 3.5.3.12 STORE FRONT 

“Transparency – Each exterior wall of a commercial/retail/office building facing a public  

street must contain at least sixty-five (65) percent transparent material to allow visual  

penetration of at least three (3) feet into the building.  Transparency includes stationary  

glass, windows, and the glass area of doors.” 

Request: Glass area shall be 65% of linear feet of exterior wall facing the public street in lieu of 

65% of areas of exterior wall on the side (see attached reasons) 

Reason: Having the glass area to be 65% on the side for our design creates an issue where the 

end cap height produces a larger surface area.  The glass area restricts the interior build-out from 

utilizing the space for programs which require all (4) wall to be enclosed or opaque such as 

kitchen, storage, restrooms, etc…  

Section 3.5.3.1. BUILDING SETBACK  

Request: 71' built-to-line setback line from the easement instead of property due to the 30' pipe 

line easement (see attached reasons) 

Reasons: Due to the 30’ pipeline easement at the frontage of Meridiana Pkwy, if the building is 

set at 71’ from the property, there would be no space for parking and traffic path way (circulation, 

fire lane etc.)  in front of the building and the site plan will not be functional. We request to have 

the 71’ build-to-line setback line counting from the easement line instead of the property line.  

 

Cop
y



Amendments to 2018 International Plumbing Code 

The 2018 edition of the International Plumbing Code adopted in XXXXXXXX is hereby amended in 
the following respects:  

(1)  Subsection 101.1 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

101.1 Title. These regulations shall be known as the Plumbing Code of the City of Iowa Colony, 
Texas, hereinafter referred to as "this code."  

(2)  Section 103 is hereby deleted.  

(3)  Subsection 106.2 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

106.2 Exempt work. The following work shall be exempt from the requirement for a permit:  

1. The repairing of leaks.  

2. The clearing of stoppages in pipes, valves or fixtures, provided such repairs do not 
involve or require the replacement or rearrangement of valves, pipes, or fixtures.  

3. The replacement of lavatory or kitchen faucets.  

4. The replacement of ballcocks or water control valves.  

5. The replacement of garbage disposals.  

6. The replacement of water closets.  

Exemption from the permit requirements of this code shall not be deemed to grant authorization 
for any work to be done in violation of the provisions of this code or any other laws or 
ordinances of this jurisdiction.  

(4)  Subsections 106.3.3 and 106.5.3 are hereby deleted.  

(5)  Subsection 106.5.7 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

106.5.7 Previous approvals. This code shall not require changes in the construction 
documents, construction or designated occupancy of a structure for which a lawful permit has 
been heretofore issued or otherwise lawfully authorized before the effective date of this code, 
provided that such construction has not been abandoned.  

(6)  Subsections 106.6.2 and 106.6.3 are hereby deleted.  

(7)  Subsections 108.2, and 108.3 are hereby deleted.  

(8)  Subsection 108.4 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

108.4 Violation Penalties. Any person who violates any provision of this ordinance shall be 
deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and, upon conviction thereof, shall be fined in an amount not 
to exceed Five Hundred Dollars ($500.00). Each day during which said violation shall exist or 
occur shall constitute a separate offense.  

(9)  Subsection 108.5 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

108.5 Stop Work Orders. Upon notice from the code official, work on any plumbing system that 
is being performed contrary to the provisions of this code or in a dangerous or unsafe manner 
shall immediately cease. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be given to the owner of the 
property, or to the owner's authorized agent, or to the person performing the work. The notice 
shall state the conditions under which work is authorized to resume. Where an emergency 
exists, the code official shall not be required to give a written notice prior to stopping the work. 
Any person who shall continue any work in or about the structure after having been served with 

Cop
y



a stop work order, except such work as that person is directed to perform to remove a violation 
or unsafe condition, shall be liable to a fine.  

(10)  Section 109 is hereby deleted.  

(11)     Section 305.1 Protection against contact is hereby amended to provide the following: 

 305.1 Protection against contact. In addition to the written section, all plastic pipe in contact 
with concrete or cinder walls and floors or other masonry (for example, brick) shall be wrapped 
with an 8 mil (0.008 inch) (0.203 mm) minimum thickness or an approved sleeving material 
used for that type of application.  The use of tar, mastic or similar material is prohibited. 

(12)  Subsection 305.4.1 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

305.4.1 Sewer depth. Building sewers that connect to private sewage disposal systems shall be 
installed not less than 12 inches (305 mm) below finished grade at the point of septic tank 
connection. Building sewers shall be installed not less than 12 inches (305 mm) below grade.  

(13)  Subsection 903.1 is hereby amended to provide as follows:  

903.1 Roof extension. Open vent pipes that extend through a roof shall be terminated at least 
six inches (152 mm) above the roof. Where a roof is to be used for assembly or as a 
promenade, observation deck, sunbathing deck or similar purposes, open vent pipes shall 
terminate not less than seven feet (2,134 mm) above the roof.  

( Ord. No. XXXXXXXX )  

Cop
y



 

IOW A  COL ON Y  

POL I C E  DE PA R T M E NT  
 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony, Texas 77583 

 

Aaron I. Bell 

Chief of Police 

Phone: (281) 369-3444 

Fax: (281) 406-3722 

 

LETTER OF RECOMMENDATION 

 

January 19, 2021 

 

The police department has received several “loud music” complaints over the past few months.  

The law that regulates this type of complaint is Title 9 Chapter 42 of the Texas Penal Code titled 

Disorderly Conduct.  This statue states “that a person commits an offense if he intentionally or 

knowing makes an unreasonable noise in a public place other than a sport shooting range, or in 

or near a private residence that he has not right to occupy.  That section also states that a noise 

is presumed to be unreasonable if the noise exceeds a decibel level of 85 after the person making 

the noise receives notice from a peace office that the noise a public nuisance”.  The Disorderly 

Conduct law alone limits our ability to regulate and/or enforce the “loud music” calls for service 

that we receive. 

 

The proposed ordinance would reduce the maximum decibel to 65 and making it unlawful for a 

person to do make, assist in making, permit, continue, cause to be made or permit the 

continuance of the following: 

• Exceed the maximum permitted sound level or; 

• Unreasonably disturbs, injure or endanger the comfort, repose, health, peace or safety of 

others 
  

Staff recommends the passage of this ordinance.  The passing of this ordinance would ensure 

officers have an additional method to enforce noise complaints.  

 

 

 
Aaron I. Bell 

Chief of Police 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



New Interior Road

Ro
ad

 to
 b

e 
ab

an
do

ne
d 

Cop
y



D

P

U

2

3

1

M
E

R
ID

IA
N

A
 P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

5

7-E
LEVEN

93X50

4,6
50 S

.F
.

31 P
ARKIN

G
 S

PACES

61,0
72.4

 S
.F

.

1.4
0 A

C
.

2

1

5

13

5

M
O

NUM
ENT

TRACT

0.1
4 A

C.

W

B

-
5
0
 
-
 
I
n
t
e
r
m

e
d
i
a
t
e
 
S

e
m

i
-
T

r
a
i
l
e
r

W

B
-
5
0
 
-
 
I
n
t
e
r
m

e
d
i
a
t
e
 
S

e
m

i
-
T

r
a
i
l
e
r

C
O

N
C

E
P

T
U

A
L
 
S

I
T

E
 
P

L
A

N

CSP1

GRAPHIC SCALE

0

1 INCH =       FEET

20 20

20

10

SHEET

THESE PLANS ARE INSTRUMENTS OF PROFESSIONAL

SERVICE AND ARE PROTECTED BY COMMON LAW,

S T A T UT O R Y  A N D  O T H E R  R E S E R V E D  R I G H T S

I N C L U D I N G  C O P Y R I G H T .  T H E Y  M A Y  N O T  B E

REPRODUCED OR USED FOR ANY PURPOSE WITHOUT

THE WRITTEN CONSENT OF THE DIMENSION GROUP.

M
E

R
I
D

I
A

N
A

 
P

A
R

K
W

A
Y

 
&

 
S

.
H

.
 
2
8
8

R
O

S
H

A
R

O
N

,
 
T

E
X

A
S

Cop
y

AutoCAD SHX Text
136.64'

AutoCAD SHX Text
33.30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
152.70'

AutoCAD SHX Text
18.61'

AutoCAD SHX Text
120.16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
39.38'

AutoCAD SHX Text
91.73'

AutoCAD SHX Text
127.94'

AutoCAD SHX Text
155.34'

AutoCAD SHX Text
56.59'

AutoCAD SHX Text
66.93'

AutoCAD SHX Text
6.63'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' L.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' L.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' L.B.

AutoCAD SHX Text
25' B.L.

AutoCAD SHX Text
#

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISION DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
BY

AutoCAD SHX Text
project no.

AutoCAD SHX Text
date

AutoCAD SHX Text
dwg.

AutoCAD SHX Text
drawn by

AutoCAD SHX Text
designed by

AutoCAD SHX Text
approved by



Cop
y



 
 
 
STATE OF TEXAS 
COUNTY OF BRAZORIA 
CITY OF IOWA COLONY 
 

BE IT REMEMBERED ON THIS, the 21st day of December, 2020, the City Council of 

the City of Iowa Colony, Texas, held a Work Session at 6:00 P.M. and a Public Meeting at 7:00 

P.M. at the regular meeting place thereof in the City Hall, there being present and in attendance 

the following members to wit:  

    Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen  

    Councilwoman Sydney Hargroder 

Councilwoman Arnetta Murray 

    Councilwoman Robin Bradbery  

Councilman Chad Wilsey 

 

And Councilwoman Kacy Smajstrla being absent, constituting a quorum at which time the 

following business was transacted.  

 

WORKSESSION- 6:00 P.M. 

1. Mayor Byrum-Bratsen called the work session to order at 6:03 P.M.  
2. Discussion between the City Council and Staff of proposed rules of procedure.   
3. Reception for Susan Cottrell. Mayor Byrum-Bratsen presented Susan Cottrell with a plaque in 
appreciation for her years of service on the Iowa Colony City Council.   
4. The work session was adjourned.   
 
REGULAR MEETING – 7:00 P.M. 

1. Mayor Byrum- Bratsen called the meeting to order. 
2. Pledge of Allegiance and Texas Pledge were recited.  
3 Citizens Comments and Presentations. 

 Timothy Varlack – wished everyone happy holiday season. Mr. Varlack stated that he 
noticed an item on the agenda regarding food trucks stating they must demonstrate they 
are not behind on state, federal or local taxes. He would like for Council to consider a 
threshold. He also discussed a recent fatality that occurred on Meridiana Parkway. He 
wants Council to consider drafting a letter to the developer to have better crosswalk 
markings, better lighting, and request they have better amenities for children on both 
sides of the road so children don’t have to cross the busy roadway. Last, he mentioned he 
would like the city to designate a specific location for fireworks in a congregate site 

 

 

12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 

Iowa Colony Tx. 77583 

Phone: 281-369-2471 

Fax: 281-369-0005 

www.iowacolonytx.gov 

 
 

 

 

 

Cop
y



where they can operate in a safe environment. The staff responded that they will look into 
it.  

 Sheila Coogan stated that her mother and father invested in property in 1969 at CR 48 
and CR 56. At one time Intercontinental Airport was earmarked for this south area. They 
have owned and paid taxes. They did not want to abandon one of their road frontages. CR 
48 is closed with a cul-de-sac and the believe it is being illegally closed. She said they 
don’t understand why it is being abandoned without consent. They did not agree to the 
closing of the road. City Staff mentioned they will discuss this with them. 

4. Mayor’s comments or reports. Mayor Byrum-Bratsen wished everyone a Merry Christmas and 
Happy New Year. He asked that everyone continue to practice social distancing. He also asked 
Dinh Ho, the City Engineer to reach out to TXDOT to update the signage regarding the entity on 
Highway 288.  
5. Council comments or reports. 

 Councilwoman Hargroder gave thanks to the voters for electing her. She thanked her 
husband and support system, Jeremy with public works, and the city staff for everything 
they do.  

 Councilwoman Murray wished everyone a Merry Christmas and Happy New Year.  

 Councilwoman Bradbery wished everyone a Merry Christmas.  

 Councilwoman Smajstrla was absent. 

 Councilman Wilsey inquired about the mapping for postal deliveries to the City Secretary. 
Kayleen responded that she has reached out to the postal service in Houston and google 
maps will need to update their system.  

6. Staff Reports. 
A. City Manager 
B. City Engineer 
C. Police Department 
D. Building Official/Fire Marshal stated that he is currently working on other code 

amendments and updates.  
E. City Secretary gave the filing dates for an application for a place on the ballot. The 

first day to file an application is January 13th and the deadline is February 12th by 5:00 
pm. The positions are for Mayor, Position 3 (for a one-year transitional term), 
Position 4, and Position 5. All others are two-year terms.  

F. Senior Accountant  
G. Public Works 

 
7. Consideration and possible action regarding the COVID-19 emergency. Chief Bell gave a 
report on COVID. There was a testing site set up at Legacy Field. They tested 123 people. Chief 
Bell stated that at the Council meeting in November the number of positive cases reported in the 
city was twenty-one. At this meeting they are reporting seventy-eight residents with COVID. 
The department of Health Services stated they have met the emergency thresholds for hospitals. 
As a paramedic the Mayor reported that they have almost exclusively been running COVID 
calls. No action was taken.  
 
8. Consideration and possible action to approve the City sponsoring a Dr. Martin Luther King 
Day event at the Iowa Colony City Park. Councilwoman Bradbery made a motion to approve the 

Cop
y



MLK event at the city park. Seconded by Councilman Wilsey. Approved unanimously with 
Councilwoman Smajstrla absent.  
 
9. Consideration and possible action to approve a resolution opposing the location of the Ready-
Mix Concrete Batch Plant. Councilwoman Hargroder moved to approve the resolution opposing 
the location of the Ready-Mix Concrete Batch Plant. Seconded by Councilwoman Murray. 
Approved unanimously.  
 
10. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on second and final reading to 
canvas and approve the results of the Charter Election. Councilwoman Hargroder moved to 
approve an ordinance on second and final reading to canvas the results of the charter election. 
Seconded by Councilwoman Murray. Approved unanimously.  
 
11. Consideration and possible action to adopt the following ordinances on second and final 
reading.  

 An ordinance creating the Office of the Fire Marshal  

 An ordinance confirming the office of the Building Official 
Councilwoman Murray moved to approve the ordinance creating the Office of the Fire Marshal 
and an ordinance confirming the Office of the Building Official. Seconded by Councilwoman 
Bradbery. Approved unanimously.  

 
12. Consideration and possible action to appoint Albert Cantu as the Fire Marshal and appoint 
Albert Cantu as the Building Official. Councilwoman Murray moved to appoint Albert Cantu as 
the Fire Marshal and Building Official. Seconded by Councilwoman Hargroder. Approved 
unanimously.  
 
13. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading establishing a 
Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals. Councilwoman Bradbery moved to approve the 
ordinance establishing a ZBOA on the first reading. Seconded by Councilwoman Murray. 
Approved unanimously.  
 
14. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading establishing a 
Building Codes Board Adjustments and Appeals. No action as requested by the City Attorney.  
 
15. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading adopting the 
International Fire Code, 2018 Edition, and Appendices B, C, D, E, F, and G thereto, As 
published by the International Code Council, Inc. with certain amendments. Councilman Wilsey 
moved to approve the ordinance on first reading. Seconded by Councilwoman Bradbery. 
Approved unanimously.  
 
16. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading amending the fee 
schedule. Councilwoman Bradbery made a motion to approve the ordinance amending the fee 
schedule on first reading. Seconded by Councilwoman Hargroder. Approved unanimously.  
 
17. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading establishing a 
permitting process for food truck vendors. Councilwoman Bradbery made a motion to approve 

Cop
y



the ordinance for food truck permitting. Seconded by Councilwoman Hargroder. Discussion 

between Council and Staff to:  
o Either remove the section entirely or reword section to give a threshold for being late 

on taxes. (Sales tax is paid to where their DBA is.) – Policy question – what should 
the threshold be? How long – two years. How do we actually regulate it? 

o Amend the section prohibiting sale of nonfood items. Allow sale of small items that 
pertain to their branded business, no displays outside the unit. Up to Ninety percent of 
all sales should be food. Omit this section entirely. 

Approved unanimously on first reading. Bring back to Council the two items mentioned above for 

consideration.  

 
18. Consideration and possible action to approve an ordinance on first reading amending the  
FY 21 city budget. Councilwoman Hargroder to approve the ordinance on first reading. 
Seconded by Councilwoman Bradbery. Approved unanimously.  
 
19. Consent Agenda- Consideration and possible action to approve the following consent 
agenda items. Councilwoman Murray moved to approve all consent items as presented. 
Seconded by Councilwoman Bradbery. Approved unanimously.  

 
A. Approval of Minutes of the following meetings. 

o November 16, 2020 - Regular Meeting 
 

B. Approval of the following Plats as recommended by the Planning Commission. 
o Replat of Lots 20 and 21, Block 1 of Dalton Investment Industrial Complex 

on 288. 
  
 C. Approve the following Infrastructure Approvals/Acceptances 

o Meridiana Detention Basin 1A-1 to serve Meridiana Commercial Site-Approval 
into One Year Maintenance Period. 

o Outfall Structures at West Fork of Chocolate Bayou to serve Meridiana – 
Approval into the One-Year Maintenance Period.  

o Meridiana Section 39B Paving- Acceptance into One-Year Maintenance Period 
for the portion only within the City of Iowa Colony city limits only.  

 
D. Consider approval of a revised Traffic Signal Participation agreement with Land 
Tejas.  

 
 E. Approval of a resolution authorizing participation in the Texas Smart Buy Program.  

 
EXECUTIVE SESSION- 8:01 P.M.  
   
Executive Session in accordance with 551.071, 551.072, and 551.074 Texas Gov’t Code to 

deliberate on the following:  

o Sale of property to MUD 31 

o Planning and Zoning Commission Members 

Cop
y



o Zoning Board of Adjustments and Appeals Members 

o Building Codes Board of Adjustment and Appeals Members 

o District Boundaries Commission Members 

o Parks and Recreation Committee Members 

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION- 8:59 P.M.  

 

20. Consideration and possible action regarding the sale of public safety site in Sterling Lakes to 
MUD 31. Councilwoman Murray made a motion to approve the following amendments to the 
contract. The sales price shall be paid in cash at the closing and shall be the larger of 
$250,000.00 or the appraised value of the property, the contract date to be February 8, 2021, 
twenty-eight days to provide a survey. Seconded by Councilwoman Bradbery. Approved 
unanimously.  
 
21. Consideration and possible action to appoint members of the Planning and Zoning 
Commission. Councilwoman Hargroder moved to approve appointing the current Planning 
Commission members to be the Planning and Zoning Commission and expand the membership 
from the current five members to seven members. Seconded by Councilwoman Bradbery. 
Approved unanimously.  
 
22. Consideration and possible action to appoint members to the District Boundaries 
Commission. No action taken.  
 
23. Consideration and possible action to appoint members to the Parks and Recreation 
Committee in light of resignations of original members. No action taken.  
 
24. The meeting was adjourned at 9:04 P.M. by a unanimous vote.  
 
 

APPROVED THIS 25th DAY OF JANUARY, 2021 

 

______________________________  ___________________________ 

Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary   Michael Byrum-Bratsen, Mayor 

 

Cop
y



RESOLUTION #_________ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF IOWA COLONY, TEXAS, 
AUTHORIZING THE IOWA COLONY POLICE DEPARTMENT TO 
APPLY FOR A RIFLE-RESISTANT BODY ARMOR GRANT FROM 
THE OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR, PUBLIC SAFETY OFFICE, 
CRIMINAL JUSTICE DIVISION.  
 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas finds it in the best interest of 

the citizens of Iowa Colony, Texas that the Iowa Colony Police Department seek funds for the 

purchase of rifle-resistant body armor plates and carriers; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas further finds that is in the best 

interests of the City to agree to abide by terms and conditions of the Criminal Justice Division 

grant program; and  

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas agrees that in the event of any 

loss or misuse of the grant funs provided pursuant to the Rifle Resistant Body Armor Grant 

Program, the City of Iowa Colony assures that such funds will be returned to the Office of the 

Governor, Public Safety Office, Criminal Justice Division; and  

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

authorizes the Iowa Colony Police Department to take actions necessary to apply for, accept, 

implement, and otherwise manage the Rifle Resistant Body Armor Grant Program and designate 

the Chief of Police as the grant’s authorized official. 

 

 

Passed and Approved this _____ day of ___________, _______.  

 
 

 

         

 

 

              

        MICHAEL BYRUM-BRATSEN, 

        Mayor, City of Iowa Colony, Texas  

Attest: 

 

 

    _______  

KAYLEEN ROSSER 

City Secretary, City of Iowa Colony, Texas 

Cop
y



 

 

     
 TBPE No. F-726 

 
To:                  City of Iowa Colony City Engineer  

                        Attn: Dinh Ho 

 

From:             Brad Sweitzer  

Date:              January 6, 2021  

Subject:         Meridiana Commercial Reserve No. 1 City Council Agenda Request  

                

 

 

On behalf of GR-M1, Ltd., I am hereby requesting that the plat known as “Meridiana Commercial Reserve No. 1” be 
placed on the January 25, 2021 City Council agenda for early plat recording.  
 
All items needed to comply with the City of Iowa Colony early plat recording ordinance (O-2018-30) will be provided in 
conjunction with this letter. 
 
Please let me know if you have any questions or need anything else.     
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 

 

Brad Sweitzer, PLA, AICP 
Senior Planner 
713-337-7493 
bsweitzer@ehrainc.com 

 

 

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



 
 

 

 
2 1 1 4  E L  D O R A D O  B L V D . ,  S U I T E  4 0 0      F R I E N D S W O O D ,  T X  7 7 5 4 6      P H :  8 3 2 . 8 9 5 . 1 0 9 3      W W W . A D I C O - L L C . C O M  

   

 
Monday, January 11, 2021 
 
Mayor Michael Byrum-Bratsen 
c/o City Council 
City of Iowa Colony  
12003 Iowa Colony Blvd. 
Iowa Colony, TX 77553 
 
Re: Meridiana Commercial Reserve No. 1 Final Plat 
 GR-M1, Ltd. 
 Early Plat Application Request 
 Letter of Recommendation 
 
Dear Mayor Byrum-Bratsen and City Council; 
 
On behalf of the City of Iowa Colony, Adico, LLC has received an Early Plat Application request (attached) on or about January 
6, 2021 from GR-M1, Ltd. for Meridiana Commercial Reserve No. 1. GR-M1, Ltd is proposing to record the plat in accordance 
with the City of Iowa Colony Subdivision Ordinance, as amended per Ordinance 2018-30.   
 
Infrastructure construction plans associated with this plat is named Meridiana Commercial Section 68 and was approved in 
December 2020. Per the Ordinance, the required cash deposit shall be 110% of infrastructure construction cost. The total cash 
deposit shall be $507,670.79. The 2% administrative fee is $10,153.42. Below is the breakdown of construction costs, cash 
deposit and administrative fee: 
 

 

We have reviewed the early plat request and supporting documentation. Based on our review, we have no objections to 
approving the Early Plat Application request for Meridiana Commercial Reserve No. 1.  

Should you have any questions, please do not hesitate to call our office. 

 
Sincerely, 
Adico, LLC 
 
 
Dinh V. Ho, P.E. 
TBPE Firm No. 16423 
 
 
 
cc:   Kayleen Rosser, City Secretary (krosser@iowacolonytx.gov) 
        Ron Cox, City Manager (rcox@iowacolonytx.gov) 
        Larry Boyd, City Attorney (larryboyd@swbell.net)  
        Brian Aarseth, Rise Communities (brian@risecommunities.net)  

Contract Contractor Original Contract Public Infrastructure Portion Only Applicable Early Plat Portion

Water, Sanitary, Drainage and SWPPP Triple B Services, LLP 890,857.40$                                   461,518.90$                                                461,518.90$                                         

Totals 890,857.40$                                   461,518.90$                                                461,518.90$                                         

Public Infrastructure Portion Only 461,518.90$                                         

Contingency @ 10% 46,151.89$                                            

Total Escrow of Cash Deposit due to City (within 10 days of CC approval) 507,670.79$                                         

Administrative Fee @ 2% of $507,670.49, Due at time of application 10,153.42$                                           

MERIDIANA COMMERCIAL RESERVE NO. 1 - MERIDIANA SEC 68 COMMERCIAL

Cop
y

mailto:larryboyd@swbell.net
mailto:brian@risecommunities.net


Contract Contractor Original Contract Public Infrastructure Portion Only Applicable Early Plat Portion

Water, Sanitary, Drainage and SWPPP Triple B Services, LLP 890,857.40$                                     461,518.90$                                                  461,518.90$                                           

Totals 890,857.40$                                     461,518.90$                                                  461,518.90$                                           

Public Infrastructure Portion Only 461,518.90$                                           

Contingency @ 10% 46,151.89$                                             

Total Escrow of Cash Deposit due to City (within 10 days of CC approval) 507,670.79$                                           

Administrative Fee @ 2% of $507,670.49, Due at time of application 10,153.42$                                             

Public Infrastructure Portion Only

Water Distribution 64,713.15$                             

Wastewater Collection 106,958.00$                           

Storm Water Collection 288,947.75$                           

Storm Water Pollution Prevention Plan 900.00$                                  

MERIDIANA COMMERCIAL RESERVE NO. 1 - MERIDIANA SEC 68 COMMERCIAL

Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y



Cop
y


	2020 IC Rules of Procedure.pdf (p.1-30)
	IC City Manager 1-19-21.pdf (p.31-37)
	Notice of Electronic Public Hearing 24 Hours City Council (1).pdf (p.38)
	Notice of Electronic Public Hearing ZBOA etc by City Council (1).pdf (p.39)
	2021 AA History Month Proclamation.pdf (p.40)
	City Engineer's CC Report.pdf (p.41-42)
	Planning Commission Recommendation to CC- 1.5.21.pdf (p.43-44)
	December_2020_Report (1).pdf (p.45)
	Notice of Deadline to File Applications for Place on the Ballot.pdf (p.46)
	Balance Sheet - Dec 2020 (1).pdf (p.47)
	Profit & Loss - Dec 2020 (1).pdf (p.48-53)
	Public Works Dec 2020.pdf (p.54-95)
	AlvinISD annexation.pdf (p.96-99)
	Request by County for Annexation of County Roads.pdf (p.100-102)
	2021 Election Ordinance.pdf (p.103-108)
	CITY OF IOWA COLONY JOINT RESOLUTION  CONTRACT (1).pdf (p.109-117)
	Ordinance Closing Karsten Boulevard-Portion.pdf (p.118-120)
	Employee Handbook Change Request.pdf (p.121)
	18071 Exterior Elevation  (1) (1).pdf (p.122-125)
	18071 A10 Master Site Plan-A1.0 MASTER SITE PLAN
	18071 A30 Elevation-A3.0 Exterior Elevations
	18071 A30 Elevation-A3.1 Exterior Elevations

	201230 Variance LOR 2942 Meridiana Parkway (1).pdf (p.126-127)
	COIC Variance Request Sept 2019 (1) (4) (1).pdf (p.128)
	Variance Reason Letter (1) (1).pdf (p.129)
	Iowa_Colony_2018_IPC_Amendments.pdf (p.130-131)
	LOR Noise Ordinance.pdf (p.132)
	Hours of operation variance request docs (1).pdf (p.133-136)
	Meridiana Overlay (2).pdf (p.137)
	Meridiana Pkwy & Sh 288, Rosharon, TX - CSP1-24x36 (2).pdf (p.138)
	Variance for 24 hr sales application (2).pdf (p.139)
	12.21.2020- minutes.pdf (p.140-144)
	PD Grant resolution (3).pdf (p.145)
	20210106 Meridiana Commercial Res No 1 CC Agenda Request (1).pdf (p.146)
	Fully Executed Contract Docs.pdf (p.147-398)
	1
	2

	LOR MER Commercial Reserve No. 1 Early Plat Application 01112021.pdf (p.399)
	MER 68 Cash Deposit Breakdown.pdf (p.400)
	Meridiana 68 Approved Construction Drawings.pdf (p.401-430)
	20201229_0001
	20201229_0002
	20201229_0003
	20201229_0004
	20201229_0005
	20201229_0006
	20201229_0007
	20201229_0008
	20201229_0009
	20201229_0010
	20201229_0011
	20201229_0012
	20201229_0013
	20201229_0014
	20201229_0015
	20201229_0016
	20201229_0017
	20201229_0018
	20201229_0019
	20201229_0020
	20201229_0021
	20201229_0022
	20201229_0023
	20201229_0024
	20201229_0025
	20201229_0026
	20201229_0027
	20201229_0028
	20201229_0029
	20201229_0030

	Petition to Annex Land into MUD. 55.pdf (p.431-442)

